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Glossary of Terms 

COVER 
Correction Outreach for Veteran and Employee Restoration 

Custody Level 
Custody Level 1- This is the least restrictive level approved for State Intermediate Punishment inmates 
and for inmates with a commuted life sentence prior to placement in the Community Corrections 
Center/Community Corrections Facility.  
 
Custody Level 2- This level is assigned to inmates who demonstrate patterns of non-aggressive behavior 
and generally are permitted unrestricted movement in designated areas of the facility and may be 
permitted to leave the perimeter for work assignments.  These inmates require intermittent, direct 
observation by staff. 
 
Custody Level 3- This level is assigned to inmates who are generally non-assaultive within a facility but 
may cause risk to the public if they were permitted outside the facility.  These inmates require frequent, 
direct supervision. 
 
Custody Level 4- This level is assigned to inmates who may be assaultive within the facility and are 
viewed as a definite risk to the public. These inmates need continuous direct and indirect supervision 
and are under constant observation and/or escort when moving throughout the facility.  
 
Custody Level 5- This is the most restrictive level and is assigned to inmates who show a pattern of 
maladjustive, assaultive behavior. They require continual direct and indirect supervision. These inmates 
pose a high level of risk to others or may be at risk themselves if permitted access to general population 
areas.  These inmates are always under escort. 
 

D Roster Inmates 
Inmates currently diagnosed with a serious mental illness, intellectual disability, credible functional 
impairment, or have been adjudicated as guilty but mentally ill. 

Behavior Management Unit (BMU) 
A unit designed to provide management, programming, and treatment for an inmate who exhibits 
Personality Disorder with functional impairment, chronic disciplinary issues and demonstrates an 
inability to adapt to a general population setting. This is a secure diversionary unit for inmates who do 
not currently meet commitment criteria according to the Pennsylvania Mental Health Procedures Act 
but do require a secure setting due to their demonstrated problematic behavior in less secure 
environments.  

Facility Analysis 
Annual review by the Department of Corrections that outlines details of each facility. This information 
covers fiscal, staffing, security, medical, treatment, education, operations and physical plant, and all 
projects that have occurred or are anticipated to occur at each facility.  
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Glossary of Terms 

Metropolitan Statistical Area 
Includes Luzerne, Lackawanna, and Wyoming Counties to include Scranton, Wilkes-Barre, and Hazleton 

POWER 
Parole Outreach for Wellness and Employee Restoration 

Restricted Release List (RRL) 
Inmates are placed on RRL when they pose a threat to the secure operation of the facility and where a 
transfer to another facility or jurisdiction would not alleviate the security concern. 

Residential Treatment Unit (RTU) 
A general population unit designed to provide structure, consistency, and support to inmates who have 
been diagnosed with a serious psychiatric disorder and/or a serious impairment with psychological 
functioning. The RTU implements treatment strategies that rely on the Recovery Model, which is based 
on recovery principles that facilitate individual growth, hope, self-determination, overcoming obstacles, 
coping skills, and re-connection to support systems. 

SEAP 
State Employees Assistance Program 

Secondary Recall  
Process in which, during the period of time that is agreed to by the union and management after the 
closure (previously two years), when a vacancy occurs, management will determine if there are 
employees on the recall list for the job title and location based on bargaining unit seniority. 

Workforce Development Area 
Includes Luzerne and Schuylkill County  
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Executive Summary 

Act 133 of 2018 established the Public Safety Facilities Act (Public Safety Facilities Act) to provide 
responsible notice and consideration of any proposed closures of public safety facilities, including state 
correctional institutions operated by the Department of Corrections (DOC). The legislation permits the 
overseeing state agency to decide whether a closure should occur, but only after careful consideration. 
 
In accordance with Act 133 of 2018, and Version 4.0 of the Department of Corrections Statewide Facility 

Closure Guidelines, this report is being provided to outline the process taken to review the proposed 

closure of the State Correctional Institution (SCI) at Retreat. 

The DOC continues to experience a significant decrease in the inmate population. In fact, a reduction of 

1,900 inmates in fiscal year 2018/2019 was the largest one-year decrease in the Department’s history – 

all at a time when crime rates continue to fall. Furthermore, current population projections anticipate a 

continued decline in the prison population over the next five years. At the same time, the DOC is also 

faced with the challenge of a projected budget deficit of approximately $140 million for fiscal year 

2019/2020. As a result of the significant budget deficit and continued decrease in the inmate 

population, it would be fiscally irresponsible not to consider a facility closure. The DOC is able to 

continue to prioritize the safety of staff, inmates and the community in addition to remaining a good 

steward of taxpayer money.  

The Justice Reinvestment (JRI) Act, along with the closures of SCIs Cresson, Greensburg, and Pittsburgh 

provided a cost avoidance to the Department of $543 million.  

This report will show that the DOC considered all appropriate and relevant factors in reaching its final 

recommendation and it is respectfully submitted for review and consideration.  

Pre-Announcement Analysis 

The DOC formally organized the closure steering committee on August 26, 2019. This committee 

included representatives from Legal, Policy, Grants & Legislative Affairs, Office of Population 

Management, Security, Treatment Services, Education, Public Safety Human Resources Delivery Center, 

Press Office, Administration, and Operations. The committee reviewed the 2018/2019 Facility Analysis 

document and determined that SCI Retreat would be the most feasible facility to recommend for 

possible closure. The committee’s recommendation is included as Attachment A of this report. 

The objectives of the committee were as follows: 

1. The DOC will maintain a transparent approach to the closure process and will maintain open 

communication with all stakeholders. 

2. Ensure the closure follows all conditions and processes identified within Act 133 of 2018 and the 

Statewide Facility Closure Guidelines. 
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3. Ensure all employees are offered continued employment at another SCI within 65 miles of SCI 

Retreat. 

4. Ensure all employees are provided support through the utilization of SEAP, COVER, and POWER. 

5. Ensure the closure will not affect the safety or security of the staff, inmates, and public. 

After the recommendation from the steering committee was reviewed and approved, pursuant to Act 

133 of 2018, Secretary Wetzel provided a formal written notification to stakeholders regarding the 

recommendation and requested information on the impacts of the proposed closure. This notice was 

sent to the Governor’s Office, the Commissioner of the Pennsylvania State Police, the Chairperson of the 

Pennsylvania Board of Probation and Parole, the Chairperson of the Pennsylvania Commission on Crime 

and Delinquency, the Secretary of Administration, the Secretary of General Services, the Secretary of 

Community and Economic Development, the Secretary of Labor and Industry, the Secretary of Human 

Services, all Federal, State, and local elected officials of each political subdivision for SCI Retreat, and 

representatives of each employee labor organization that represent SCI Retreat employees. This notice 

is included as Attachment B. 

Facility Analysis 

Since the end of August, the DOC has compiled, reviewed, and analyzed data, documentation, and 

reports to ascertain the impacts of the proposed closure. Specifically, the DOC conducted reviews of the 

information outlined below. 

Physical Plant 
This review consisted of an analysis of all physical plant concerns associated with the proposed closure of 

the facility to include any outstanding financial responsibilities for recently completed projects, projects 

pending completion, and projects that may result as part of the proposed closure. 

SCI Retreat has significant physical plant and infrastructure concerns where renovation and upgrades 

are needed to preserve the operations of the facility. Specifically, a structural inspection of the access 

bridge over the Susquehanna River has recently identified structural deficiencies that are in need of 

immediate repair. A full list of infrastructure concerns is as follows: 

1. Access Bridge 

a. The bridge, which is eligible to be on the National List of Historic Places, was originally 

built in 1898 and moved to SCI Retreat in 1951. The bridge provides the singular access 

point to the facility. 

b. Because of identified structural deficiencies, the load rating has been downgraded from 

35 tons for single axle/40 tons for tandem axle to 32 tons for single axle/35 tons for 

tandem axle. 

c. A $2 million repair project is in process with the Department of General Services to 

immediately address critical deficiencies as determined by the Pennsylvania Department 

of Transportation’s (PennDOT) 2018 inspection report. 

i. This report noted significant loss in cross-sectional area and rivet connections 

due to corrosion 
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ii. Cracks in the flange and welds that interface with the web areas of the deck 

support beams 

iii. Deflections in structural members that have transferred loads to other parts of 

the bridge not designed or intended for additional load 

d. During the pre-design work for the $2 million dollar repair, KCI Technologies, Inc. found 

additional cracks and significant deterioration of three deck support beams 

i. DOC has engaged a contractor to address these deficiencies immediately and 

repairs are expected to be completed by February 2020 

ii. The bridge is reduced to one lane of traffic and will remain one lane until the 

emergency repairs can be completed in February 2020 

e. An expenditure of $15-$20 million for a full replacement of the bridge in the next 10-15 

years is recommended by PennDOT. 

f. $1 million will be required to paint the bridge to prevent further corrosive damage. The 

bridge was previously painted in 1993. 

g. Safety concerns exist when high water levels occur on-site and can jeopardize safe 

passage on and off the property. 

2. Boiler Plant 

a. SCI Retreat currently relies upon a single gas/oil fired boiler that was installed in 2013. 

This boiler provides the main source of steam to meet space and domestic water 

heating loads. 

b. Three oil-fired boilers are used for supplemental heating and as a redundancy to 

support the main gas/oil boiler. 

c. The controls and burners for the three oil-fired boilers were modified in 1969 and have 

passed their service life. Replacement parts are not readily available. 

3. Road Maintenance 

a. $1 million will be required to restore the integrity of and pave the perimeter security 

road, access road, and parking areas of the institution. These areas are in poor condition 

and require replacement and restoration.  

4. Roofs 

a. $1 million will be required to replace the roofs on five housing units and make repairs 

on the roofs of other buildings. 

5. Perimeter Intrusion Detection System (PIDS) 

a. At least $1.2 million will be required for the replacement and upgrade of the PIDS.  

Anticipated contractual commitments and mothballing estimates are broken down by utility and are as 

follows: 

1. Sewage - Shickshinny Municipal Authority 

a. $32,000/quarter usage fee 

b. The DOC is committed to paying a quarterly usage fee for a period of 5 years from the 

closure date 

c. $37,441/month capital upgrade commitment totaling $352,646 

d. Anticipated mothballing costs are estimated at $25,000/quarter 

2. Gas – UGI (distribution), Direct Energy (supply) 
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a. Moved to a pay-as-you-go rate as of March 1, 2020. This may cost $35,000-$50,000 in 

service fees to UGI for converting to a demand rate. 

b. $19,000/month customer charge required until March 2020 

c. Anticipated mothballing costs are estimated at $275,000/year 

3. Electric – PPL 

a. Contract is pay-as-you-go 

b. Anticipated mothballing costs are estimated at $175,000/year 

4. Water –  Pennsylvania American 

a. Anticipated mothballing costs are estimated at $150,000/year 

It is estimated that annual mothballing costs for the facility will total $1,220,000. This estimate includes 

minimal utility services to maintain the facility as well as contracted operations for the boiler plant and 

security to oversee the closed facility. 

Recently completed projects total $914,020 at the facility and include the following: 

1. Repair Roof on B-Block - $40,109 

2. Replace Roof on Maintenance Building - $180,860 

3. Replace Condensate and Steam Pipe to Building #5 - $368,739 

4. Repair Steam Tunnel Under Building #5 - $46,000 

5. Repair Main Access Bridge over Susquehanna River - $201,000 

6. Replace Wheelchair Lift in Administrative Building - $66,599 

7. Renovate Main Lobby and Entrance - $10,713 

Operational Variables 
This section includes a review of programming, educational and vocational opportunities at SCI Retreat, 

medical considerations, facility structure, and other necessary provisions for the facility that must be 

considered. This review includes housing units, available programs, and flexibility of use.  

 

SCI Retreat has the capacity to hold up to 1,207 inmates. As of November 25, 2019, SCI Retreat’s 

population was at 955 inmates. Of those 955 inmates, 264 were classified as D roster, 2 were on the 

Restricted Release List, 224 were housed in the Residential Treatment Unit, and 8 were housed in the 

Behavior Management Unit. It should also be noted that more than 50% of SCI Retreat’s population are 

custody level 2 inmates who can safely be accommodated at any facility.  

 

The D roster inmates will need to be moved to other designated D roster facilities and, in turn, 

Psychology staff will need to be increased or reallocated to minimize the impact to the other facilities. 

Currently, the DOC has 10 other male D roster facilities.  

 

 SCI Retreat has no infirmary and limited medical services are provided on-site. All inmates requiring an 

infirmary are transported to nearby SCI Dallas for treatment. The current design of the facility makes it 

difficult to house any inmate with a physical disability. 

 

SCI Retreat offers both adult and special education, a co-occurring therapeutic community for substance 

use disorder treatment, auto mechanical vocational training, business education, and houses a barber 
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school. All of these programs are already offered at other institutions, are easily transitioned and will 

not negatively impact reentry services or parole processing. 

 

The Office of Population Management will place all inmates in the most appropriate facility based on the 

inmates’ security classification, programmatic, educational, medical and mental health needs. 

Placement will consider existing and upcoming parole docket dates. Transfers will not negatively impact 

parole dates or program completion for parole.  

 

Financial Operations & Staffing Considerations 
This section includes a review of facility costs, including specific inmate costs, and staffing figures that 

were evaluated. This section also includes complement reports and other pertinent staffing detail to 

include reassignment options. 

For FY 2018/2019, SCI Retreat had an estimated total expenditure of $60,683,000. Of that amount, 

$46,406,000 was for staff salaries, overtime, benefits, and allowances.  

As of November 25, 2019, SCI Retreat employed 397 individuals across several different unions and 
classifications. The following charts show the breakdown of employees to include unions, correctional 
officers (CO), and retirement calculations.  

 
Bargaining Unit Breakdown 

AFSCME CIVEA FOSCEP Management OPEIU PDA PSCOA SEIU SEIU 668 

29 11 1 41 2 1 270 13 29 
AFSCME: American Federation of State, County, and Municipal Employees 
CIVEA: Correctional Institution Vocational Education Association 
FOSCEP: Federation of State Cultural and Educational Professionals 
OPEIU: Office and Professional Employees International Union 
PDA: PA Doctors Alliance 
PSCOA: PA State Corrections Officers Association 
SEIU: Service Employees International Union 

 
Corrections Officer Staffing Breakdown 

CO Trainee CO 1 CO 2 CO 3 CO4 CO 5 

11 187 24 15 5 1 

 
 

SCI Retreat Retirement Figures 

Currently  
Eligible 

Eligible Within 1 
Year 

Eligible Within 2 
Years 

Eligible Within 3 
Years 

Eligible Within 4 
Years 

43 65 77 84 96 

 
On August 29, 2019, the Public Safety Human Resources Delivery Center (PSHRDC) assisted the DOC in 
instituting a hiring freeze at the SCIs within a 65-mile radius of SCI Retreat. This hiring freeze allowed the 
DOC to build a vacancy pool to provide placement opportunities for the staff at SCI Retreat. This freeze 
provided the DOC with 78 CO position vacancies and 128 Non-CO vacancies within this radius. A list of 
all vacancies can be found on Attachments C and D. 
 
Employees have been guaranteed a job offer within 65-miles of SCI Retreat but will be provided the 
opportunity to select employment at any SCI across the Commonwealth. In addition, the PSHRDC is 
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prepared to work with all unions on collective bargaining agreements and placement language that 
provides as many options as possible for affected staff. Although not drafted yet, this language is 
expected to include many placement options, secondary recall, and an increase in complement at 
surrounding institutions so that many staff can get their first placement choice. 
 

Commonwealth Agency Reports 
The DOC Notice to Stakeholders requested information from other agencies and stakeholders on the 
impacts of the closure to the local area that could include, but was not limited to the following: 

 State and local resources for the delivery of custody and control of inmates and the protection of 
public health, safety and welfare 

 Workforce of the facility 

 State, regional, and local economies and labor markets 

 Financial resources of state and local entities 

 Feasibility of reusing or repurposing the facility, including recommendations to make the best 
use of available resources and programs 

The DOC received agency reports from the Departments of Environmental Protection, Labor & Industry, 
Community and Economic Development, General Services, the Office of Administration, and the 
Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission. All agency reports have been included in Appendix A 
of this report.  

Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) 
The DEP report outlines all of the permits and regulatory requirements that apply to SCI Retreat 
including Air Quality Permits and registration of underground storage tanks (UST).  The DOC continues to 
maintain compliance with all environmental regulation terms and conditions noted in the DEP report. 
 
SCI Retreat discharges its wastewater flow to a treatment plant located in Conyngham Township, 
Luzerne County, which is owned and operated by the Municipal Sewer Authority of the Borough of 
Shickshinny. SCI Retreat currently accounts for 48% of the Authority’s wastewater flow which, if 
eliminated, would result in a decrease of approximately 173,000 gallons per day to the treatment plant. 
The DOC does not intend to eliminate entirely, only reduce, the flow to the Authority. A reduced flow of 
inflow and infiltration to the Authority’s sanitary system greatly simplifies the operation, reduces costs, 
and preserves the effectiveness of the Sequential Batch Reactor (SBR) process at the treatment plant. 
Per DEP’s report, modifications to the plant may be needed to comply with DEP regulations. DEP has 
committed to supporting the authority with existing challenges and any expected challenges that may 
occur because of the closure. 
 
The DOC requested an analysis from the Pennsylvania State Facilities Institute (PSFEI) of DEP’s report 
and impacts to the Authority surrounding the anticipated reduction in flow.  The analysis provided the 
following general observations: 

 The Authority will need to modify its operations due to the lower flow; however, the Authority 
has a SBR biological treatment system which is easily adaptable to flow variations. It is assumed 
that the treatment system can be adapted to handle the lower flows without issue. 

 The analysis notes that any additional expenses to the Authority are yet unknown; however, the 
Authority may experience a reduction of expenses  from lower chemical use, aeration, and 
electricity which will lead to less mechanical wear and tear on equipment. 
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 In regard to the pumps being able to handle the decreased flow, the analysis notes that the 
Authority should not anticipate any issues with a reduction in flow. Pumps typically have issues 
with increased flow, not decreased flow; however, the water level settings on the pump station 
may need to be adjusted. 

o The analysis does caution that the lower flow being pushed from SCI Retreat to the 
plant may potentially cause operational issues as the wastewater will become more 
septic and solids may settle within the pipe. This may be another reason to adjust the 
water level settings on the pump station. 

o The manhole system to which the force main discharges may experience more odors 
and potential corrosion because of an increase in hydrogen sulfide gases from the 
potential septic conditions. 

The force main is approximately 21,700 linear feet (approximately 4.1 miles) which is a long way for 
reduced flow to travel and stay “fresh”. For this reason, the elimination of all flow from SCI Retreat is 
not advisable or beneficial to either the Authority or SCI Retreat. It should also be noted that significant 
discussions surrounding the impacts to the sewage system occurred during the public hearings and the 
meeting with local officials. Concerns have been raised about the potential rate increase to local 
residents and the likely decrease in flow from the institution. Both DEP and DOC requested an 
engineer’s report from the Authority to review. To date, we have not yet received that report. To reduce 
the impact to residents, a commitment has been made to continue quarterly payments to the authority 
for a period of 5 years from the date of closure. 
 
Department of Community and Economic Development (DCED) 
DCED provided a thorough report of the current economic situation in Luzerne County. Page 4 of that 
report calls out the following impacts of closing SCI Retreat on the local economy: 

 $60.88 million estimated operating budget 
o 83% personnel expenses and 17% operational expenses 

 $44.9 million of annual spending is estimated to stay in the local economy  

 An estimated 890 jobs in the local economy are impacted by SCI Retreat’s operations 
o 0.6% of the total labor force 

 An estimated 480 ripple effect jobs are supported in the local economy as a result of SCI 
Retreat’s operational spending and the household spending by the facility’s 409 employees 

 If SCI Retreat facility is closed: 
o The loss to the local economy is estimated to be as much as $110,000 each year for 

every SCI Retreat employee that moves away from the area to work. This would include 
an estimated loss of $680 in local income tax for each employee that moves away. 

o The loss to the local economy related to SCI Retreat’s payments to local vendors is 
estimated to be as much as $13.486 million each year. This would include an estimated 
annual loss of $60,000 in total local earned income taxes. 

o The loss to the local economy related to the household spending of SCI Retreat 
employees is estimated to be as much as $50,000 each year for every employee that 
moves away from the area. 

Local community officials reported concerns about the loss of the inmate population and how that 
would affect their future class rating. In response, DCED outlined the class rating process and notes that 
even if the local community were to vote and become a Second-Class Township, there would be no 
change in service delivery or funding opportunities. 
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DCED notes on page 9 of its report that it is working to identify potential economic and community 
development projects in Luzerne County. DCED executive staff have held multiple on-site meetings in 
the region to discuss opportunities for investment in both the local communities and the regional 
economy to spur growth, strengthen the infrastructure and create jobs. DCED has access to a number of 
programs that include both grants and loans to meet the needs of the community including Business in 
Our Sites (BIOS), Keystone Communities, Industrial Sites Reuse Program (ISRP), the Redevelopment 
Assistance Capital Program (RACP) and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA). DCED 
mentions that they will continue to engage other state agencies to identify programs that would best 
address the region’s needs.  
 
Department of Labor & Industry (L&I) 
L&I’s report outlines available jobs within the area and the prospects for individuals who do not wish to 
take advantage of the DOC offering them employment within a 65-mile radius of the facility.  L&I notes 
that offering positions to the affected employees will greatly improve reemployment prospects. Their 
report focused on the assessment should the offer of employment not occur.  L&I will provide rapid 
response assistance to those employees who do not take employment offers with the DOC.  
 
A commitment to offer employment within the DOC to all staff greatly improves the employment 
opportunities for those employees to stay within the local area. Specifically, the L&I report notes the 
following on page one of its report for those employees who do not wish to remain under the 
employment of the Department of Corrections: 

 108 of SCI Retreat employees are classified as having “good” or “fair” reemployment prospects 
and should find sufficient job openings within the Workforce Development Area (WDA) and 
Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA). 

 285 employees are classified as having “fair to difficult” reemployment prospects within the 
local area but notes that their prospects improve if they relocate elsewhere in the state. 

 26 employees are classified as having “difficult” prospects and are anticipated to expect 
substantial difficulty finding reemployment options in their current occupation within the region 
and throughout the commonwealth. 

 
Department of General Services (DGS) 
DGS provided a summation of past closures and the process for disposing of the properties. DGS also 
notes that although SCIs are challenging to sell, they have been successfully sold in the past. SCIs 
Cresson and Greensburg sold for $600,000 and $950,000 respectively. The Cresson sale price was a 
direct reflection of the timber value on the property and Greensburg sold due to the value of the utility 
assets on-site. DGS continues to work on options for the sale and disposition of SCI Pittsburgh.  
 
After the facility is closed, DGS will work with the DOC to dispose of SCI Retreat and the 
Superintendent’s home on the property with one of the following approaches: 

 Direct Conveyance to a specific, named entity via special legislation contemplated in 
coordination with the local elected officials. 

 Direct Conveyance to a Redevelopment Authority which would not require legislation, but is 
most effective when contemplated in coordination with the local officials. 

 Solicitation for Sealed Bid, a process which would sell the property to the highest responsible 
bidder. 
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 Request for Proposals (RFP), a process which would transfer the property to the most 
responsive proposer based on criteria that may include factors other than price. 

Office of Administration (OA) 
OA will assist and work with the DOC to ensure compliance with all management directives and will 
assist with the development and execution of placement agreements for all affected employees.  
 
Pennsylvania Historical and Museum Commission (PHMC) 
The DOC will work with the PHMC to identify and archive all records and documentation for permanent 
preservation. State Archives will conduct an on-site inventory and appraisal of all facility records for 
historical or permanent administrative value and subsequently move materials to the PHMC.  
 

Public Hearing 
The DOC is required to hold at least one public hearing in the county in which the facility is located prior 
to the issuance of the final decision. 
 
The DOC held its first public hearing on October 17, 2019, with notice published in The Times Leader and 
on the DOC social media accounts. A transcript from that hearing is included in Attachment E. 
 
It should be noted that after comments made by Secretary Wetzel during the October 17, 2019 hearing 
were brought to the attention of the Governor, it was determined that Executive Deputy Secretary (EDS) 
Tabb Bickell was to oversee the facility closure process. EDS Bickell expressed that the Secretary was 
henceforth removed from the process and that oversight of the process and final closure 
recommendation were managed by EDS Bickell. EDS Bickell made the decision to hold several additional 
meetings as well as two town hall meetings for the DOC to receive additional feedback from the 
community and staff.  
 
On November 13, 2019, the DOC was invited to attend a meeting with numerous local officials to discuss 
the proposed closure. Meeting minutes are included on Attachment F. 
 
On November 21, 2019, EDS Bickell held two town hall Meetings at SCI Retreat specifically for staff. 
Several staff members asked questions, provided comments, and stated their objections to the 
proposed closure. A transcript from that event is included on Attachment G. 
 
Also on November 21, 2019, EDS Bickell held another public hearing to seek additional feedback and 
public comment on the proposed closure. As with the first hearing, notice was published in the Times 
Leader as well as the DOC social media accounts. Several staff, community members, local, and state 
officials provided comments regarding the proposed closure. A transcript from that event is included on 
Attachment H. A petition submitted during the hearing is included in Attachment I. 
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Recommendation 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Corrections to close the State Correctional Institution at 
Retreat.  
 
Any closure will have an impact to the community in which it operates. State correctional institutions 
are expensive to operate and inevitably develop structural issues. However, from an operational, fiscal, 
public safety, and economic standpoint, SCI Retreat is the best option for closure.  
 
Staff safety is at the forefront when decisions are made and the closure of SCI Retreat will in no way 
jeopardize the safety of DOC staff, the public, or inmates. The DOC strives to operate under operational 
capacity. The closure and movement of inmates will not diminish the DOC’s ability to provide services or 
negatively impact public safety as this population will be absorbed into existing vacant beds. 
 
The ability to offer positions in Northeast Pennsylvania will minimize the economic impact to this area 
and potential negative impacts to families. If employment options were not provided, L&I notes that 311 
employees at the SCI would have a fair to difficult time finding other employment in the area. The DOC’s 
commitment for continued employment at another SCI alleviates this concern. 
 
The selection of SCI Retreat is the least impactful selection of the DOC facilities because it is one of the 
oldest facilities and presents significant physical plant challenges. It provides the most reasonable 
relocation options for staff with SCIs Dallas, Mahanoy, Frackville, Coal Township, Muncy, and Waymart 
available within 65 miles of SCI Retreat. It houses a small inmate population and has minimal specialized 
units.  
 
Overarching concerns of the public hearings and town halls surround the operational future of the 
Authority, facility capacities, the process of staff options and the overall impact to the community.  The 
DOC is committed to the support services that will be offered to staff during the transition, work with 
the community to repurpose the site, where possible, and provide a financial commitment to the 
Authority for five years after the closure.  
 
Although the Department acknowledges concerns over the impact of the closure of SCI Retreat, the 
Department is in a position to ensure the retention of jobs, the safety of the public, and the security of 
the inmates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TO: John E. Wetzel 
Secretary of Corrections 

FROM: Amy S. Schwenk 
Chief of Staff 

DATE: August 27, 2019 

RE: Recommendation for Facility Closure 

In accordance with Act 133 of 2018, (Public Safety Facilities Act) and Version 4.0 of the Statewide Facility 
Closure Guidelines, representatives from the Department of Corrections (DOC) Steering Committee 
recommend and provide justification to close the State Correctional Institution (SCI) at Retreat. Notice 
of DOC intent to close the prison triggers the statutory review process, at the conclusion of which the 
DOC must issue a final decision on the facility’s closure.   

This closure recommendation is necessary due to the $140 million 2019/2020 DOC budget deficit. One 
of the most cost-effective means to reduce the gap between our budget allotment and anticipated 
expenditures is to close a prison. This closure will save the department $20 million this fiscal year with 
an anticipated savings of $40 million for the next fiscal year. 

In addition, the DOC experienced a drop of nearly 1,900 inmates during the 2018/2019 fiscal year. In 
total, the Department’s population is down nearly 5,300 inmate since June 2012. Even with the closure 
of SCI Retreat, the capacity of the DOC will be at 98 percent. 

The Steering Committee has developed mission goals and objectives which are meant to guide future 
decision-making and processes which will occur over the course of the closure. The Steering Committee 
will continue to monitor these expectations throughout the process and ensure that the overall goals of 
the agency are maintained. 

Mission 
To ensure SCI Retreat is closed with dignity and respect to all employees and inmates that currently 

work or reside at the institution while minimizing impact to the surrounding community. 

Objectives 

1. The DOC will maintain a transparent approach to the closure process and will maintain open
communication with all stakeholders.

2. Ensure the closure follows all conditions and processes identified within the Act 133 of 2018
(Public Safety Facilities Act), and the Statewide Facility Closure Guidelines (Version 4.0).

3. Ensure all employees are offered continued employment at another SCI within 65 miles of SCI
Retreat.

4. Ensure all employees are provided support through the utilization of rapid response interaction,
SEAP, C.O.V.E.R., and P.O.W.E.R

5. Ensure the closure will not affect the safety or security of the staff, inmates, and public.

Attachment A



A thorough review of the reasonable options was conducted by the Steering Committee and SCI Retreat 
is being recommended due to the following reasons: 

 SCI Retreat is one of the oldest DOC facilities. It was originally built in 1938 as a hospital for the 
Department of Public Welfare. 

 Employees at SCI Retreat will have the opportunity for employment at any remaining institution 
throughout the state. It is important to note that SCI Dallas, SCI Mahanoy, SCI Frackville, SCI Coal 
Township, SCI Muncy, & SCI Waymart are within a 65-mile radius of SCI Retreat.  

 SCI Retreat has significant structural issues to the access bridge. This bridge is the only way to 
reach the site and has become structurally unsound within the past nine months. The bi-annual 
bridge inspection report, commissioned by PennDOT found a number of critical deficiencies with 
the under deck structure of the bridge which resulted in a down rating of the load capacity. The 
cost to stabilize the bridge deck and correct the noted structural issues is estimated at $2 
million. PennDOT recommends replacement of the bridge within the next 10 to 15 years at a 
cost of $15-$20 million. 

 The institution has encountered numerous times where employees were required to stay on-
site and non-essential staff were sent home due to the water levels being too high to ensure 
safe passage on and off the property. When this occurs, in the event of an emergency, inmates 
and/or staff would need to be lifted on/off the property via helicopter. This becomes a challenge 
because SCI Retreat does not have a helipad on site. The most recent event which promulgated 
the need to send non-essential staff home occurred in 2018. 

 In addition to the immediate bridge repairs, SCI Retreat also required approximately $5 million 
in needed upgrades. These upgrades include main boiler upgrades, roofing, and PIDS repairs. 

 The PIDS system is critically out-of-date and in need of an immediate upgrade. When repairs are 
needed to the system, the facility is forced to utilize spare parts from other areas. 

 From a security standpoint, the inmate population (1,065 as of 8/21/19) currently housed at SCI 
Retreat can be relocated to other facilities throughout the commonwealth. The current 
breakdown of population by custody level is as follows: 

o Custody Level 2: 52% 
o Custody Level 3: 29%  
o Custody Level 4: 13%  
o Custody Level 5: 3%    

 SCI Retreat contains three specialized units which would need to be relocated. They currently 
have a Behavioral Management Unit (8 Beds), a Co-Occurring Therapeutic Community (102 
beds), and a Residential Treatment Unit (328 beds). Beds for all three units can be absorbed into 
existing facilities.  

 SCI Retreat does not have the ability to house any special accommodations for handicap inmates 
as it cannot accept wheelchairs which presents challenges for some of our inmate population.  

 SCI Retreat does not have an infirmary. If an inmate is in need of an infirmary, the Department 
must transport inmates to SCI Dallas, which increases trips and overtime costs. 

 SCI retreat has limited restrictive housing unit (RHU) beds. When necessary, inmates are 
transported to SCI Dallas, which increases trips and overtime costs. 

 SCI Retreat houses a CI Laundry facility. Since the opening of SCI Phoenix, the DOC has excess 
capacity for laundry and all services from Retreat can be assigned to SCI Phoenix and SCI 
Frackville. 
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Date:   November 13, 2019 
Time:  2 p.m. – 3:35 p.m. 
Location:  Newport Township Municipal Building 
  351 West Kirmar Avenue 
  Nanticoke, PA 18634 
 
Department of Corrections (DOC) Staff in Attendance: 
 

Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations   
George Little, Executive Deputy Secretary for Community Corrections and Reentry 
Christopher Oppman, Deputy Secretary for Administration 
Timothy Holmes, Chief Counsel 
Amy Schwenk, Chief of Staff 
Diana Woodside, Director of Policy, Grants & Legislative Affairs 
Suzann Hobart, Administrative Officer 5 

 
Other State Agencies in Attendance: 
 

Department of Community & Economic Development (DCED) 
- Neil Weaver, Executive Deputy Secretary 
- Paul Macknosky, Director for Economic Development 

 
  Department of Environmental Protection (DEP) 

- B.R. Patel, Clean Water Program Manager 
- Scott Novatnak, Clean Water Program Manager 
- A third DEP representative was also in attendance 

 
Local Officials in Attendance: 
 

John Yudichak, Senator – 14th Senatorial District  
Mark Grochocki, Chief of Staff for Senator Yudichak 
Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager  
Paul Czapracki, President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport Township  
John Zyla, Vice-President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport Township 
David Pedri, Luzerne County Manager 
Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 
Rosalie Whitebread, Shickshinny President 
Dr. Ronald Grevera, Superintendent of the Greater Nanticoke Area School District 
Megan Tennesen, Greater Nanticoke Area School District Board Member 
Carole Kieser, Secretary for Shickshinny Sewer Authority 
Holly Morris, Shickshinny Sewer Authority 
Sean Logsdon, Esq., Solicitor for the Shickshinny Sewer Authority  
Cody Forgach, Legislative Assistant to Representative Gerald Mullery 
Thomas Yoniski, Field Representative for Senator Baker – 20th Senatorial District 
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The below is a summary of the comments, questions and concerns discussed during this meeting.  This 
document contains meeting notes and it is not an official transcript, nor is it verbatim of the statements 
made.  However, it is a close summation of the comments, questions and concerns presented. 
 

 
Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations (DOC) 

Opening remarks requesting comment.  Those in attendance were advised this hearing is a part 
of Act 133 and that DOC Secretary John Wetzel has been removed from the Act 133 process. 

 
Timothy Holmes, Chief Counsel (DOC) 

Informed those in attendance that the DOC cares about this process and ensured them that their 
comments are important. 

 
Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager 

He wishes for his presentation made at the Nanticoke High School on 10/17/2019 to continue to 
be considered.  He was not impressed with the remarks made. 

Question/Concern: He wants to know where we are with the proposed closure and will 
his previous statement be considered? 
- He was advised that this meeting is part of Act 133 and that all comments, including 

his comments from 10/17/2019 will be considered.   
Question/Concern: Has the Department of Labor and Industry developed an economic 
impact report and will this report be shared with local officials? 
- Yes, this report will be shared; however, the report is not complete yet. 

The closure of Retreat would be the domino effect on the community.  It is not just closing the 
facility, staff will no longer support business by getting gas or other items and local businesses.  
He is frightened what the closure would do to the community.    

 
John Zyla, Vice-President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport Township 

The closure of Retreat would be a huge tax revenue loss and dramatic impact to Newport 
Township and Shickshinny.   

Question/Concern: Newport Township will drop a classification which will impact their 
federal and state grants.   
Question/Concern: They want local leaders to have input on the report that is being 
developed. 

They have no industry, have recently had to renegotiate a police contract for protection, have 
absentee property owners, recycling fees are going up, they already lost the second largest 
employer (an elementary school) and they are now are facing a major revenue loss.  Small 
businesses, like Marty’s Blue Room, will suffer if they lose revenue. 
He worked on the boiler plant at DAL, because small communities work close together.  

Question/Concern: They want to know why the community cannot assist with the 
projects associated with keeping Retreat open? 

60% of the School District has free and reduced lunch.  The community will feel the pain from 
taking revenue away from the businesses, and the taxes that would be lost from the 24 million 
dollar payroll. 

 
Paul Macknosky, Director for Economic Development (DCED) 

The impact analysis done by DCED breaks down every single employee and how it would impact 
them.  This report will be shared with everyone. 
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Dr. Ronald Grevera, Superintendent of the Greater Nanticoke Area School District 

The closure would result in a significant revenue loss as 60% of the revenue to the community 
comes from the State. 
The district is very well managed and operated as they have the lowest per pupil in Pennsylvania.  
Our board is pro child and pro student with the goal of balance.   

Question/Concern: A revenue cut means a loss of programming which would be very 
impactful to the School District.   

The community does not have many jobs with sustaining wages and the numbers of economic 
disadvantage are increasing.  A major concern is the loss of revenue to the community and family 
sustaining wages.  Concerns exist that School District employees may leave their jobs to follow 
their spouses.  Expenditures are increasing and the State provides a high amount of revenue to 
fill this gap. 

 
Paul Czapracki, President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport Township 

He is also an employee at Retreat.  The community has dilapidated houses, no factories and a few 
small stores.   

Question/Concern: Retreat is the biggest moneymaker for the community and the closure 
would require them to drop classification.  If they have to drop classification then they 
will no longer be able to apply for half of the grants for the community.  This would be 
devastating to the Township.   

 
Paul Macknosky, Director for Economic Development (DCED) 

As soon as the announcement was made about the potential closure, DCED met with the Senator 
and they looked at the industry, location and all other relevant factors.  They are working with 
the Senator to spur growth and jobs, regardless of the decision surrounding Retreat.  Another 
group of senior leadership meetings with the Department of Transportation is upcoming.  They 
are looking for any suggestions and ideas that the community may know about, to include serious 
issues with infrastructure.   

 
John Zyla, Vice-President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport Township 

As a maintenance worker, he did cell searches.  Retreat is a prison that inmates are fearful to 
escape because of the bears/woods and the bridge/water.   

Question/Concern: Why not a facility in the city where an escape is more profound to 
happen? Why Retreat? 

 
Cody Forgach, Legislative Assistant to Representative Gerald Mullery 
 Two years ago, a list of five facilities were identified.   

Question/Concern: What happened to Pittsburgh? 
 
Christopher Oppman, Deputy Secretary for Administration (DOC) 

The Department of General Services (DGS) owns SCI Pittsburgh in which they had a buyer who 
recently pulled out in the last month or so.  He is unsure of the reason surrounding this.  We do 
not take this decision lightly; we have a serious financial deficit.  We are looking for an action plan 
to stay within the appropriate fund.  We thought we would get a supplemental, but we did not 
receive the sum expected.  We have closed housing units, we canceled contracts, consolidated 
specialized housing units, reduced Central Office staff by 10% and we cannot make it any further 
without a cut.  We know that wherever we look, it will have a huge impact.  We are trying to make 
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as minimal as an impact our current staff.  It is not the staff or the performance of the staff.  Our 
population is dropping and we look at the facility and the infrastructure.  The bridge is over 100 
years old and will need replaced within the next 15 years.  In addition to immediate repairs until 
total replacement.  Retreat has several facilities nearby for staff.  We look at the upkeep of the 
facility and larger facilities are easier to manage for staff ratios.  The Department looks at a litany 
of things when considering a facility closure.   

 
Rosalie Whitebread, Shickshinny President 

If you looked into doing this so good, a lot of money was spent to get it suitable to be a prison 
from a state hospital.  It was condemned after the mental health patients were thrown out.  You 
are looking at finances but you are not looking in the right direction. 
 

Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 
We are supposed to swim in the water, which is what the State and County want us to do.  Maybe 
all of the employees should start taking pay cuts.  That place is not as deplorable as they claim it 
to be.  Camp Hill is worse, why not close Camp Hill? 

 
Holly Morris, Shickshinny Sewer Authority 

I am here today to speak on behalf of the residents of Shickshinny Borough and Conyngham 
Township.  Although it appears your decision has already been made, we are asking that you take 
a second look before closing SCI Retreat.  SCI Retreat represents approximately 53% of our income 
at the Authority.  That loss will have to be passed on to our residents.  The devastation from the 
2011 flood forced many residents to relocate after they lost their homes and property.  This also 
caused a loss of income to the Authority.   

Question/Concern: If Retreat closes, you may have solved the State’s problem today, but 
what about future finances?  Who will be next?   

In my opinion, there must be other ways for the State to cut costs.  We simply cannot afford the 
loss of jobs and the effects that this will have on our local economies.  With prison overcrowding 
and the crime rate as high as it is, we need Retreat for many different reasons.  I am asking you 
that you take a second look at the effects this will have on people’s lives and well-being.  Please 
think outside the box.   
(Statement and summation of expenses were provided and are attached to these minutes.) 

 
Sean Logsdon, Esq., Solicitor for the Shickshinny Sewer Authority  

I spoke at the 10/17/2019 hearing.  The 2011 flooding devastated the community.  It is also 
important to mention that a portion of Salem Township is also serviced by the Authority.  I know 
that the State has plans to repay some or all of the loan, but our engineer reported that he is not 
sure that the plant can operate without Retreat’s flow.  The engineer has major doubts about the 
reduced amount of flow.   

Follow-up: It was requested that the engineer provide the professional assessment to 
DCED. 

 
Carole Kieser, Secretary for Shickshinny Sewer Authority 

Without Retreat, somebody has to pay for those expenses and the Authority works hard to keep 
the rates reasonable.  We work tirelessly putting leans and trying to collect debts owed but these 
costs would have to be passed onto the consumer and they do not believe they can stay afloat.   

Question/Concern: Not only will Retreat take away the flow, but the Authority is unsure 
if they can operate at such a reduced flow rate. 
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We have a large number of retired people that are already on a fixed income and have to make a 
choice some months between eating and getting their medication.  How can we go to them with 
another choice to make?  They have to collect the money to keep the Authority going but they 
are devastating people because they do not have a choice.  You are being paid to be here today 
but the people are here volunteering their time.  There has to be a different, more cost effective 
plan.  

Follow-up: Expenses are predicted to go from $60 to $180 quarterly.   
- DCED added that the $60 already includes debt owed to the authority so these 

numbers could differ based on the assumptions. 
 
John Zyla, Vice-President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport 
 Not only will the flow rates change but the pump requirements may also change. 
 
Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 

This new plant was built because of Retreat.  We people need to live.  Stop just thinking about the 
State, what about us, the communities, what about us?  It is bad enough that we are not entitled 
to a dyke and every flood we are under the water. 

 
David Pedri, Luzerne County Manager 

I stand with the residents.  Over five thousand jobs are coming to the County and the County is 
moving forward, but then we are going to take the jobs away.  We are taking real jobs out of 
Luzerne County.  I run the county facility for 30 million dollars and the biggest expenses are 
staffing and inmate costs.  The good news is that staff or inmate costs are not getting cut, the two 
major expenses, so capital costs must be driving this decision. 

Question/Concern: Is there something we can do together for capital improvements to 
fix the bridge etc.  These things can be fixed, lets fix them. 

 
Christopher Oppman, Deputy Secretary for Administration (DOC) 

Personnel costs are about 80% of the costs.  The staff will migrate to those other facilities that 
have a hiring freeze and the complement will see a reduction over time.  Inmate costs remain the 
same.  Capital items include a two million immediate repair to the bridge.  The longer term is 
roughly 15-20 million to replace it.  Other improvements include perimeter security, roofing, brick 
etc. 

 
John Yudichak, Senator – 14th Senatorial District  

They can help find the money to repair the bridge.  Inmate numbers went down 5,300 and 3 
prisons have been closed but budget growth is still increasing each year.  We are not saving money 
on a closure.  I supported JRI and I want to reduce crime and inmates, but we need prisons in our 
society.  We helped put in the road at Retreat and we will work our tail off on the economic 
development side.  The community will not be able to recover from a closure.   

Question/Concern: Can we do some kind of public partnership for the bridge if it 
eliminates the impact?  Similar to the gas line repair. 

 
Christopher Oppman, Deputy Secretary for Administration (DOC) 

The Department’s operating budget has been flat for the last 10 years.  The cost to carry 
personnel, pension, benefits and salaries continue to increase.  Collective bargaining units bargain 
salary increases. 
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John Yudichak, Senator – 14th Senatorial District  
They try to battle blighted property; SCI Retreat will become the biggest blighted property in 
Newport Township.  There should be a repurposed plan and if there is not a good plan then we 
should not savage the community.  We spoke with the Governor regarding other options for the 
property for purposes such as medical parole, end of stage inmates or short-term workforce 
development.   We have fumbled the ball and we need to earn the trust back to the community 
and the impact to the community needs to be considered.   

 
Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager 

If the 22 million for the bridge is a factor, then they should consider using the logging road as in 
the past.   

Follow-up: Real estate is inaccessible at this time but we should explore an alternative 
roadway.  This would a more cost effective way to access the facility.  

 
Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 

The bridge was in deplorable condition when Retreat was opened up.  I worked at Retreat when 
it was a state hospital.  This is not new news.  Governor Wolf is the reason for shutting Retreat 
down.  We are a small community with a fixed income.  The State does not have a problem taking 
taxes.  Shut down Camp Hill that place is deplorable.   

 
Thomas Yoniski, Field Representative for Senator Baker – 20th Senatorial District 

The area had a sense of hope with the investment in the sewer plant, and a new gas line.  But 
there is another aspect, the personnel that are leaving.  You say everybody will have a position; I 
give this challenge to you.  When an employee has to travel 40-50 miles, it changes parenting 
schedules, coaching opportunities etc.   

Question/Concern: It is easy to say we are going to close the prison, but when you go 
back, think how you can save this prison?  What can we do with these capital 
improvements, what kind of money can we put in to the prison?   

Those of us familiar with this prison, we believe we can make this happen.  The spirit of this area 
was hurt with the comments made. 

 
Paul Macknosky, Director for Economic Development (DCED) 

We did do an analysis based on commute times.  Currently, the average commute time is 29 
minutes.  Under the new structure, it would be less.  We are committed to finding solutions to 
whatever economic problems whether this is closed or not.  We are going to work together to 
make it stronger. 

 
John Zyla, Vice-President of the Board of Commissioners for Newport 

The perfect scenario is that a new road and a new gas line run to Retreat and do away with the 
bridge.  We would be more progressive with natural gas. 

 
Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager  

This could be the resurrection point for Newport Township.  The closure is devastating and closes 
the coffin if it does. 
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Carole Kieser, Secretary for Shickshinny Sewer Authority 
The plant was also built for a reduction in phosphate and nitrogen, which also effects the 
Chesapeake Bay.  This plant has operated so efficiently that they were able to sell credits for 
nitrogen. 
 Follow-up: Chesapeake Bay run off project.  This system was finished in 2015. 
 

Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 
 The State can take care of all of us. 
  Question/Concern: Are you (DCED) set on shutting down Retreat? 
 
Neil Weaver, Executive Deputy Secretary (DCED) 

Their agency is looking at the impact and what they can do long term despite the decision.  Our 
agency is not on either side and they are providing black and white information.  They will present 
the economic impact report.   

 
Paul Macknosky, Director for Economic Development (DCED) 

It is important for DCED to understand the contracts and covenants when they try to offset the 
costs.  DCED is not comparing the information but rather they are providing an analysis.  Their 
information comes from the community.  They were able to do the commute analysis as this 
information was received from the DOC.  The School District and Township do not need to provide 
information to DCED because this would make an assumption and the analysis does not include 
assumptions (i.e. that employees will move from the community etc.). 

 
Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager  
  Question/Concern:  When will the decision be made? 
 
Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations (DOC) 
 After all the data and comments are reviewed.   
 
Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 
  Question/Concern:  Have you started taking inmates out of Retreat? 
 
Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations (DOC) 
 No. 
 
Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 
  Question/Concern:  Are you transferring inmates in to Retreat? 
 
Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations (DOC) 
 Within the last month, an inmate was transferred in to the Behavioral Management Unit (BMU). 
 
Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager  
  Question/Concern:  Do you have a set date or time for the announcement? 
 
Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations (DOC) 

No.  We will review all of the information, reports and comments.  We are in no rush to make a 
decision.   
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Peter Wanchisen, Newport Township Manager  
Question/Concern:  Can we reconvene this group, as we get closer to the final reports?  
This is important for the community based on a credibility issue and the 
questions/concerns raised today. 

 
Tabb Bickell, Executive Deputy Secretary for Institutional Operations (DOC) 
 Yes. 
 
Brenda Long, Shickshinny Mayor 
  Question/Concern:  Why can’t Governor Wolf come to these meetings? 
 
 

 
 
Meeting ended at 3:35 p.m. 
 
Attached is a typed statement and summation of expenses provided by the Shickshinny Sewer Authority 
(Attachment 1-A and Attachment 1-B). 
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P R O C E E D I N G S 1 

---------------------------------------------------- 2 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  Good afternoon.  3 

We'll go ahead and get started.  First, I want to 4 

thank all of you for being here today.  I also want 5 

to thank Superintendent Mason and her staff for 6 

making this available for as many staff to attend as 7 

possible.  The intent of this meeting is to hear 8 

from you, the staff of Retreat.  9 

    Myself, Deputy Oppman, Ty Stanton, RDS 10 

Wenerowicz and EDS Little are here to answer your 11 

questions to the best of our ability and listen to 12 

what you have to say.  As we get moving in this, if 13 

you would like to provide a statement, please use 14 

the sign-in sheet as you come up and state your name 15 

at the mic for the official record.  16 

    Commonwealth Media is here and it's 17 

being audio recorded.  And we have a court 18 

stenographer capturing the official record.  So that 19 

will be part of the official report.  If you don’t 20 

feel comfortable providing a comment in this 21 

setting, I'm reminding everyone that you can still 22 

use or submit your comments, questions and concerns 23 

to the Department's resource account.  24 

    As I understand it, the admin team 25 
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sent that out to everybody.  But if not, let us know 1 

and we will make sure that you have the resource 2 

account.  I also want to remind everybody that we 3 

have a public hearing tonight.  That's beginning at 4 

5:30.  And that will be at the Nanticoke Municipal 5 

Building located at 15 East Ridge Street, Nanticoke. 6 

I am going to go ahead and let the panel introduce 7 

themselves, starting with EDS Little.  8 

    MR. LITTLE:  Good afternoon.  I'm EDS 9 

George Little.  I'm responsible for the community 10 

corrections and reentry program.  So that would 11 

include parole supervision, parole reentry services 12 

and the Bureau of Community Corrections.  13 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  I'm Mike -.  14 

    MR. LITTLE:  You're live.  15 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  I'm Mike Wenerowicz.  16 

    MR. LITTLE:  Hit it again.  17 

    MR. BICKELL:  You need - there you go.  18 

    MR. LITTLE:  There you go.  19 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Okay.  20 

    I'm Mike Wenerowicz.  I'm the eastern 21 

region deputy secretary.  22 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Chris Oppman, deputy 23 

secretary for the administration for the DOC.  24 

    MR. BICKELL:  And I'm Tabb Bickell, 25 
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executive deputy secretary for the institutional 1 

operations.  2 

    MR. STANTON:  My name is Ty Stanton.  3 

I'm the HR director for the public safety delivery 4 

center.  5 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  6 

    With that being said, whoever wants to 7 

break the ice, come on up.  And we can get - get 8 

this started.  Would anybody - I'll break the ice.  9 

Would there be a question of what's going to - if 10 

this process goes through what's going to happen to 11 

me?  Would that be a fair question?  Would everybody 12 

like to hear that?  Okay.  Ty - Ty, you want to do 13 

that?  14 

    MR. STANTON:  Yeah.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  What we'll do is he'll 16 

explain the process of how this'll work if this goes 17 

through.  18 

    MR. STANTON:  As hopefully everybody 19 

knows a hiring freeze was implemented in seven 20 

institutions in the northeast.  We have been 21 

tracking vacancies at all those facilities.  And so 22 

it's hard for me to say definitively how exactly 23 

placement would work here.  We have not - we don't 24 

have placement agreements in a place yet with the 25 
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various collective bargaining agents.  1 

    So I can answer how it has happened in 2 

the past.  Most recently at SCI Pittsburgh.  But I 3 

can't definitively say how it will happen this time. 4 

If the decision is made, we will then start 5 

negotiations with all of the unions to determine the 6 

exact placement processes.  With that being said, 7 

how this has happened in the past is agreements 8 

would be made.  Surveys would then be sent out to 9 

all the staff, asking them to rank their preference 10 

of other institutions to be placed at within their 11 

existing positions.  12 

    And so the placement agreement would 13 

list every institution in the state.  And I want to 14 

point out that a commitment's already been made that 15 

everybody would be given a placement offer within a 16 

65 mile radius, which includes those six facilities 17 

outside of Retreat in the northeast.  But if someone 18 

was interested in going to another facility outside 19 

of those six and they placed them, you know, as 20 

their first preference, that's still - that's still 21 

an option.  22 

    So I don't want everybody to think 23 

that they're restricted within - they would be 24 

restricted within those six facilities.  So what 25 
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would happen again, a survey would be sent out.  1 

Everybody would be asked to rank their facilities 2 

that they would be willing to go to in order.  After 3 

those surveys are received, they'll be put in 4 

seniority order by union.  5 

    And then we would go through them with 6 

- historically we've sat down with the union 7 

officials from the headquarters and gone through 8 

them at the table together to determine placement.  9 

You know, so we would have a list of all the 10 

vacancies, all the positions that we've made 11 

available.  And we would just line by line go 12 

through and try to determine based on seniority and 13 

preference where everybody would be placed.  That's 14 

overly simplified, but that's - that's the process.  15 

    After that, letters would be sent out, 16 

making offers.  We would ask the employees to review 17 

those.  There would be a timeframe to review them 18 

and make a decision.  Yes, I'm going to accept this. 19 

No, I'm not going to accept this.  Assuming the 20 

offer is accepted, then a reassignment letter would 21 

be sent out.  And that letter would be giving you 22 

the effective date of the transfer.  23 

    In some of the agreements in the past 24 

we have entered into - we've - we've used a process 25 
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that we call secondary recall.  So if you are unable 1 

to be placed at your number one facility, and we 2 

place you at your second facility, for example.  3 

After the placement process is done and everybody is 4 

- is reassigned when a vacancy would come open at 5 

your number one facility, we would look at this of, 6 

okay, who - who had this as their number one, but 7 

didn’t get it?  And so we would go in seniority 8 

order again.  And so - just so for example if your 9 

number one placement was Dallas, but you didn't get 10 

Dallas, you got Frackville.  As soon as that's done, 11 

a job opening for - at Dallas comes up.  12 

    We would look at the list.  Everybody 13 

in seniority order of everybody that wanted to go to 14 

Dallas and didn't get there.  And then we would 15 

backfill those positions through the secondary 16 

recall process.  And we historically I think last 17 

time we did that over a two year - we did that for a 18 

two year period after the closure of SCI Pittsburgh.  19 

    The majority of the staff did 20 

eventually get to their number one institution.  I 21 

know all the correction officers - the secondary 22 

recall process at Pittsburgh last - for the 23 

correction officers was completed in one year.  So 24 

in a nutshell that's the - that would be the 25 
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placement process.  But again, we would - we'd have 1 

to enter into negotiations with all the unions.  2 

    We'll come to agreements.  And then 3 

once those agreements were signed, they would be 4 

distributed so everybody'd be on the same page and 5 

understand the - the nuances of the agreements.  And 6 

then we would commence with the survey process.  7 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  8 

    I'll also add to that.  Act 133, which 9 

is the law that we are bound by.  Once an 10 

announcement is made to close a facility, staff will 11 

have 60 days to turn that in, what Ty was talking 12 

about.  And the institution will, when selected, 13 

will not be closed before four months.  14 

    So I just want everybody to understand 15 

that that's part of the act that we - that we have 16 

to abide by.  So does anybody want to come on up?  I 17 

encourage staff to come up.  As you know, tonight is 18 

the - is the public hearing.  And it's not going to 19 

be - we're just going to listen.  20 

    We really want to hear from the staff. 21 

Our main concern is for staff.  And we want to have 22 

as little disruption to your lives as possible.  So 23 

I truly encourage you to please come on up and ask 24 

us your questions.  Thank you.  25 
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    MS. TOMASELLI:  Hi.  1 

    I'm Michelle Tomaselli.  I apologize. 2 

I came in a little late.  So you might have answered 3 

one of my questions.  But I'm a little nervous.  4 

    MR. BICKELL:  That's okay.  5 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  I apologize.  6 

    MR. BICKELL:  You're fine.  7 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  I am an AFSCME 8 

steward.  And I just want to throw it out there on 9 

behalf of AFSCME members, just so we're heard on 10 

their concerns that they have.  A lot of the AFSCME 11 

employees that I represent, local 2323, are a lot of 12 

the lower entry level positions.  Clerks, medical 13 

records.  Positions like that.  14 

    I understand the 65 mile radius from 15 

the institution to institution.  If it could be 16 

taken into consideration their home residence to 17 

institution?  Just because of the pay scale that a 18 

lot of the AFSCME employees are at, it'll be 19 

cumbersome for them to lose potentially up to $1,600 20 

a year on just travel time and gas alone, not wear 21 

and tear.  22 

    So I'm just throwing that out.  If 23 

that could be taken into consideration.  That would 24 

be appreciated.  It's my understanding that the 25 
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facilities will be over complement, which is 1 

understandable.  I also represent the LPNs.  And I 2 

understand that, you know, when they got hired here 3 

they accepted a shift.  I'm just wondering if the 4 

shift could be taken into consideration.  5 

    Again, some of them are single 6 

parents.  You know, the shift was conducive for 7 

their lifestyle.  Again, if that could be taken into 8 

consideration, being where they're placed.  And if 9 

they could somehow retain their shift or something 10 

that would be made convenient for them.  11 

    We have an AFSCME clerk that is 12 

Retreat complement.  Her headquarters is at Dallas. 13 

She's been there for six years.  Again, I understand 14 

that we all appreciate that we're going to be given 15 

a job.  She's been at Dallas.  Just wondering if 16 

that could be taken into consideration for her as a 17 

clerk, since she's been working there for six years 18 

already.  19 

    To possibly stay there if that 20 

complement could be switched already ahead of time? 21 

I don't know if that's possible.  But she is a 22 

Retreat employee and it does affect her even though 23 

she hasn’t been, you know, stationed here working 24 

for six years.  25 
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    A couple people have come up to me, 1 

not AFSCME members.  But I thought I'd, you know, 2 

talk and ask them, you know, the question that they 3 

have.  Military employees that are deployed, how is 4 

their preferences going to be taken into 5 

consideration for their bargaining unit seniority?  6 

You know, if that could just be considered somehow. 7 

That that's going to be factored in some way.  8 

    MR. BICKELL:  We can address that one 9 

real quick.  10 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Sure.  Okay.  11 

    MR. STANTON:  Again, how - how we've 12 

handled this in the past is we - we work with local 13 

HR.  And sometimes we'll work with the local union 14 

reps to make sure that we get in touch with anybody 15 

that's deployed or not - is out on military leave.  16 

So they will - we will ensure that they get the 17 

surveys and have the appropriate timeframes to 18 

respond, just as anybody that's not.  19 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  All right.  20 

    So they're not going to be like 21 

forgotten about?  Okay.  22 

    MR. STANTON:  Absolutely not.  23 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  All right.  Thank you.  24 

    Excuse me.  I'm sorry.  25 
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    MR. BICKELL:  Take your time.  1 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Just getting back to 2 

the, again, if it could be taken into consideration 3 

the distance from someone's home.  We do have a lot 4 

of people that are single parents, like I said 5 

before.  Or they have FMLA where they take care of a 6 

single parent.  Extending, you know, 47 minutes on a 7 

good day.  If they have to come back and take care 8 

of a family member.  If - if for the AFSCME members, 9 

that could be taken in to a factor?  10 

    And information on the DOC webpage.  A 11 

statistic - a statistic showing that SCH - SCI 12 

Retreat has saved local communities nearly $300,000 13 

in their community work program, litter pickup, 14 

street cleaning, clearing of the reef beds in the 15 

Shickshinny Sewer Authority, things like that.  Is 16 

the DOC going to continue to provide these services? 17 

Or will local communities have to increase our taxes 18 

to cover these services?  19 

    MR. BICKELL:  Great question.  We'll 20 

have to follow up with that.  21 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  Sure.  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  Our hope would be that 23 

we would continue with that practice.  I mean, with 24 

SCI Dallas.  25 
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    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  1 

    MR. BICKELL:  So that would be our 2 

hope.  3 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  Thank you.  4 

    And again, and speaking on behalf of I 5 

think everybody here.  We appreciate that we're 6 

going to have a job to go to.  If there's - and I 7 

don't - I don't know if I missed anything in the 8 

beginning.  If there is an extension on time or not. 9 

On, you know, the closure or anything.  10 

    But since two institutions in Luzerne 11 

County, state institutions, are possibly facing 12 

closure and the Department of Human Services has 13 

been given a three year plan.  Is there any talk of 14 

possibly giving the Department of Corrections a 15 

three year plan on closing or -?  16 

    MR. BICKELL:  Could you say that 17 

again, ma'am?  I'm sorry.  18 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Sure.  19 

    Whitehaven, the Department of Human 20 

Services, has been given from what I understand a 21 

three year plan on closing.  And since their talk 22 

about closing, that county state institution and 23 

possibly closing SCI Retreat.  Would there be any 24 

consideration in giving SCI Retreat a three year 25 
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plan also or no?  1 

    MR. BICKELL:  She's asking would there 2 

be a consideration - I believe it's Whitehaven?  Is 3 

that what it is?  4 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Yes.  5 

    MR. BICKELL:  Whitehaven has a three 6 

year plan.  And I believe she's asking can SCI 7 

Retreat have a three year plan.  8 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  If we're - if we're 9 

proposed to close could it be a consideration 10 

extended to the DOC as it was to the Department of 11 

Human Services?  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  That's - that's 13 

something we'll have to follow-up on too, ma'am.  14 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  That decision    16 

wouldn't -.  17 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Right.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  That would - that would 19 

be made -.  20 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  21 

    I appreciate it.  It's just something 22 

that employees wanted to be heard.  And I appreciate 23 

your time.  24 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  25 
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    Anybody else?  Good.  1 

    MS. ROCCO:  All right.  My name is 2 

Felicia Rocco.  I am acting counselor, slash, CO 3 

here at SCI Retreat.  You're going to hear from me 4 

later.  But for now I just have two questions maybe 5 

you can answer.  Sorry.  I'm too big for this.  All 6 

right.  There you go.  Better?  All right.  7 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  8 

    MS. ROCCO:  But my first question is 9 

that email you guys setup for questions, comments 10 

and concerns.  I actually sent an email to that like 11 

three days after it was setup.  No response, no 12 

reply.  So how is our concerns going to be 13 

addressed?  14 

    MR. BICKELL:  We'll follow up on that 15 

and be sure that we get a prompt reply.  16 

    MS. ROCCO:  What was the question?  17 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yeah.  18 

    What's the question?  19 

    MS. ROCCO:  My question was how are 20 

you going to address those concerns that we're 21 

sending to the email that you guys setup?  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  What'll happen is that 23 

it'll be reviewed by whoever's going to review it.  24 

Which I believe with be Sue McNaughton in the press 25 
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office shop.  And then she will bring it to the 1 

attention of who she feels is most appropriate to 2 

respond.  And then a response - and then a response 3 

should be provided.  4 

    MS. ROCCO:  Is there a timeframe on 5 

that?  Because I did that two and a half months ago 6 

just about?  7 

    MR. BICKELL:  I think there needs to 8 

be a reasonable amount of time, yes.  It shouldn't - 9 

it shouldn't take that long.  10 

    MS. ROCCO:  All right.  11 

    Because like as I mentioned last time 12 

at the last meeting I do have family situations.  13 

And I do need some answers for planning.  Also, what 14 

about -?  15 

    MR. STANTON:  Let me just - let me 16 

just add.  This is a proposed closure.  17 

    MS. ROCCO:  Sure.  18 

    MR. STANTON:  So if there was - if 19 

there was something in your question, I don't know 20 

what your questions were in your email.  If we 21 

wouldn’t know until there was a decision made, maybe 22 

that's why they waited.  But again, I'm only 23 

speculating.  But we can follow up on what your 24 

email is.  25 
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    MS. ROCCO:  I'm just wondering the 1 

timeframe for the - what the process was for that 2 

email that you guys set up.  Not my personal email. 3 

But I am sure I'm not the only one who has sent the 4 

DOC emails.  And I'm sure I'm not the only one in 5 

here with a lot of concerns.  And also I'm an acting 6 

counselor.  I am almost eight months in acting.  I 7 

had to take a two week break.  If we do close, what 8 

happens to me?  Do I have to go back as a CO?  Or is 9 

there a counselor position open?  Can I bid on that 10 

counselor position that's open at another 11 

institution?  12 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  What was the 13 

question?  14 

    MR. BICKELL:  What she's asking - she 15 

- it is hard to hear.  We apologize.   16 

    MS. ROCCO:  All right.  Sorry.  Hold 17 

on.  It might be easier without this.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  It might be.  19 

    What she's asking is, she's an acting 20 

counselor.  She wants to know that if she goes will 21 

she remain an acting counselor or not?  Can she bid 22 

on counselor or does she have to go back as a CO.  23 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Okay.  24 

    You're in - you're in a permanent 25 
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position as a correction officer, but you're an 1 

acting counselor?  2 

    MS. ROCCO:  Yes.  3 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Okay.  4 

    So you would be covered by a placement 5 

agreement that would be entered into with the PSCOA. 6 

So your placement would be as a correction officer.  7 

    MS. ROCCO:  Right.  8 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  You, going forward if 9 

there were an opening you could bid on a counselor 10 

position.  But you would not - you have no - you 11 

would not have placement rights as a counselor.  12 

    MS. ROCCO:  No, I understand that.  13 

What I'm saying is - all right.  Let's say I want to 14 

go to Waymart.  And they need three counselors.  15 

None of our counselors want to go there.  If our 16 

counselors are all filled in positions they want to 17 

be in and there's an open counselor position there. 18 

Before you fill it would the actors here have a 19 

chance to get into those positions elsewhere.  Is 20 

that easier?  21 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Yeah.  22 

    They would - you would be able to - if 23 

that job was bid, posted, you would be able to bid 24 

on it and go through it as an active competitive 25 
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process.  1 

    MS. ROCCO:  Okay.  2 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  I can't - I can't say 3 

that you would be given that counselor position at 4 

Waymart due to your acting status at Retreat.  I - 5 

that would not happen.  6 

    MS. ROCCO:  Okay.  Thank you.  7 

    MR. STANTON:  Well what we could do is 8 

we could monitor those positions to make sure the 9 

staff are aware.  If there's vacancies of counselors 10 

where someone might have the incentive to do that.  11 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Yes.  12 

    We would ensure that all the postings 13 

were distributed so that you would see that all of 14 

the positions that are available.  15 

    MS. ROCCO:  Okay.  All right.  Thank 16 

you.  I will see you guys later.  And I will chat 17 

with you then.  18 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Thank you.  19 

    MR. STANTON:  Thank you.  20 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Hi.  21 

    I am Susan Robachefski, CIVIA rep.  I 22 

have a question in terms of classification.  So the 23 

example I'll give you is we do understand we have 24 

four ABE teachers.  And as far as placements there 25 
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it goes by seniority among those ABE teachers.  But 1 

then we have certain positions in a classification 2 

where there's just one.  3 

    So I'll use our business occupation 4 

teacher as an example.  Would she have to go to - 5 

there's one opening currently at Coal Township.  Is 6 

she required to go to that institution simply by 7 

virtue of there being a current opening?  Or does 8 

she still get to choose something that may be more 9 

convenient to her home?  10 

    MR. STANTON:  Okay.  11 

    I think there's probably two - two 12 

things on that I want to comment on.  I don't - the 13 

first is the executive staff and the Bureau of 14 

Corrections Ed. would probably have to look at the - 15 

the educational programs that are being offered at 16 

Retreat and what they're going to do with those 17 

programs.  18 

    If they're going to move them to 19 

another facility or, you know, how that goes.  So I 20 

think there might be more placement options.  So if 21 

that program - if they were going to move it to 22 

Dallas, then there would be a placement opportunity 23 

there.  24 

    But I think it would depend on what 25 
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Corrections Ed. wants to do with that - that 1 

educational program.  The second answer I would say 2 

to that is it would really be dependent on what the 3 

agreement would be with the union to determine 4 

whether or not you're going to be allowed to be bid 5 

or be placed into a job title outside of your 6 

current job title.  7 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  No, it is her job 8 

title.  That's - that's what our concern is.  That 9 

there is an opening in the position she currently 10 

holds at one of the other six institutions.  But 11 

it's not the institution she wants to go to.  12 

    MR. STANTON:  Understood.  13 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  So will she be 14 

forced to take that one, because it is one of the 15 

six?  Or would she be able to get a position outside 16 

of her classification, say as an ABE teacher, which 17 

might place her closer to her home?  18 

    MR. STANTON:  And that's what I'm 19 

saying.  That it would depend on the agreement 20 

reached with CIVIA.  If there is language added to 21 

that agreement to allow for someone to be - to bid 22 

or to be placed into a position outside of their 23 

current classification.  24 

    So that's something that could be 25 
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brought to the table and could be discussed if we 1 

ever got to the point where we're doing a placement 2 

agreement.  But no, I wouldn't say that she would be 3 

forced to go to that position.  There's a lot of 4 

dynamics that would have to play out.  And that 5 

could be brought to the table and something that 6 

could be discussed.  7 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Okay.  8 

    Yeah, I'm only asking because I don't 9 

believe there is any language in our contract, 10 

because this generally is a rare thing that happens.  11 

    MR. STANTON:  Yeah.  12 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  So -.  13 

    MR. STANTON:  And maybe I - and maybe 14 

I should have clarified that.  These - these 15 

agreements - these placement agreements that I'm 16 

talking about are extra-contractual.  So those are 17 

processes that aren't specifically outlined in the 18 

current collective bargaining agreement.  19 

    So we have - in the past have reached 20 

agreements with the unions to do a placement process 21 

that is outside of the contract.  It doesn't, you 22 

know, involve all the bumping processes to address 23 

the specific employees that are impacted by - by 24 

closures.  25 
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    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Okay.  1 

    MR. STANTON:  So we try to make it as 2 

streamline and easy on the staff as possible.  3 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Okay.  All right.  4 

Thank you.  5 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Just another comment 6 

that Ty brought up at first was it could be once 7 

there is an analysis done, education might make a 8 

decision to open that similar program at another 9 

institution.  I don't know.  So when you're saying 10 

that right now the only option is Coal.  11 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Well -.  12 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  But there might be a 13 

decision by the Department of Education - the Bureau 14 

of Education might say that they need to have this 15 

educational program elsewhere.  16 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Well wait.  Let me 17 

clarify.  That program is currently offered 18 

everywhere.  19 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Okay.  20 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  It just so happens 21 

that Coal Township currently has a vacancy.  22 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Has the only vacancy. 23 

Understood.  24 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Right.  25 
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    So that's where we are concerned that 1 

she would have to go to somewhere because there is a 2 

current vacancy when it's not her first choice to go 3 

there.  So would she be able to instead be a 4 

different type of teacher somewhere else.  But it 5 

sounds like that's unclear at the moment.  They'll 6 

try their best to make -.  7 

    MR. STANTON:  I can't give a 8 

definitive answer.  I mean, I would need to know 9 

more of the details.  10 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Okay.  11 

    MR. STANTON:  And I'd be happy to talk 12 

to you later about that if you want to talk about 13 

more specifics.  But I think a lot of it would be 14 

dependent upon the language that's put in place, you 15 

know, in the agreement with CIVIA.  16 

    MS. ROBACHEFSKI:  Okay.  All right.  17 

Thank you.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  19 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  I just want to follow-20 

up on what Susan said.  I understand what she's 21 

saying it affects, you know, AFSCME members also.  I 22 

think what she is trying to get across and how we're 23 

getting conflicting answers.  Because I know that 24 

nothing's set in stone yet.  Take for instance the 25 
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LPNs.  There's five institutions, five openings, all 1 

2:00 to 10:00 shifts.  2 

    So does that mean that no matter what 3 

you're seniority, you're going to be placed in those 4 

positions because they're open?  That's what I think 5 

- just because there's an open position are the 6 

employees, no matter what their seniority is, what 7 

their first, second or third choices are, that's 8 

where you're going?  9 

    MR. STANTON:  Not - not necessarily.  10 

So in this case we would have to talk with 11 

healthcare to determine if there's a need to go over 12 

complement at the other facilities.  There could be 13 

needs and they might open up additional slots at 14 

other facilities.  So the existing vacancies are a 15 

good barometer of where placement opportunities are 16 

now.  But they're - they are not the final placement 17 

opportunities.  18 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  19 

    So getting back to Susan's question 20 

because we have talked at meetings about that.  If 21 

you're going by seniority, which I totally 22 

understand.  And there is a teacher opening here.  23 

And you want to go here, here and not there.  We're 24 

being told you're going there.  So are you going 25 
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least seniority first?  Are you going to go, you 1 

know, higher seniority, first seniority should get 2 

their first pick?  But they shouldn't be put 3 

someplace where they don't want to go.  It should be 4 

least seniority gets the place that's furthest away. 5 

Or whatever.  Do you know what I'm saying?  6 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yeah, I understand.  7 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  8 

    MR. BICKELL:  I think it's really 9 

important to remember that there's going to be a 10 

survey sent out.  And you're going to be asked what 11 

your preferences are.  12 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Correct.  13 

    MR. BICKELL:  So I think you need to - 14 

in the past we've - we've tried to ask employees to 15 

list everywhere that you would be willing to go.  16 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Correct, right.  17 

    MR. BICKELL:  Like as much as 18 

possible.  So I can't say that you wouldn't be 19 

reassigned there.  But that would be after it went 20 

through all the placement process.  21 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  And there's many steps 23 

to this - 24 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  So the list is 25 
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definitely going to -?  1 

    MR. BICKELL:  - because if the 2 

placement process doesn't work.  And then if that 3 

doesn't happen then we have to look at, you know, 4 

reassignment and then a potential furlough.  So 5 

there's a number of steps that we'd have to go 6 

through.  7 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  So there could be a 8 

potential furlough or -?  9 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well I can tell you when 10 

SCI Pittsburgh was closed - 11 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Uh-huh (yes).  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  - no staff were 13 

furloughed.  And when SCI Cresson and Greensburg 14 

were closed there were - there were three furloughs. 15 

But those were - those were employees that refused 16 

to accept the placement.  They filled out the 17 

placement.  They said I would like to go here, we 18 

offered it to them, they refused.  And they refused 19 

to take reassignments.  They refused all offers 20 

given to them.  21 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Uh-huh (yes).  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  So that was the only 23 

option.  24 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  25 
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    I just want to make sure I'm 1 

understanding.  So if we get this wish list, 2 

understanding three choices.  It could be someplace 3 

outside of those three choices that an employee is 4 

being placed if it goes by seniority.  Like the -.  5 

    MR. STANTON:  Again, we've got to - we 6 

really kind of have to wait to see what these 7 

agreements -.  They will - the agreements that are 8 

reached will address those scenarios.  9 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Right.  No, I 10 

understand.  It's just if you could understand where 11 

the employees are coming from.  It's very stressful. 12 

They're trying to figure out, like, what they're 13 

doing right now.  Especially like I said a lot of 14 

them are single parents.  They have kids.  They take 15 

care of a family member.  16 

    So they want to try to get an idea of 17 

some kind of idea of where they stand and where they 18 

could potentially be going.  An LPN could be going 19 

an hour and 47 minutes away from her home, away from 20 

here.  She's figured it out because she's least in - 21 

you know, least seniority.  An hour and 47 minutes 22 

on a good day, no snow, no nothing.  23 

    That's a lot.  And that's a 2:00 to 24 

10:00 shift.  So you know, people are just - they 25 
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don't know -.  I know there's no definite answers 1 

given yet.  But if consideration, again, could be 2 

taken, you know.  That that could be a factor.  3 

    MR. OPPMAN:  I'll make a comment on 4 

that.  I don't - I'm not going to be able to comment 5 

on individual situations.  6 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  7 

    MR. OPPMAN:  But we do right now, for 8 

instance, roughly almost 400 staff members work at 9 

Retreat - 10 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Uh-huh (yes).  11 

    MR. OPPMAN:  - as of our last report. 12 

We have roughly about 179 vacancies in the 13 

northeast.  There - there is going to be some 14 

institutions.  And I'll speak more to the larger 15 

classifications where we have multiple staff.  Like 16 

your correctional office, your maintenance staff.  17 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Right.  18 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Some of that is - it's 19 

unrealistic to think that everybody's going to have 20 

to get plugged into a slot, because there aren't 21 

going to be enough vacancies.  Where there is going 22 

to be some stacking.  And we'll try to mitigate that 23 

and put it where there's, you know, where 24 

operationally it's needed to a point.  25 
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    MS. TOMASELLI:  Right.  1 

    MR. OPPMAN:  But obviously there's 2 

staff considerations as well.  3 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  4 

    MR. OPPMAN:  With personal preference, 5 

but there's not that many vacancies to begin with.  6 

So with those larger classifications we will have 7 

some - some stacking above complement.  8 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  9 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Because it's - we just 10 

don’t have the vacancies as of now.  And nor will we 11 

in two months.  I can't predict that.  12 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  13 

    Can you - can you assure us there's no 14 

moving of the complements going on currently before 15 

a decision is made in the other institutions?  Is 16 

there shifting of complements already?  17 

    MR. STANTON:  Shifting - what do you - 18 

what do you mean by shifting of complements?  19 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Like are they filling 20 

positions inside these five institutions to fill, 21 

like, dayshift positions.  This, this, that.  You 22 

know.  23 

    MR. STANTON:  Well we did implement a 24 

hiring freeze at the six.  But we have on a few 25 
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occasions allowed some critical vacancies to be 1 

filled just because we need those -.  2 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  She probably means 3 

more like bids.  Like daylight shift, mid shifts.  4 

    MR. STANTON:  Oh.  I don’t think 5 

there's been any freeze on bids or shifts at any of 6 

the other facilities.  7 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  8 

    So there's no - there's no, say, 9 

reclassifying -.  Not reclassifying.  But taken 10 

someone from a current position to a different 11 

position to fill those positions to get a better 12 

placement someplace else.  That's not happening?  I 13 

just want to make sure of that.  Because that's what 14 

we're hearing.  And again I'm just -.  15 

    MR. OPPMAN:  You're asking if 16 

positions are being reclassified?  17 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  No, no, no.  No.  18 

    Is there shifting of employees to 19 

different positions to fill positions so they have a 20 

better - a better placement someplace else.  21 

    MR. STANTON:  I guess you're - I think 22 

you're asking are they - are they taking their 23 

existing complement and moving it around to - 24 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Correct.  Right.  25 
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    MR. STANTON:  - to balance out their 1 

shifts?  2 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Are they shifting the 3 

complement around.  Uh-huh (yes).  4 

    MR. STANTON:  Yes, they are.  I'm sure 5 

- I would imagine they are balancing out their 6 

complements to make sure they have coverage.  7 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  If they're - if 8 

they're shifting their complement around that means 9 

they're hiring people, or moving people from the 10 

classification to a different classification?  11 

    MR. STANTON:  No, no.  12 

    I am not talking - neither of those.  13 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  14 

    MR. STANTON:  What I'm - what I - what 15 

I thought you were talking about is say, for 16 

example, are they moving LPNs from 6:00 to 2:00 to 17 

2:00 to 10:00 to balance it.  I'm sure that is 18 

happening.  19 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Right.  20 

    MR. STANTON:  Are they reclassifying 21 

people into those jobs?  I don't - not without 22 

complement control approval.  And it's only - no, 23 

it's not happening.  And we've only approved 24 

critical vacancies to be filled - 25 
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    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  1 

    MR. STANTON:  - at those facilities.  2 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  And again, hearsay 3 

that people might be hearing that that is happening. 4 

And I just wanted to address it and be heard.  5 

    MR. OPPMAN:  No.  6 

    If they - if they need, as Ty 7 

mentioned, if they're moving a nurse from one shift 8 

to another for operational needs, they might be 9 

doing that.  But they're not shifting positions and 10 

reclassing to fill vacancies, per se.  No, we're 11 

holding all the vacancies.  Now what they do in one 12 

shift to another for operational need is - is not - 13 

is - we haven't given direction on that.  Because 14 

we've got to let the SCIs operate how they need be.  15 

    MS. TOMASELLI:  Okay.  All right.  16 

Thank you.  Hopefully you won't see me again up 17 

here.  18 

    MR. WHEELER:  Hey, gentlemen, thank 19 

you.  My name is Chris Wheeler.  And this is - this 20 

is hard for us.  And you know that.  And I know it's 21 

hard for you as well.  It's hard for our leadership 22 

here.  Now let me - let me just -.  I guess my 23 

question is this.  There were some hot mic comments. 24 

I'm not going to disparage anybody.  25 
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    And you all know about that.  Now, 1 

when those comments were made morale around here 2 

just tanked.  It did on the blocks.  It did 3 

throughout the institution.  And time went on and it 4 

kind of brought us all together, really, to maybe 5 

want to fight.  You know, fight to keep the place 6 

open.  And I guess my question is, what's going to 7 

change this time?  Is there - is it worth the fight? 8 

You know what I mean?  And I'm not putting you down. 9 

I'm really not.  I mean is it - is there a chance 10 

here?  11 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well, I mean, that's a 12 

very fair question.  13 

    MR. WHEELER:  And that was really, 14 

really hard to take.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yeah, I -.  16 

    MR. WHEELER:  And I know you know 17 

that.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  I know that.  19 

    You know, the secretary's comments, 20 

you know, were addressed.  He publically apologized. 21 

With that being said, the Governor removed him from 22 

the process completely.  He appointed me to oversee 23 

the Act 133.  One of the things that we didn't do 24 

the first round was doing what we're doing now.  25 
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This is one thing that we decided - personally I 1 

decided I wanted to come up here and see the staff 2 

of Retreat, talk to Retreat and hear what Retreat 3 

has to say.  4 

    How this will work, to be honest, is 5 

the report will - you know, we'll get all this 6 

information that we're getting.  We're taking your 7 

comments now.  There will be a report that will be 8 

compiled.  And then once that report is put together 9 

it will be submitted.  And then a decision will be 10 

made on whether a closure will happen or not.  11 

    MR. WHEELER:  All right.  12 

    I appreciate you time.  Thank you.  13 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well thank you for 14 

coming up.  I appreciate that.  Come on up here.  I 15 

can't hear you, ma'am.  16 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  You said the report 17 

will be compiled and it will be submitted.  Who will 18 

it be submitted to?   If it's submitted to - 19 

    MR. BICKELL:  By - by -.  20 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  - Secretary     21 

Wetzel -.  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  No.  By Act 133, the 23 

report after it is approved, and I will be the 24 

approver of the report.  It will go to the Governor 25 
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and it will go to the majority and minority leader 1 

of the house and senate.  That's where the report 2 

will go.  3 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  Okay.  4 

    MR. BICKELL:  And then a decision will 5 

be made.  Wetzel will have - will not see this 6 

report until it's made public like everybody else 7 

will.  We are going to keep this thing as 8 

transparent as we possibly can.  And I - he will not 9 

see the report until it's made public.  10 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  Okay.  11 

    Because there was some rumblings.  And 12 

I overheard a lot of it.  That, you know, basically 13 

you are the right hand man to him at the time that 14 

that comment was made.  And basically that you are 15 

just the yes man for him.  16 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well -.  17 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  That's - that's 18 

what, you know, was being said by -.  19 

    MR. BICKELL:  Which - which comment 20 

are you referring to, ma'am?  21 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  The comments that 22 

Secretary Wetzel made that it is what it is, and I 23 

hate doing this, MOFO.  That MOFO word, you know, 24 

that I'm not going to say right now.  25 
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    MR. BICKELL:  Yeah.  That's fine.  1 

Yeah.  He did say that to me.  You are correct.  2 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  And that since you 3 

were appointed in place of him to carry on with this 4 

second lane process or the secondary process.  That 5 

it wouldn't - you wouldn't just be his yes man.  6 

Because you were his second guy or his guy or his 7 

dude or whatever.  And that was the understanding 8 

amongst, as you can see by the clapping.  Everybody 9 

had that same thought.  And so now that you were 10 

being appointed to be the head guy now instead of 11 

him.  How would anything change?  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well I can tell you 13 

this.  That I personally met with the Governor.  The 14 

Governor told me about the transparency of this.  15 

And what he expected of me and what he expected of 16 

the Act 133.  And I am going to follow Act 133.  And 17 

- and file the report as the information comes in 18 

and what we put together.  Again, I don't talk to 19 

the secretary at all concerning this process.  At 20 

all.  And we will - that decision will be based on 21 

as we get the report and we put that report together 22 

and then we will follow, as I said earlier, Act 133.  23 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  Will that report be 24 

transparent to us employees?  25 

Attachment G



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

41 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes.  1 

    You will see every word that has been 2 

said at every meet that we ever held.  And you will 3 

be able to review that.  The report will be made 4 

public.  Yes, ma'am.  5 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  Okay.  6 

    And there's no timeframe, per se, on 7 

that?  Other than the four months or, well, I    8 

guess -?  9 

    MR. BICKELL:  Right.  10 

    What - what will happen is, again, as 11 

we close down on these meetings, we're getting all 12 

the information from the stakeholders.  You know, 13 

some of the other sister agencies that are out 14 

there.  We'll - we'll put in their - their reports, 15 

which we'll compile.  I know there was talk of being 16 

in the first week of December.  It will not be out 17 

in the first week of December.  18 

    Okay?  We're going to - it will come 19 

out when I am satisfied that this report is 20 

thorough.  And I'm satisfied that it's ready to be 21 

to be sent to the Governor.  That's when the report 22 

will come out.  With that being said.  As I heard 23 

one of the - one of the other staff members that 24 

came up here.  25 
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    We're not going to hang this over 1 

people's heads forever either.  We get it, I get it. 2 

This is - this is not easy on staff.  It's 3 

stressful.  There's a lot of things going on in 4 

people's lives.  And you know, we need to get our 5 

information and make our decision.  But we don't 6 

want to rush in doing it.  I want to be very, very 7 

thorough as we do this.  8 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  Okay.  9 

    MR. BICKELL:  I hope that answers your 10 

question, ma'am.  11 

    MS. KICHILINSLY:  It does.  Thank you.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  All right.  Thank you.  13 

    MR. ELLSEY:  I don't really - do I 14 

need to use this microphone?  All right.  Now I've 15 

been deployed to two hot zones.  I was a sergeant in 16 

the Army.  I was responsible for eight troops.  I 17 

was deployed to two hot zones.  So I know what it's 18 

like to go somewhere behind walls.  Right?  And 19 

people mean something to you.  20 

    When I come in here, every single 21 

person in here I respect.  Because when they come in 22 

here, all we have are keys and a microphone.  And 23 

what I think ya'll and everybody who is - whoever is 24 

making this decision need to understand is that 25 
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we're not a number.  We're people.  We're people 1 

with families.  Right?  2 

    So whatever choice you decide to make 3 

or whatever, make it.  Don't have us sitting around 4 

here.  I have two - I have two girls.  Everybody 5 

here has family.  We have things we need to do.  6 

Okay?  Whatever decision you make.  Make it.  7 

Because my name is not 675700.  My name is Daryl 8 

Ellsey.  9 

    I am a person, just like everybody 10 

else in here.  So don't consider moving me just 11 

because you want to move me?  Everybody in here is 12 

somebody.  We're not a number.  So don't just move 13 

us.  Don't just think of us as pawns.  We come in 14 

here and we do a job every day.  And the job ain't 15 

easy.  And the longer you take, the harder this job 16 

gets.  So make the decision and get it over with.  17 

Thank you.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  Thank you.  19 

    MS. LETIZY:  I'm going to follow up on 20 

that one with you.  I'm going to follow up with that 21 

one on you.  But I want to - I'm going to face out 22 

this way.  I'm going to face you guys and I'm going 23 

to face out this way.  24 

    MR. BICKELL:  That's fine.  25 

Attachment G



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

44 

    MS. LETIZY:  I was sitting at lunch 1 

today and I just - this just - where did it go to?  2 

This all just came to my mind and it's exactly the 3 

same as he has to say.  I just want to say good 4 

afternoon everybody.  Hello.  I am number 523031.  I 5 

am a wife.  I am a mother.  I am a grandmother.  I 6 

am a sister.  I am an aunt.  I am a friend.  I am a 7 

coworker at SCI Retreat.  8 

    I am a part of a whole family.  Not 9 

just an employee number.  Please consider me, my 10 

family and my extended SCI Retreat family when 11 

making this final decision.  It will be a hardship 12 

for all of us.  Taking time away from our family 13 

home lives.  It will be emotionally, physically, 14 

financially damaging to each and every one of us.  15 

At SCI Retreat, the surrounding communities and for 16 

Luzerne County.  17 

    Just a little though and a great big 18 

plea when finalizing this tough decision.  To those 19 

who know me, to those who I have shared my last 18 20 

years with.  To those who I love, one special way or 21 

another.  The pleasure has been all mine.  And to 22 

them I am known as Linda Michelle Simone Letizy.  23 

Not just number 523031.  So I say thank you.  And 24 

may God Bless all of us on this journey that we call 25 
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life.  And may you guys make the right decision.  1 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  2 

    MR. GRUUHN:  The question that I have 3 

is actually a number question.  What is the economic 4 

loss report threshold that we're willing to accept 5 

for this area to allow this place to close?  What's 6 

the number?  What's that dollar number that you're 7 

willing to put the families of this area through to 8 

close this place between the sewer authority, the 9 

raising the taxes?  What is that number that you, 10 

gentlemen, are willing to deal with?  That's going 11 

to be passed along to us.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  That number will be 13 

provided in the final report.  We don't - to be real 14 

honest we're Corrections.  We don't really have the 15 

economic impact.  However, that will - one of the 16 

sister agencies will be providing that information 17 

in the final report.  18 

    MR. GRUUHN:  So there's a threshold.  19 

And if we meet that threshold this place won't   20 

close - 21 

    MR. BICKELL:  I can't -.  22 

    MR. GRUUHN:  - or it will close - 23 

    MR. BICKELL:  I don't - I don't -.  24 

    MR. GRUUHN:  - or it doesn't make a 25 
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difference?  1 

    MR. BICKELL:  I don't know that 2 

answer.  3 

    MR. GRUUHN:  You don't have that 4 

answer?  5 

    MR. BICKELL:  I haven't seen - I 6 

haven't seen the numbers yet.  So I can't really 7 

make a - you know.  8 

    MR. GRUUHN:  Thank you.  9 

    MR. BICKELL:  An honest question - 10 

answer to that.  11 

    MR. GRUUHN:  Thank you.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  You're welcome.  13 

    MR. O'BRIEN:  Thank you.  All right.  14 

    My name is Don O'Brien.  I'm actually 15 

not a state employee.  I'm a contractor as a 16 

physician assistant.  I worked here for the last ten 17 

years, 16 years in the Department of Corrections.  I 18 

am an independent voter.  My understanding is that 19 

numbers have been bantered around.  That there was a 20 

$140 million deficit in the budget.  21 

    And I suspect that the Governor has 22 

met the department heads or whatever they're 23 

referred to.  And said okay, we need to cut money in 24 

each department or certain departments in order to 25 
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try to settle the budget.  I have to wonder how much 1 

of this though might be the Governor wants a gas 2 

extraction tax.  He's not getting it from one party.  3 

    Is that an underlying cut as saying 4 

well if I get my $140 million out of the gas 5 

companies we don't have to cut Department of 6 

Corrections, Department of Health Services 7 

facilities?  There is an undercurrent of Luzerne 8 

County swung the election to Republicans in the last 9 

presidential election.  Is this a Democratic 10 

Governor putting it to Luzerne County?  And I think 11 

that's one of the unstated concerns that's been 12 

bouncing around a little bit.  13 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well I can't confirm 14 

that - your theory.  15 

    MR. O'BRIEN:  Was Department of 16 

Corrections told you have to cut X amount of 17 

dollars?  The figures that have come out in the 18 

paper were if we shut Retreat down we can save $20 19 

million the first year, $40 million the second year.  20 

    If you consider that approximately 80 21 

percent of thereabouts of the value - of the cost of 22 

operating Retreat is employment, the salaries of the 23 

employees who are just going to be redistributed 24 

somewhere else within the DOC.  That number seems 25 
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extremely high for the amount of money that you 1 

would save by shutting down Retreat.  2 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Look.  3 

    What this comes down to, this is not 4 

about the people working here.  I mean everyone 5 

here, you do a fantastic job.  This is like - this 6 

is basically one of the worst and the last things 7 

anybody in my position or anybody else at this table 8 

wants to do.  Is to - is to close down a prison.  I 9 

mean the staff do a fantastic job.  10 

    What this comes down to of an 11 

appropriation, the funding that we received was 12 

inadequate for us to sustain ourselves with the 13 

proper safety security programs, operational needs, 14 

maintenance, the variety of things that we need to 15 

operate.  And we have a declining population.  So 16 

our appropriate - what we were told was we needed to 17 

find a way to make budget.  18 

    And that's a large number that just a 19 

prison by itself is not going to do.  It's a variety 20 

of things that we had to look at.  And trust me, I 21 

flipped over every stone that I could possibly flip 22 

over in trying to find ways to make budget.  But at 23 

the end of the day it is - it is a difficult 24 

decision.  And it is not something that we take 25 
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lightly.  1 

    We understand the economic impact to 2 

the area.  It - I could pick every - just about 3 

every prison I'm going to look at, I'm looking at 4 

Fayette County, Clearfield County, Wayne County, 5 

Somerset County.  Very rural areas where this is a 6 

very important job.  And it's - it's - it makes it 7 

very difficult.  It really does.  8 

    But it's really about the lack of 9 

appropriations over the last two years that made it 10 

this difficult where it's one of the things we 11 

looked at.  We're closing housing units.  We closed 12 

outside units.  We've done a variety of things.  But 13 

it's - eventually it's a push to bring down a $2.6 14 

billion budget that continues to grow.  15 

    And we get a lot of heat for it.  And 16 

this is - this is one of many steps that we're 17 

looking to take to get within our appropriation.  18 

    MR. O'BRIEN:  Thank you.  19 

    MR. GIDDANO:  I am Guy Giddano.  I was 20 

- I've been serving since 2001 up in SCI Mahanoy and 21 

then also here.  I guess my question is this.  Is 22 

how does - how did SCI Retreat wind up one of the 23 

prisons that was being considered to be closed?  And 24 

the other thing is, I remember Secretary Beard way 25 
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back in the day said is if we were a business, we're 1 

turning out a lousy product.  2 

    And I think SCI Retreat is a 3 

specialized prison.  And I think we've turned out a 4 

wonderful product here.  I think that our different 5 

programs that we have going on, just by watching 6 

those programs we have the BMU and the DTU.  And 7 

those folks that run those programs, they put up 8 

with a lot of crap.  And but yet most of those 9 

inmates are running around in population now because 10 

of their excellent work.  11 

    And I guess that's the hardest part 12 

for all of us.  And I am a contracted chaplain.  The 13 

DOC has no obligation towards me at all.  But I'm 14 

okay with that.  But the thing of it is, I think 15 

that that should be taken into consideration.  That 16 

SCI Retreat is different.  And I was wondering.  Why 17 

was SCI Retreat considered?   18 

    And why, if - if we're - if we're 19 

trying to save money - I've been down to SCI 20 

Chester.  It's close to Phoenix.  Nobody would have 21 

to relocate or anything like that.  The real estate 22 

there, Kimberly Clark is right there, the casinos 23 

are right there.  That's a multi-million dollar if 24 

not millions of dollar piece of property.  Plus - 25 
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plus as I was thinking about this.  1 

    You know, a lot of our - our excellent 2 

men from here and women from here went to Phoenix to 3 

help open that place.  Took our people from here to 4 

there.  Does that mean that there isn't a right 5 

amount of people there to be able to sustain those 6 

places in those area?  Why were they taken from here 7 

to go there to help out?  Because I think one of the 8 

reasons is that we have an excellent staff here.  We 9 

have excellent leadership.  10 

    Everybody's prison that they work at 11 

feels that their prison is the best.  And I served 12 

at SCI Mahanoy, I thought that was the best when I 13 

was there.  When I got here, this is so different.  14 

And the inmates here, because I think one of our 15 

objectives is we're Department of Corrections.  16 

    And our objectives is for these men to 17 

get corrected.  And I think SCI Retreat is doing an 18 

excellent job.  And there's a - there's a great 19 

group of people here.  And I just hope that in the 20 

event that the place does close, that the folks that 21 

won't be so disgruntled that where they do wind up, 22 

they're just not going to care.  23 

    Because I've watched people here, 24 

including myself in our department, put their blood, 25 
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sweat and tears in here.  Not just to get a paycheck 1 

or for the benefits.  But also to make this place 2 

and our community a better place to live.  Thank you 3 

so much.  4 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  5 

    MR. MODRASK:  Hi.  I'm Steven Modrask 6 

and I'm an activities specialist here at Retreat.  A 7 

question for you is when Pittsburgh was closed, what 8 

was the actual savings in costs?  9 

    MR. OPPMAN:  What was the full 10 

savings?  11 

    MR. MODRASK:  When - yeah.  What was 12 

the full savings in cost?  13 

    MR. OPPMAN:  I believe Pittsburgh 14 

operated close to about $80 million - I'm going to 15 

say about $85 million.  In that range.  Pittsburgh 16 

had certain programs that had to be moved, such as 17 

an oncology program, a hemophilia program and a - it 18 

had a large infirmary with dedicated officers for 19 

outside hospitals for the Allegheny - the Allegheny 20 

General Hospital and UPMC.  A lot of - a lot of 21 

tertiary care that people had to go to Pittsburgh 22 

for.  So there was a portion of the Pittsburgh 23 

operations that we had to reassign somewhere.  It 24 

just didn't go away.  25 
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    MR. MODRASK:  So there's really no 1 

calculations on how much money was saved?  2 

    MR. OPPMAN:  I couldn't give you a 3 

number right - I couldn’t give you a number right 4 

here.  But yes, there would be savings.  Because we 5 

no longer - that facility is no longer operating.  6 

So there is a certain amount automatically of 7 

operational costs and the need for a certain amount 8 

of personnel.   9 

    There are - there is a contingent of 10 

correctional officers still that we have to use for 11 

the outside hospital posts in that area where they 12 

ran at least 13 posts per day for that.  So it's not 13 

the whole $80 million - when I say $85 million.  But 14 

it would be I would say at least 75 percent of that.  15 

    MR. MODRASK:  Okay.  16 

    And then I'm just wondering what the 17 

projections are.  What they expect to save by 18 

closing us, if they do.  19 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Well it all depends on 20 

the attrition rate of the staff in the area, 21 

placement in the area, if they're stacking in the - 22 

you know, certain facilities.  It's hard to 23 

pinpoint.  The calculations would have been if it's 24 

- it runs at about $56 million.  You have mothball 25 
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costs, because we'll most likely be deemed by DGS to 1 

have to maintain some level of security and 2 

maintenance to the facility until if - if they were 3 

to sell it to someone else.  4 

    So you have probably I'd say about $2 5 

million in mothball, maybe a million and a half in 6 

mothball costs.  But the rest of it, normally we 7 

estimate half a year at $20 million even though it's 8 

$56 million.  Because you're - you're going to have 9 

additional staff and you're also going to have 10 

mothballing costs to go with that.  11 

    MR. MODRASK:  So do you think we 12 

should -.  13 

    MR. OPPMAN:  That's where the $20 14 

million mark came out.  15 

    MR. MODRASK:  Do you think those 16 

calculations should be done before they close the 17 

facility or after they close the facility?  18 

    MR. OPPMAN:  They'll have to be 19 

redone.  This is when you're making plans.  If 20 

you're saying, look, we're proposing this.  If it 21 

was proposed at the beginning of the year, that's 22 

what the savings would be.  If it happens at the end 23 

of the year.  That's the savings.  24 

    I'll be honest, that appropriation 25 
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that we have right now, that deficit, I'm not going 1 

to find $140 million regardless if Retreat closes or 2 

anything else happens.  It's whether or not the 3 

legislature is going to approve us that kind of 4 

money next year to carry that deficit.  The deficit 5 

we're carrying from last year is $83 million.  6 

    So that's just - that's a big chunk 7 

coming.  And we cannot continue to operate with 8 

those kind of deficits without a supplemental.  We 9 

asked for a supplemental.  We were promised $50 10 

million.  At the end of the day they gave us $10 11 

million.  And not all of that is SCI.  $5 million of 12 

that was for the medical fund.  13 

    Just for Hep C treatment where we had 14 

a shortfall.  So I can't say that we're going to be 15 

able to meet that $140 million.  Nor could I ever 16 

predict the exact amount of savings that any one 17 

institution is going to provide.  18 

    MR. MODRASK:  Okay.  19 

    Since - from what I'm reading, since 20 

2012 there's been $4.2 million taken out of the 21 

gasoline tax revenues to pay the state police.  So 22 

basically while they do a tremendous job, and I 23 

would never take anything away from the state 24 

police.  It's okay to arrest those people.  But now 25 
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we have to look at getting rid of a place that we 1 

house them.  2 

    I mean that's - I kind of look at it I 3 

see 97 percent capacity.  I see county jails that 4 

are overflowing.  And we're saying we're going to 5 

close this facility because - because it makes 6 

financial sense.  Financial sense does mean a lot.  7 

But I don't see this as being any less important 8 

than anyplace else.  That's one.  9 

    Number two, there's been concern with 10 

some of the people that I work with.  For example, 11 

I'm going to kind of pin you guys down with this.  12 

If I'd been here 20 years and have worked myself up 13 

to what I prefer a preferred shift, and let's say 14 

it's day shift.  And now I transfer to another 15 

facility where they have a full contingent of staff 16 

on dayshift, but they have an opening on second 17 

shift.  Somebody's been there for four five years.  18 

Does that mean I bump them and now they're at second 19 

shift and mad at me because I come to that facility? 20 

What's going to happen in terms of that?  21 

    MR. STANTON:  I think in the past in 22 

some of the placement agreements, shift assignment - 23 

initial shift assignment has been addressed.  So 24 

that's something that can be discussed when we start 25 
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working on these - if we start working on these 1 

placement agreements.  2 

    MR. MODRASK:  Okay.  3 

    I was just kind of wondering - those 4 

who don't remember history are condemned to repeat 5 

it.  I was wondering what had happened at other 6 

facilities with that.  You know, a little bit more 7 

specific.  For example, I work here.  I am - let 8 

just say I'm dayshift.  Now I transfer to another 9 

facility.  There is a guy there with less seniority. 10 

He's days.  But I want days.  What happens?  11 

    MR. STANTON:  I think - like I said, I 12 

can't remember the specific language in some of the 13 

prior placement agreements.  But I think - I believe 14 

that there were a few of the agreements where you 15 

were - if you were a dayshift and you transferred 16 

you stayed on dayshift for at least a certain amount 17 

of time.  I can't - I can't remember specifically.  18 

    We have all of those prior agreements 19 

and we can review them.  I don't think - I mean I 20 

don't think there would be a provision to bump 21 

somebody out of their shift if there wasn't another 22 

shift vacancy.  But those are all issues that are 23 

outlined in the contracts.  So we'd have to look at 24 

those specific scenarios.  And then apply it next to 25 
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the placement agreements to see what's appropriate.  1 

    MR. MODRASK:  And again, going back to 2 

what Rocco said.  That's very important so we can 3 

plan our lives.  While I enjoy my job here and I 4 

really enjoy the people that I work with, more than 5 

anything else.  I don't live to work.  I work to 6 

live, so -.  Thanks.  If you can get back to us and 7 

let us know what's happened, I'd appreciate it.  8 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  9 

    Just real quick.  Is the 2:00 to 10:00 10 

shift going to be coming on?  Okay.  11 

    MR. CRAWFORD:  Good afternoon.  I'm 12 

Keith Crawford.  I am the only vocational teacher 13 

here at Retreat.  I am going to ask you a question. 14 

And I am going to base it, basically, on the safety 15 

aspect of things.  Now you're saying by closing 16 

Retreat you'll be running at roughly 98 percent 17 

capacity then.  18 

    Correct?  For the whole state?  By 19 

closing Retreat and moving inmates around you'll be 20 

roughly at 98 percent capacity.  Correct?  And we 21 

have around, what, 1,100 inmates?  Is there a plan 22 

of action on the safety side of things that if there 23 

were an uptake in prison population, how are you 24 

going to address that?  25 
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    If there is a huge overflow.  Because 1 

let's face it, 2005 Pittsburgh was closed.  2007, 2 

Pittsburgh had to reopen because of an overflow.  3 

And they had roughly around 1,950 at the time.  So I 4 

just want to know, is there going to be a plan of 5 

action of how to cover the overflow?  6 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes.  7 

    If that happens we will have a plan of 8 

action.  As of probably a week ago when I looked.  9 

We have approximately right now in the department 10 

approximately 1,630 male general population beds 11 

available.  And approximately 1,200 to 1,300 male 12 

specialized beds available.  But yes, if in fact we 13 

start observing a population increase, we will 14 

address that.  15 

    MR. CRAWFORD:  So roughly -?  16 

    MR. BICKELL:  To answer - to answer 17 

your question.  And I'm sorry to interrupt you.  18 

    MR. CRAWFORD:  That's all right.  19 

    MR. BICKELL:  But to answer your 20 

question.  Safety of our staff is at the forefront 21 

of my career.  As most of you know, I started as a 22 

correctional officer and worked my way through the 23 

ranks.  So I'm very cognizant of the safety of each 24 

and every staff member at every institution.  25 
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    MR. CRAWFORD:  Okay.  1 

    So part of that, if it - if it were 2 

required to reopen an old facility that was shut 3 

down.  What's the estimated cost of that?  4 

    MR. BICKELL:  I don't think we have 5 

that right now.  6 

    MR. CRAWFORD:  I mean -.  7 

    MR. BICKELL:  I mean, that's something 8 

we'd have to look at.  You know, we don't have - 9 

we're not looking at that right now.  10 

    MR. CRAWFORD:  Okay.  All right.  11 

Thanks.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  All right.  Thank you.  13 

    MS. ROCCO:  I'm sorry.  I have one 14 

more thing.  I'm going to assume we can speak freely 15 

here.  16 

    MR. BICKELL:  We can't hear you, 17 

ma'am.  18 

    MS. ROCCO:  Sorry.  19 

    I am going to assume we can speak 20 

freely here within an extent without have to worry 21 

about retaliation and losing jobs and stuff.  So my 22 

question is.  If I as a CO1 walked into Ms. Mason's 23 

office and said yo, MOFO, this sucks.  I would 24 

automatically lose my job.  I would never do that.  25 
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I love Ms. Mason, she's a great boss.  1 

    Sorry I had to use you.  But if you 2 

Google Pennsylvania DOC.  Who's the first face that 3 

pops up on your screen?  It is John Wetzel.  John 4 

Wetzel still has his job.  He is still the leader of 5 

all of us.  He is your boss, my boss, everybody's 6 

boss here.  And how do you expect us under this 7 

stress with our boss who is out there making a fool 8 

of our whole - the whole department.  9 

    To sit here and take anything 10 

seriously, when the whole - nobody in Pennsylvania 11 

is taking us seriously right now.  And how can you 12 

hold me - how can you hold me to a standard that the 13 

top person in the whole department is not held to?  14 

Because I know damn well if I said any of what he 15 

said to my boss, and it could be in her office, 16 

closed doors, just me and her.  17 

    I would never disrespect her like 18 

that.  But he disrespected every single one of us on 19 

the news.  The whole United States seen it.  This 20 

was not just seen in Pennsylvania.  I hate to tell 21 

you, folks.  Why is he more special than us?  And I 22 

guarantee you right there if he lost his job, like 23 

any one of us would, we would see three figures 24 

easily right there.  25 

Attachment G



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

62 

    MR. PRICE:  Gentlemen, my name's Matt 1 

Price.  I've been doing this for 15 years.  And I 2 

keep hearing numbers, numbers, numbers.  And Mr. 3 

Bickell, you just said about coming through the 4 

ranks and our safety and everything.  With all due 5 

respect, does this boil down to the dollar or our 6 

safety?  That's all I've got.  7 

    MR. BICKELL:  Anyone else?  All right. 8 

Well I appreciate everybody coming in -.  9 

    MS. ARNOSKI:  Good afternoon, 10 

gentlemen.  Thank you for coming in here.  My name 11 

is Debbie Arnoski - Debbie Arnoski.  And I am the 12 

employment coordinator here at SCI Retreat.  We've 13 

been talking a lot about what Mr. - what Secretary 14 

Wetzel has to say here.  15 

    And I did a little bit of research on 16 

things that Secretary Wetzel had to talk about with 17 

regard to the DOC.  So let me quote some of 18 

Secretary Wetzel's supposedly better words.  19 

According to his fiscal year '19-'20 budget 20 

testimony he documented that prison populations have 21 

reduced for five consecutive years.  22 

    As of December 2018 the DOC population 23 

decreased by 2.2 percent.  As of September 2019 24 

that's now at 3.5 percent.  With the 2018 decrease 25 
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that's the largest one year population drop in 1 

Department history.  He further noted that although 2 

the DOC population has declined the Board of Parole 3 

and Probation population steadily increases.  4 

    That's because we're putting more of 5 

them out on the street.  When we went into the 2012 6 

Act where we put in the Justice Reinvestment 7 

initiative Act in the JRI that changed things for 8 

us.  That slowed down what the population is coming 9 

into our facilities.  And now we're putting more of 10 

them out on the streets.  11 

    That's why the Board of Parole and 12 

Probation numbers are going up.  Part of what else 13 

he has said.  According to the 2019-2020 budget 14 

testimony that he gave, the DOC has evaded a 26.8 15 

percent increase in population and the budget became 16 

23.3 percent lower than it would have been without 17 

the Justice Reinvestment Initiative and other 18 

efficiencies that we are putting in place.  19 

    So if we're working more efficiently, 20 

why is it that budget demands need to close yet 21 

another state correctional facility?  Is the DOC 22 

where the budget - state budget, budgetary issues 23 

lie?  Or are we a political alternative to other 24 

unresolved political budgetary issues?  That's what 25 
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I want to know.  1 

    Some of the other things that I want 2 

to repeat that Secretary Wetzel says, and I quote 3 

during Secretary Wetzel's 2015-2016 budget year 4 

recommendation.  Quote, regardless of the size of a 5 

correctional system, it is only as strong as the 6 

staff members who literally risk their lives 7 

entering our facilities.  8 

    Supporting those staff members on a 9 

day to day basis is critical, unquote.  Do not 10 

weaken the system by failing to practice what you 11 

preach.  Keep SCI Retreat open and examine the 12 

issues and concerns in full perspective and with 13 

open minds.  Thank you.  14 

    MR. BLAZICK:  Gentlemen, my name is 15 

Jerry Blazick.  I'm also a part-time mental health 16 

worker.  And the weekends I work, I have to go out 17 

into the community and 302 and 201 people into in-18 

patient care facilities across the state.  We have 19 

about probably 25 to 35 operating adult facilities 20 

across the state where I have to try to get them a 21 

bed.  Many times I can't get them a bed.  22 

    During my week I also visit county 23 

jails in our local area to assess parolees who have 24 

been brought into the county level.  I bring all 25 
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this up because this is obviously a C and D 1 

disability prison.  I know we don’t have many of 2 

them.  And there is this umbrella of diagnosis that 3 

is just ballooning.  4 

    If anyone's ever been here and tried 5 

to work with a family member or a friend to get them 6 

mental healthcare, it's - good luck.  You're not 7 

going to see a doctor for months.  You're not going 8 

to get outpatient for months.  We're probably not 9 

going to be able to get you a bed.  So I just - 10 

governments got to work efficiently together.  11 

    And just to sit here and say the DOC's 12 

got to save this part while Human Services is going 13 

to do what?  They're not going to bed them.  And 14 

then we're going to let our parolees as she just 15 

said, expanding.  You're going to tell me we're down 16 

in population?  Maybe there will be an uptick, we'll 17 

address it then.  Look, you're going to need 18 

facilities for C and D disabilities.  19 

    It's not - the number's not going to 20 

drop.  There's more inmates coming in with diagnoses 21 

because more people are being diagnosed.  And if 22 

this is about safety, shoving them into Graterford, 23 

shoving them into Camp Hill, that's not going to 24 

work.  You ever try to be around someone who's 25 
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mentally ill?  How's your patience?  What happens to 1 

your tolerance?  2 

    How much are you going to tap out of 3 

staff?  Out of their fellow inmates.  I mean it 4 

makes no sense on that level.  It doesn't make sense 5 

on a dollar level when you say, well we're not 6 

having a definitive knowledge if we are going to 7 

save.  It doesn't make sense here economically.  8 

Take a ride that way.  9 

    It's a little while before you come to 10 

an area that has some jobs.  And the same way that 11 

way.  It's not in Chester.  What's the economic 12 

impact with Philly?  Again, I just - trying to wrap 13 

our head around this here, since I've been here a 14 

short time, has been a challenge.  We were on the 15 

list in 2016.  16 

    And then we seen people doing 17 

surveying in the back.  And we all thought the rumor 18 

was that they were going to try to get a road in 19 

back there.  And then we heard nothing more about 20 

that.  Then we see prior to that gas lines being put 21 

in.  Well maybe that will give us some job security 22 

here.  23 

    The funny thing about all this to me, 24 

and I've said this to many here.  And maybe some 25 
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people won't like it.  I just had to close down my 1 

mother's house last spring, right down the road, 2 

because of the 2011 flood.  That town you're going 3 

to go through when you leave, you'll see a lot of 4 

vacant lots.  Right?  5 

    If you came to us and said you're 6 

better off out of here because of that bridge we 7 

don't know.  We could buy that.  But you haven't 8 

said it.  So what's that tell me?  You're going to 9 

sell it.  You've got a buyer already.  That's what 10 

it tells me.  So I don't know what - if you know 11 

what's going over that mountain.  12 

    But that south parkway with our rent - 13 

if you check, that's coming down that way.  That's 14 

Pennsylvania Earth Conservancy land over that - over 15 

that mountain.  Something's probably going in there 16 

in the next ten, 15 years.  What went on in that 17 

meeting in Shickshinny?  18 

    Because my friends, I grew up in this 19 

area.  Five minutes over that mountain right there 20 

is where I live.  I've been here my whole life.  I'd 21 

like to be able to tell my community, yeah, I think 22 

there's something coming here.  I don't know what 23 

though.  Again, you could have told us - like 24 

politicians usually use a scapegoat.  And you had 25 
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it, that bridge.  And you didn't use it.  And now 1 

we're getting all this.  I don't know, gentlemen.  2 

Thank you.  3 

    MR. BICKELL:  All right.  4 

    This is going to be near the end.  We 5 

do have to get 2:00 to 10:00 in here.  So yeah, you 6 

can stay if you like.  But we want to - let's just 7 

take a break here for a minute.  And we can get 2:00 8 

to 10:00 in here.  Everybody can stay who would 9 

like.  And then we just want to make sure 2:00 to 10 

10:00.  You're going to have to hear my spiel again 11 

once we talk to the 2:00 to 10:00 shift.  12 

--- 13 

(WHEREUPON, THERE WAS A BRIEF RECESS IN THE 14 

PROCEEDINGS.) 15 

--- 16 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well good - good 17 

afternoon everybody.  Those of you that were here 18 

for the first meeting, I will do my opening 19 

statement again.  So you will hear it for the second 20 

time.  And then we will get back in.  I know there 21 

are some staff that want to talk that were left here 22 

for the first.  So you will get the first 23 

opportunity to go up.  So I appreciate that.  24 

    First, I want to thank all the staff 25 
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for being here today.  I also want to thank 1 

Superintendent Mason and her staff for allowing you 2 

staff to be here at this time.  The intent of this 3 

meeting is to hear from myself.  And we'll introduce 4 

ourselves in.  Deputy Oppman, Ty Stanton, RDS 5 

Wenerowicz and EDS Little.  So we - we can ensure 6 

that the employees' voices are heard during this 7 

process.  If you'd like to provide a statement, 8 

please use the sign-in sheet provided.  And state 9 

your name at the mic for the official record.    10 

    Commonwealth Media Service is audio 11 

recording this event.  And we also have a court 12 

stenographer capturing this for the official record. 13 

If you don’t feel comfortable providing a comment in 14 

this setting, and it took us a minute to get off the 15 

ground with the first session, but then it started 16 

rolling.  And we appreciate that.  We truly want to 17 

hear your questions.  So please come up and talk.  18 

But if you do not feel comfortable doing that I'm 19 

reminding everyone that you may still submit 20 

comments, questions and concerns to the department 21 

resource account, which I believe the Superintendent 22 

Mason has provided to all staff.  If not, we will.  23 

     I also as a reminder want to remind 24 

everybody we will have a public hearing tonight 25 
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beginning at 5:30 at the Nanticoke Municipal 1 

Building located at 15 East Ridge Street in 2 

Nanticoke, Pennsylvania.  My name is Tabb Bickell.  3 

I am the executive deputy secretary for 4 

institutional operations.  5 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Chris Oppman, deputy 6 

secretary of administration for the DOC.  7 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  Mike Wenerowicz, 8 

eastern region deputy secretary.  9 

    MR. LITTLE:  George - George Little, 10 

executive deputy secretary for community corrections 11 

and reentry.  And that includes parole field 12 

services, our reentry services and the Bureau of 13 

Community Corrections.  14 

    MR. STANTON:  My name is Ty Stanton.  15 

I'm the HR director for the public safety delivery 16 

center.  17 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  18 

    Amy, who's first?  19 

    MS. MODINO:  Thank you for taking my 20 

question.  Just for purposes of repeating, how much 21 

are we in debt at the DOC in general?  Like, what's 22 

the debt that you're looking to -?  23 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Right now what our 24 

current deficit is as of the end of September was 25 

Attachment G



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

71 

$137 million.  1 

    MS. MODINO:  Okay.  2 

    And I know there were several 3 

questions about this.  What are you hoping to fill 4 

by - by getting rid of Retreat?  5 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Well if you look at it on 6 

the annual basis, fiscal year.  So whenever a 7 

facility would close, it depends on the time of 8 

year.  And then when the staff - and then the staff 9 

are being relocated, that takes time because the 10 

attrition rate, some places are going to have more 11 

staff that might be over complement.  12 

    But the original target at the 13 

beginning of July was looking at it would take at 14 

least six months.  Retreat operates at $56 million 15 

was the estimate for that analysis.  That there are 16 

some mothballing costs.  There are - there will be 17 

staff over complement.  So the estimate for that 18 

closure was $20 million it could contribute to help 19 

bring down that deficit.  20 

    MS. MODINO:  Okay.  21 

    I am just wondering, because I don’t 22 

want to go to a prison that's going to go through 23 

this again.  And I'm - I'm wondering like how long - 24 

or do you ever catch up to your budget?  Because we 25 
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all have our - we all have our budgets we have to 1 

live by.  And I'm wondering - please send me to a 2 

prison that's going to go through this again.  3 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Well I can explain that 4 

we actually had a surplus two years ago.  It's been 5 

in the last two fiscal years where we're seeing that 6 

we have a deficit.  And it's really because of the 7 

appropriation level.  It's not because of 8 

overspending or things like that.  We've saved a lot 9 

of money for the Commonwealth.  We've done a lot of 10 

things.  11 

    We were the number one agency when it 12 

came to the Go Time Initiative through Governor Wolf 13 

of - of looking for ways to send money.  We saved 14 

well over $100 million.  But part of this is, it's 15 

really about the appropriation they're giving us.  16 

That it's been significantly reduced.  And it's - 17 

it's not manageable.  So at some point, yes, we need 18 

the appropriation to be able to sustain our 19 

operations.  20 

    MS. MODINO:  And what would be - this 21 

is my final question.  What would be plan B for next 22 

year?  Like coming in the new budget.  How are you - 23 

how are you going to make up that money?  24 

    MR. OPPMAN:  I'm not going to save 25 
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$140 million.  It's impossible.  They're going to 1 

have to provide us supplemental - the legislators 2 

are going to have to provide a supplemental for us 3 

to maintain operations at some level.  4 

    MS. MODINO:  Okay.  All right.  Thank 5 

you.  6 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  7 

    MS. ANDREWS:  My name is Carrie 8 

Andrews.  I am a teacher here in the school.  I have 9 

a question about - other than our administrative 10 

staff who have been on - and they're great.  Who 11 

have been in some meetings with you.  Has anyone, 12 

including anybody on the Board, talked to any staff 13 

members, personally, about the effect of closing 14 

this place might have on not just us?  15 

    The inmates I have to teach in my 16 

classroom.  The inmates that the counselors have to 17 

deal with every day on a daily basis.  The inmates 18 

that the officers have to deal with on a daily basis 19 

working in a mental health institution.  I know most 20 

of you have worked in a correctional institution 21 

before in the past years before you were in the 22 

positions you're in now.  23 

    So I don't know if you're familiar 24 

with working with mental health inmates.  But the 25 
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impact it's going to have on them, just shoving them 1 

wherever they're going to fit.  Even if it's in 2 

another mental health institution, it doesn't matter 3 

to some of these guys.  4 

    They have come and complained to us 5 

about how they're - they're worried about where 6 

they're going to go.  Are they going to get the 7 

programs that they need to make it out in society?  8 

They're worried.  Has anybody cared even about not 9 

just us, but them, as individuals?  Can anybody 10 

answer that question for me?  11 

    MR. BICKELL:  To answer your question, 12 

yes.  Have we been out here face to face as much as 13 

we should have?  No.  That's why we decided to do 14 

this today, so we can hear what you have to say.    15 

As -.  16 

    MS. ANDREWS:  Don't you think that - 17 

and not to interrupt you.  But don't you think 18 

that's a little too late?  19 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well a decision hasn’t 20 

been made yet.  So, no.  I don't think it is a 21 

little too late.  I actually - I actually think this 22 

was the right thing to do for everybody.  We're here 23 

today for the staff.  24 

    MS. ANDREWS:  Uh-huh (yes).  25 
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    MR. BICKELL:  As far as the inmates, I 1 

know everybody in here that's - that's who - you 2 

know, that's what we do.  Care, custody and control 3 

of inmates.  And yes, we are very concerned with the 4 

mental health inmates.  We understand the stability 5 

D here.  6 

    We also understand the great job that 7 

they do with the - you know, the unit manager and 8 

the staff that run the RTU, the BMU.  We're very 9 

familiar with that here at Retreat.  And we know the 10 

success stories that come out of here.  We're very 11 

much in tune with that.  So to answer your question, 12 

that would be yes.  13 

    MS. ANDREWS:  And sorry to yell at 14 

you.  But you're the only one we can yell at, so -.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  Pardon me?  16 

    MS. ANDREWS:  I said you're the only 17 

one we can vent to, so I apologize for that.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  That's okay.  That's 19 

what we're here for.  Thank you.  Hang on a minute.  20 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  I just wanted to make 21 

a quick comment.  You know, I come up here for 22 

quarterly inspections.  I do make myself available 23 

to staff.  I have talked to line staff.  There's a 24 

large group of employees here that worked at SCI 25 
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Graterford while I was superintendent there.  And I 1 

reached out to several of them before.  And I was up 2 

here last time when we were under closer scrutiny 3 

before talking to staff and the administration.  So 4 

I do get the hardships that you're going through.  5 

    MR. BICKELL:  Sarge, can you give me 6 

just a quick minute?  I want to ask - thank you very 7 

much.  I want to ask Ty Stanton to do a recap on 8 

what he needs to do a recap on.  9 

    MR. STANTON:  Okay.  10 

    So just one of the bigger questions 11 

you're all probably dealing with is what's going to 12 

happen to me.  So to recap the placement process 13 

should - should the decision be that Retreat's going 14 

to close.  So I can't - okay.  Sorry.  I can't give 15 

you specifics of how this would happen here.  16 

    We have not yet entered into 17 

agreements with the collective bargaining agents 18 

about how the placement process would work.  I can 19 

tell you how we have handled this in the past.  And 20 

how I imagine it would likely go for Retreat.  So we 21 

have - we have closed SCI Pittsburgh, Greensburg and 22 

Cresson.  23 

    And in all of those closures the 24 

placement process went with a local agreement that 25 
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outlined how it would be.  And it would basically be 1 

a survey.  A survey was sent to each staff member. 2 

The survey included all of the facilities in the 3 

state.  A commitment has already been made that 4 

everybody will get an offer within 65 miles at one 5 

of the six surrounding facilities.  6 

    So a hiring freeze has already been 7 

implemented and we are tracking those vacancies.  So 8 

the survey would go out and everybody would be asked 9 

to rank in their personal preference in order all of 10 

the facilities that they would be willing to go to. 11 

Those surveys would be collected and they would be 12 

sorted by union and ranked by seniority.  13 

    And then we would sit down with union 14 

officials and go through them to compare the 15 

preferences to the availabilities.  So as I said, 16 

we're tracking all the vacancies.  But we also have 17 

a commitment that we will go over complement at 18 

those six surrounding facilities.  So just because 19 

if you're checking them also, there's only five 20 

vacancies at a facility.  21 

    That doesn't mean there's only going 22 

to be five opportunities there.  We will certainly 23 

go above complement as much as we can to get as many 24 

people where they want to go.  I can't say that 25 
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we're going to get everybody where they want to go 1 

in their first choice.  But we're going to try to do 2 

as best we can.   3 

    So we will go through those.  And then 4 

after all the placement decisions are made, a letter 5 

will out to all the staff with an offer, a placement 6 

offer.  And you would be offered a specific job at a 7 

specific institution and be asked to refuse or 8 

accept it.  If you accept it, send it back and then 9 

we'll give you another letter that gives you your 10 

transfer information, where you're going, where 11 

you're supposed to go, what - when your report date 12 

is.  13 

    There is also a provision that we have 14 

had in prior placements called secondary recall.  So 15 

if we can't place you at your number one facility 16 

and we place you at a second or a third choice.  17 

After all the placements are done as vacancies come 18 

up at other - at those facilities.  19 

    So if you don't get your number one as 20 

a vacancy comes up.  We go back to the list.  21 

Everybody that had that facility as number one, we 22 

would fill it in seniority order from those people 23 

that didn’t get that job the first time around.  And 24 

we were able - we've been very successful in getting 25 

Attachment G



 
 

Sargent's Court Reporting Service, Inc. 
(814) 536-8908 

79 

most of the people from SCI Pittsburgh where they 1 

wanted to go.  We use a two year window for that 2 

secondary recall process.  3 

    I believe all of the correction 4 

officers from Pittsburgh where - we went through 5 

that entire secondary recall process within one 6 

year.  So it did work relatively quickly, all things 7 

considered.  So again, I just want to reiterate that 8 

I can't give you very specific answers about how it 9 

would work here until we get those local agreements 10 

in place with the unions.  11 

    And then it'll be a combination of the 12 

current collective bargaining agreements in 13 

conjunction with those placement agreements to 14 

outline the exact process.  But we will do a survey. 15 

The survey, you'll have I believe it's 60 days to 16 

respond to that survey in accordance with the Act.  17 

And then we - when we get them back we'll go through 18 

the process.  But again, I also want to emphasize 19 

that it's not just the vacancies.  We will go over 20 

complement at surrounding facilities to ensure that 21 

we have landing spots for everyone.  22 

    MR. OPPMAN:  I -.  23 

    MR. STANTON:  One other thing.  I'm 24 

sorry, Deputy.  You are not restricted or you would 25 
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not be restricted, excuse me, to the surrounding six 1 

facilities.  So that's the commitment, that 2 

everybody would get an offer at one of those 3 

facilities.  But if - if you wanted to go outside of 4 

that, you want to go to Camp Hill, you one to 5 

Fayette, you want to go to Albion.  You could still 6 

have that opportunity and list that on your survey. 7 

So you're not restricted to just the six facilities 8 

that are currently under the hiring freeze.  9 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  10 

Sarge, thank you.  11 

    MR. EVERDING:  Yeah.  How are you 12 

doing?  My name is Joe Everding.  I was going over 13 

through some of the numbers since the closing at SCI 14 

Cresson.  And one thing that came to my attention 15 

was, you know, the amount for the budget, the 16 

closing was January 2013.  And the budget 2014/2015, 17 

the Department spent an additional $77.4 million and 18 

an additional amount of $10 million for mental 19 

health was distributed through the DOC, along with 20 

an additional $5 million for medical care.  21 

    The costs that are involved, the -22 

whatever the amount was, the millions, they're not 23 

pertaining to the jail staying open.  The heavy 24 

costs are put in through medical care and where - 25 
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and now the courts handed down where medical has to 1 

be given through, what is it, Hepatitis C, and the 2 

expenses cost in that.  3 

    So even with the closing the 4 

determined - the cost factors are not going to be 5 

there.  No matter how much you pump up the numbers 6 

or redirect the money.  The money is either going to 7 

be there through the Department of Welfare, 8 

Department of Corrections.  It's just being moved 9 

from one table to another.  10 

    And it's the inconvenience of 11 

everybody that, you know, works for the Department 12 

and the every so often years that we've got to 13 

wonder if we're going to have a jail to come into, 14 

to work in.  That's all I need to say.  Okay.  Do 15 

you want to respond to that?  16 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you, Sarge.  17 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Just to explain.  The 18 

medical fund and the SCI fund, education fund and 19 

GGO fund are the four main funds we have.  GGO is 20 

administrative.  It's only through central office.  21 

It's a very small amount.  SCI is the bulk of your 22 

funding.  That's almost $2 billion by itself.  23 

Medical is roughly about $285 million.  And then 24 

education gets down let's say it's - I'm going to 25 
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say about $100 million.  And it may be a little bit 1 

over that.  I might be off on the education.  I 2 

apologize.  3 

    But the Hepatitis C funding has to 4 

come directly from the medical fund.  The medical 5 

find only had a slight deficit of about $5 million 6 

I'm going to say.  Where the bulk of this deficit is 7 

in the SCI fund.  I can't move money from one fund 8 

to the next.  That has to be authorized by the 9 

Governor's budget office.  10 

    Regardless, it's not there for any of 11 

the funds to move around.  I don't have a surplus 12 

somewhere else, or I would.  So really it's - it's 13 

the appropriation we have.  That's just the lack of 14 

enough money to be able to sustain.  And at some 15 

point the Department's being really held to make 16 

some serious changes to get within the realm of 17 

reason with that appropriation.  18 

    MR. BICKELL:  Who's next?  Come on up. 19 

We really do want to hear your questions.  That's 20 

what we came for.  And we really do want to hear 21 

from the staff at Retreat.  It's very important that 22 

we hear it.  Okay.  Go ahead.  All right.  23 

    MS. ROCCO:  I've got a lot to say.  It 24 

comes in spurts.  Have we - have we decided - have 25 
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we ever thought about passing some of the costs onto 1 

the inmates?  We supply soap, toilet paper and 2 

honestly being a CO I have seen campfires in cells 3 

of people cooking their sausages over a roll of 4 

toilet paper that we the taxpayers pay for.  5 

    And we're giving them like four rolls 6 

a piece for two weeks and whatever.  And I honestly 7 

don't use that much.  I don't know about you guys.  8 

But why can't we have them buy their own toilet 9 

paper on commissary?  Supply them with one or two 10 

rolls for the week and then pass some of the costs 11 

onto them.  12 

    They're - they brought themselves 13 

here.  We didn't bring them here.  We did not tell 14 

them to go out and commit a crime.  We are the 15 

people who obeyed the law.  We are the people who 16 

are trying to follow the laws and keep everybody 17 

safe.  But we're paying the price for somebody 18 

else's illegal activities.  19 

    I know other states like North 20 

Carolina and stuff, you actually have to pay a 21 

certain amount every single month that you're 22 

incarcerated to go towards your costs.  Why don't we 23 

implement something like that?  Where hey, if you're 24 

in jail for 20 years you've got to pay $100 a month. 25 
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How much would you save?  1 

    100 times 1,000 inmates, that's 2 

$100,000 a month, just right there.  And that's - 3 

you'll never find a place on the street that much.  4 

I mean they pay $16 a month for cable.  I pay $53 a 5 

month just for internet with five channels.  And the 6 

internet is really slow and my nephew tells me all 7 

the time.  8 

    But the thing is, like, we should not 9 

have to pay for them.  Let them pay for themselves. 10 

If they were on the street, they would have to.  11 

They would have to work.  They would have to pay 12 

their rent.  They would have to pay their utilities. 13 

Now by policy they're supposed to get a ten minute 14 

shower once a day.  15 

    You have open bay showers, you have 16 

1,000 inmates.  And they go to the yard in the 17 

morning.  They want to come in and take a shower.  18 

They go to yard in the afternoon, they want to come 19 

in and take a shower.  Oh, I have a gym pass.  They 20 

want to come in and take a shower.  And when you're 21 

one officer with 110 inmates, you can't track who 22 

got in the shower at what time and watch the whole 23 

day room and see who's in who's cell or who's 24 

getting stabbed over here or what gambling's going 25 
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on over there.  You can't see it all.  1 

    So things like the shower, that's the 2 

least amount of money.  Like that's the least amount 3 

of your concern.  But that's a whole bunch of money 4 

right there in water fees and everything else that 5 

we could be saving if we passed on -.  Maybe they 6 

wouldn't take so many showers if they had to pay for 7 

it.  Maybe - like they have better heat -.  8 

    My heat at my house right now, I'm not 9 

going to lie, is set to 62 degrees.  Only the kid 10 

has a little bit more heat because he's a little 11 

spoiled.  I get my heat from the puppies I adopted 12 

here at SCI Retreat.  But 62 degrees, because I 13 

can't afford to pay $300, $400 a month in heat.  We 14 

pay how many millions of dollars a month in heat so 15 

these guys can stay warm and cozy at night while us, 16 

the law abiding citizens, are going home and having 17 

to put on like five blankets because we don’t have 18 

the money, it's not there?  19 

    I mean, I do understand that we make 20 

quite a bit of money.  And we do a whole lot.  But I 21 

mean, I wouldn’t be here giving you guys a hard time 22 

if I didn’t love my job.  I wouldn’t be fighting for 23 

a job that I don't like.  I do love the Department 24 

of Corrections.  I do love working for the 25 
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Department.  And I enjoy what I do.  1 

    I don’t even mind interacting with the 2 

inmates.  As least they're here, where they belong. 3 

But I don't think we should just take 100 percent of 4 

the responsibility for them.  Let them take some 5 

responsibility for themselves.  6 

    Because when they get out on the 7 

street, a lot of the times they don't know how to 8 

take responsibility for themselves.  And that's why 9 

they come back.  I'm just saying.  Let them pay for 10 

something.  They get everything 100 percent free.  11 

We don't.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  Thank you.  13 

    Are you coming up?  14 

    MR. MCPHERSON:  Yes, sir.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  All right.  That's what 16 

we like to see.  17 

    MR. MCPHERSON:  And excuse me if I'm a 18 

little shaky.  I'm not used to talking in front of a 19 

lot of people.  As you guys were talking I was 20 

writing a few things down, because I have a few 21 

questions.  One, has the Department of Corrections 22 

ever considered a buyout?  How much would that save? 23 

Have we checked into how much that would save?  24 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  That's been - that's 25 
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been looked at.  It's been reviewed.  It's always 1 

something to consider.  But that also takes some 2 

additional authority from the Office of 3 

Administration to make that happen.  4 

    MR. MOTHERSON:  Okay.  5 

    And I understand that.  What I'm 6 

saying here is, for many of us this is our home.  7 

The area we reside in is our home.  So for us it's a 8 

little bit more than a oh it's just a number on a 9 

page.  It's just a little blurb or a paragraph.  So 10 

if we're - we're asking you to do the due diligence 11 

to check on this place.  To find answers, to find 12 

other options.  So saying, hey, that's always an 13 

option.  Right now it's an option.  But that's okay. 14 

I'm going to go into the next thing.  15 

    Okay.  So with the local townships and 16 

municipalities, whatever they call them, and 17 

utilities.  You're promising them that you're going 18 

to give them this much money and keep them running 19 

for this long.  And I don't want this to sound wrong 20 

or inappropriate.  But you also said you weren't 21 

going to close another prison.  How are we to take 22 

your word that what you say that you're going to do 23 

you're actually going to do?  24 

    I'm saying that to say this.  I was at 25 
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the first town hall meeting.  Okay?  And it seemed 1 

like everybody had pat answers before we even came 2 

up to ask questions.  I'm not trying to be 3 

disrespectful or anything like that.  But how are we 4 

to see that you guys are actually doing your due 5 

diligence and going to follow through with your word 6 

later on if you haven't followed through with your 7 

word so far?  Okay.  8 

    Also, I heard that you thought that 9 

approaching the staff and the inmates is the right 10 

thing to do.  And my only question with that is, at 11 

what point in time is that the right thing to do?  12 

Because before nobody ever approached us.  So it's 13 

retroactive?  The only reason why I'm saying it this 14 

way is because this upsets me.  Okay?  I'm not from 15 

this state.  16 

    But I made - I made this area my home 17 

and I made this prison my home.  And these are my 18 

fellow coworkers, these are my friends, these are my 19 

family.  So you're tearing my family apart.  I would 20 

just think that somebody would have a little bit 21 

more answers.  It seems to me like the best answers 22 

we're getting from you guys are about our placement, 23 

as if the decision has already been made.  24 

    If you have to provide a supplemental 25 
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next year, because as you said even closing this 1 

prison is not going to bring that amount down.  2 

What's to stop you from going ahead and figuring out 3 

that supplemental right now?  Why would it be later? 4 

Why not right now?  5 

    And my last question ultimately is 6 

this.  Okay?  If we keep closing prisons and then we 7 

still seem to have - I mean we can say that it's 8 

appropriation.  But at the end of the day we're 9 

still saying that the debt is there.  How many more 10 

prisons are we going to close and still have an 11 

appropriation issue?  At some point in time we have 12 

to address the problem.  That's all.  Thank you.  13 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  14 

    MS. JOHNSON:  Hi.  My name is Maura 15 

Johnson.  I am the records supervisor here.  And I 16 

just have a quick yes or no question for each of 17 

you.  Am I good?  Okay.  I'm a single mom.  I have 18 

three kids.  Two of them have medical disabilities. 19 

And I would just want to know if you would want to 20 

be 65 miles away from home.  21 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well we hope that 22 

doesn’t happen.  But, no.  To answer your question, 23 

no, I wouldn't want to move 65 miles away from home.  24 

    MS. JOHNSON:  Okay.  Thank you.  25 
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    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Real quick.  Can you 1 

answer the question about the budgets?   2 

    MR. BICKELL:  He's asking about all 3 

the budget stuff and all that stuff.  And that's 4 

really not our - he's asking about the budget stuff. 5 

Yes.  Yes.  6 

     MR. OPPMAN:  All right.  I'm trying to 7 

recall.  It's being recorded.  But I don't know if I 8 

can answer everything.  But they're not - when you 9 

say why can't they give us a supplemental now?  We 10 

asked for one.  And it was supposed to be we were 11 

promised a $50 million supplemental.  They cut that 12 

to $10 million.  13 

    So they're not going to give us one 14 

now.  That's beyond - that's beyond me.  That has to 15 

be appropriated by the legislature.  We propose a 16 

budget.  It is then reviewed by the Governor's 17 

budget office each year.  There are adjustments that 18 

the Governor's office makes.  And then ultimately 19 

the legislature has to approve our final allocation.  20 

    I'm not going to get that kind of 21 

money.  I talked about this in the first group.  So 22 

I want to bring it up again.  This is - this really 23 

is - it is about an appropriation.  It comes down to 24 

it.  We had a surplus two years ago.  They cut our 25 
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budget.  Really and - the population decreasing, 1 

appropriations have been cut.  And we've looked at 2 

everything that we could.  3 

    We've made a lot of changes.  We've 4 

closed housing units across the state.  We closed - 5 

we closed the two mental health units we had, the 6 

one at Camp Hill, the one at Rockview and put it all 7 

at Waymart, try to consolidate that to get some 8 

savings.  There's a variety of things.  We've cut 9 

positions at central office by ten percent.  We're 10 

looking at other things too.  We're looking at 11 

potentially closing some other housing units across 12 

the state because -.  13 

    And I don't think it's going to stop 14 

if they see this kind of number.  So they're not 15 

going to give us that money, to be honest.  And this 16 

has nothing to do with the staff on which facility 17 

is selected.  You guys do a great job.  You know 18 

what I mean?  Your performance is there.  It's not 19 

about like saying that there's poor performance at 20 

Retreat or things of that nature.  21 

    You know, it comes down to like really 22 

the facility matrix and looking at the variety of 23 

things with that.  But again, it's no reflection on 24 

the staff here when they're pinpointing a prison.  25 
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Look, I worked at Pittsburgh and had to watch my 1 

friends and family close.  This is not an easy 2 

decision for us to sit here and make.  Any - any 3 

facility we select, most likely, is in a rural area 4 

where jobs are hard to find.  5 

    I mean, I totally appreciate that.  I 6 

can go to Fayette County, Wayne County, Clearfield 7 

County, Forrest County.  A lot of that is very 8 

consistent.  We had to close Sharon Correctional 9 

Center.  We've already closed that.  One of our 10 

community correction centers.  And also Alle Kiski 11 

we've looked at too.  So there's - we're turning 12 

every stone we can to avoid this, because this is 13 

the last thing we want to do.  And we'll continue to 14 

do that.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  Anybody else?  16 

    MS. MADROVSKI:  Lisa Madrovski.  I 17 

would be remiss to not - and I want to just tell you 18 

that I am really upset that the Governor comes here 19 

for votes and doesn't come here - and I realize this 20 

has nothing to do with you guys.  But the Governor 21 

comes here for votes when he's pandering for votes.  22 

    And I did vote for him.  But I really 23 

- I really regret that he doesn't come here to see 24 

the faces of the people in the institutions that 25 
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he's closing.  You know, I don't understand that.  I 1 

mean, can you tell me why?  Well let the record show 2 

Lisa Madrovski wants to know why he doesn't come 3 

here.  That's all.  4 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  5 

    Anyone else?  6 

    MS. ROCCO:  I'm sorry.  I can't.  I 7 

have one more suggestion.  Did we - can we consider 8 

holding off the closure of SCI Retreat until 9 

Governor Wolf's investigation is over where his 10 

multi-billion dollar pipeline thing that he's got 11 

going on?  Because if the state - if they shut him 12 

down in that multi-billion dollar project, we'll 13 

have lots of money to go around.  I might even be 14 

able to buy you guys dinner.  15 

    MR. WHITMOYER:  Hi.  I'm Sergeant 16 

Whitmoyer.  I want to touch on what Sergeant 17 

Everding had said earlier about the appropriation of 18 

funds and where it comes from and which department 19 

it goes to.  This is a quote directly from the last 20 

meeting that we had from Thomas Caffrey from the 21 

Governor's Office.  22 

    Closing this prison, though difficult, 23 

would allow us to have additional capital to fund 24 

school districts and higher education and to provide 25 
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more expansive economic development.  To me that's 1 

saying that he wants to pull money from the 2 

Department of Corrections and put it into another 3 

department, separate department in the state.  To me 4 

that's moving - robbing Peter to pay Paul.  That's 5 

all I have.  Thank you.  6 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  7 

    MR. FASNACHT:  My name is Rich 8 

Fasnacht.  I'm the machine shop instructor here at 9 

SCI Retreat.  And some may know, some may not.  I 10 

drive by two jails to get here.  Part of me wants to 11 

see the place close.  But part of me works with 12 

these people and understand their problem.  And one 13 

of the things that I don't understand is one of the 14 

things that I do in my shop is nothing but math.  I 15 

do more math probably in a day's time than probably 16 

some of the people sitting on this side of the 17 

table.  18 

    Not only do I do that, but I also 19 

teach mentally ill inmates how to do trig, physics, 20 

regular mathematics and things like that.  And the 21 

educational staff and those on my right could vouch 22 

for me when they come into my room.   23 

   One of the things that I have a question 24 

on is.  When I run the numbers that I look at online 25 
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from you guys.  When I go from left to right and 1 

then go to come back again, they don't make sense.  2 

Things don't seem to add up the way they should.  3 

And my question would be, who's coming up with the 4 

numbers.  And are you using the same numbers?  5 

    Because I'd seen - I'm not sure what 6 

his name was, the counselor that was in that town 7 

hall meeting.  He had a lot of interesting points on 8 

the numbers that he was using, because they don't 9 

make a foundation for a reason for closure.  Now I 10 

understand what you're saying.  That even closing 11 

this facility down does not fix your actual problem.  12 

    But to close it though, we're losing 13 

out on a D stability jail that actually is helping 14 

people.  Putting too many people in an area, you 15 

can't - you can't fix problems.  We're here with a 16 

smaller jail.  I know me with my shop, I can assure 17 

you that I have four guys that have become better 18 

people.  They're not the criminals they were when 19 

they were in there.  I wish they were here that they 20 

could vouch for me.  Because they'll be the ones 21 

that will stand up and say I am not the same person 22 

I was before I met you.  23 

    I know I'm not the only one that says 24 

that.  I know the people on my left, the people on 25 
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my right, all around me here, say the same thing.  I 1 

worked in the education department where I've 2 

watched funding being cut, necessary funding being 3 

cut.  And I guess what I get disgruntled at is we 4 

know that education is an issue, yet we cut the 5 

education.  All right?  6 

    We know that - we know that if 7 

something is broke, as an instance I need 12 board 8 

feet.  You'd send your numbers in and you say look, 9 

he needs 12 board feet.  And they come back and say 10 

you've got five and expect you to build the same 11 

building.  12 

    There is absolutely no difference 13 

between that and the maintenance department when you 14 

have 13 people.  But now we've brought on more 15 

people and counselors, so we can take on the RHU or 16 

DTU or whatever we may be doing.  What they're doing 17 

is right.  But that doesn't then turn and say well 18 

now you can't have an extra electrician.  19 

    Now you need to have a locksmith and a 20 

machinist put together.  Now you need to have these 21 

guys doing jobs and compounding themselves.  And we 22 

have that from top to bottom.  I've watched it with 23 

our principal.  He is calling double duty.  The 24 

people on my right here, I watch them calling double 25 
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duty.  I'm watching their heads bouncing up and down 1 

as I'm standing here.  2 

    And what I'm looking at is, is the - 3 

to my original point is the numbers aren't correct. 4 

And I might have added more insult to injury with 5 

this.  But your numbers are not right.  And if the 6 

numbers aren't right, how is a logical, sequential, 7 

algebraic mental thought happening?  I don't 8 

understand.  9 

    So as much as I would like to see 10 

things go my way.  At the same thing, I want them to 11 

go my way for the right reasons.  And I would stay 12 

here as the machine shop instructor in this place.  13 

But if by chance, since no one actually has asked 14 

this.  15 

    If we do stay open with the hiring 16 

freezes.  How quickly will you be able to now hire 17 

and bring people back up to the complement that you 18 

need at this facility?  Because not only that with 19 

other facilities.  That's a lot of money that's an 20 

in-rush that's going to happen.  21 

    And we might say, okay, well we can't 22 

- we don't have enough money for this guy.  But the 23 

things are still breaking.  And when I say that 24 

things are still breaking, it's not just the 25 
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maintenance side.  It's the education side, it's the 1 

CO side.  I mean watching guys do mandates over and 2 

over again.  3 

    I've heard HR already say that we have 4 

enough people, I don't know why we have mandates.  5 

Well obviously your numbers are wrong.  And I'm not 6 

pointing blame to anyone.  What I'm saying is I am 7 

asking you to make sure the numbers are right.  Make 8 

sure when you're looking at your numbers that it's 9 

not just a number and the choices come from the 10 

correct thought processes.  Thank you.  11 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes?  12 

    MR. ECKENRODE:  Hi.  13 

    My name is John Eckenrode.  I'm the 14 

western region vice president for the PSCOA.  I'm a 15 

20 year employee for Corrections.  I started my 16 

career at Cresson.  I was there during the closure 17 

of 2013.  I would never attempt to put myself in you 18 

people's shoes.  But I can tell you that I've been 19 

there and done that.  It's not a very easy process 20 

to go through.  21 

    I grew up in Cresson.  That was - my 22 

life, that was where I raised my kids.  And I can 23 

tell you that the closure had a deep impact on not 24 

only my family and myself, the people in the 25 
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community.  But also the community itself took a 1 

major economic hit.  Cresson is pretty much a shell 2 

of what it used to be.  3 

    So although SCI Retreat is probably 4 

the biggest employer in this area.  But it feeds off 5 

- it feeds other businesses in the area.  And you're 6 

going to see a hit.  You're going to see a hit in 7 

the - in the local businesses.  And unfortunately 8 

we're also going to see a hit in the school 9 

district.  We're going to lose school district 10 

revenue.  11 

    With all that being said, there was a 12 

meeting that took place in Newport Township.  And I 13 

apologize.  I'm not real familiar with the area.  14 

The media was not included.  The general public was 15 

not included in that meeting.  Could you tell us 16 

what the topics of discussion were?  17 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes.  We did have the 18 

meeting.  We were invited to the meeting.  The DOC 19 

was invited there.  Even though the public wasn't 20 

there, there were meeting minutes taken from it.  21 

And those meeting minutes will be included in the 22 

final report.  What was talked about was the sewer 23 

authority.  24 

    They had - they had the people that 25 
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were there had real concerns about the impact to 1 

their communities.  Some of the things that you 2 

talked about.  The stores, you know, the bar, you 3 

know, down the street are going to take impacts on 4 

this.  The gas station.  That's the stuff that they 5 

were talking about.  6 

    MR. ECKENRODE:  And that will be 7 

included in the report?  8 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes.  9 

    We took minutes.  And that will be 10 

included in the final report.  Yes.  11 

    MR. ECKENRODE:  I realize and I 12 

appreciate the fact that you are now pretty much 13 

running the process.  In the past we have reached 14 

out several times to the secretary of corrections 15 

with cost savings initiatives that we feel are a 16 

common sense, approachable cost saving things we can 17 

accomplish.  And we were told that we would - that 18 

it was reciprocated that we would have a sit down or 19 

a discussion on those ideas.  We've yet to hear from 20 

the secretary.  Would you be open to possibly, you 21 

know, discussing some of those - 22 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes.  23 

    MR. ECKENRODE:  - cost saving ideas?  24 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes, we would be.  Yes.  25 
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    MR. ECKENRODE:  And you know, I'm a 1 

realist.  I realize we're not going to make up $140 2 

million.  But we do have some ideas of things that 3 

we think could help the budget without hurting 4 

staff.  5 

    MR. BICKELL:  Yes.  6 

    And for the record, we'll put it on 7 

the record.  We will set a meeting up with PSCOA.  8 

Myself and Deputy Oppman will set this up.  And 9 

we'll be in touch very soon on that.  10 

    MR. ECKENRODE:  Thank you.  11 

    And we do - we do hope that this 12 

process is as transparent as possible.  And we 13 

really take a look at whatever procedure needs to be 14 

in place to -.  We should be trying to keep this 15 

place open.  Not trying to save $81 million or $140 16 

million.  17 

    We realize that there is a budget.  We 18 

realize that it costs money to operate facilities.  19 

But we can - we would like to try to find a way.  20 

And I hope that you have that same approach to this 21 

process.  That you are actively pursuing a way to 22 

keep this place open.  Thank you.  23 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  24 

    Anyone else?  Okay.  In closing, 25 
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again, I appreciate everybody's comments and 1 

questions.  Again, tonight we will have the meeting 2 

at the Nanticoke Municipal Building.  And it's 3 

located at 15 East Ridge Street in Nanticoke and 4 

that will begin at 5:30.  Thank you very much.  Yes, 5 

go ahead, Sarge.  Come on up.  You're good.  6 

    MR. SCOTT:  Yeah.  7 

    My name is Brian Scott.  I've been 8 

here for 11 years.  I'm just making a comment.  I 9 

just kind of wonder why how you think that we're 10 

going to get a fair shake after, you know, yourself 11 

you were sitting right next to Secretary Wetzel when 12 

that comment was made.  13 

    MR. BICKELL:  That's a fair question. 14 

I will as this process - and I don't think you were 15 

here for the first meeting.  But how the process 16 

will work is we've had, you know, of course this is 17 

the new part of the process, which I wanted to do 18 

was come up here and hear from the staff of Retreat. 19 

We have met with other stakeholders in this.  We've 20 

met with other sister agencies.  21 

    We're going to have our second public 22 

hearing tonight.  What will happen is we will 23 

compile a report.  Everything will be put together. 24 

You know, your - your concerns, the impact, the 25 
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economic impact.  All that stuff will be put into 1 

this report.  Okay?  And then what will happen with 2 

the report is it will come to me and I will review 3 

this report.  4 

    And then if I approve the report, the 5 

report will then go to the Governor and it will go 6 

to the majority and minority leader of the house and 7 

senate.  And then the decision will be made on 8 

whether we close the prison or not.  But I assure 9 

you that's why I'm here today.  That's why we're 10 

here today.  I want to give as much transparency and 11 

honor to what we're trying to do.  12 

    Again, as the PSCOA rep said, you 13 

know, he's went through this before.  I've never had 14 

to go through this.  I can't imagine the - some of 15 

the emotional comments I heard from the great staff 16 

of Retreat today.  You know, it hurts.  So I will 17 

look at everything.  18 

    And as Deputy Secretary Oppman said, I 19 

think we have - we've tried to do the best that we 20 

could before we got to this situation.  And we'll 21 

meet with the PSCOA again.  I know $140 million is 22 

going to be tough.  But I will - I will look at this 23 

and I will take all things into consideration when I 24 

submit my report to the Governor.  25 
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    MR. SCOTT:  How much did Phoenix put 1 

us in debt?  2 

    MR. BICKELL:  I -.  3 

    MR. SCOTT:  I mean because I know - I 4 

know there's been one foul up after another with 5 

Phoenix.  And then it's just - they failed.  6 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Phoenix was a capital 7 

project.  It's not our normal operating budget that 8 

we're appropriated every year.  We have capital 9 

projects throughout the state.  They're - you know, 10 

there is an identified project.  These are the 11 

majority construction contracts your facility 12 

maintenance managers would work on.  Whether it's, 13 

you know, replacing roofs.  14 

    Anything over $300,000 quickly becomes 15 

a capital.  Phoenix was a total capital project.  It 16 

was budgeted for $400 million.  And now it came 17 

under that.  I don't know what - they're - they're 18 

still in settlement with the construction with the 19 

developer, the vendor who provided that while 20 

sharing the construction.  21 

    So that's still going on.  But that 22 

was a totally separate fund than our normal 23 

operating funds.  Again, that decision was made to 24 

construct Phoenix how many years back, Mike?  You 25 
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might know.  1 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  That's going back 2 

nine, ten years.  3 

    MR. OPPMAN:  Nine, ten years?  4 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  That was under the 5 

Rendell administration.  6 

    MR. LITTLE:  Yeah.  It's been crazy.  7 

    MR. SCOTT:  All right.  8 

    I was just wondering how you think 9 

we're going to get a fair shake.  You know?  I mean 10 

because you were sitting right next to Secretary 11 

Wetzel when that comment was made.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  Which comment?  13 

    MR. SCOTT:  It is what it is.  14 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  15 

    MR. SCOTT:  Yeah.  16 

    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  How can we trust 17 

you?  18 

    MR. SCOTT:  Exactly.  That's what I'm 19 

trying to get at.  You know?  20 

    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Basically, how can 21 

we trust you?  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well, I mean I'm - all I 23 

can tell you is I'm going to give it my best shot.  24 

And I will look at all options and all the reports. 25 
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And you know, the decision will be based off of 1 

that.  That's - that's all I can give you is - you 2 

know, what I'm going to need to do.  3 

    MR. SCOTT:  Okay.  4 

    Because everybody - I mean everybody - 5 

I'm sure I speak for everybody.  It seems like it's 6 

just another dog and pony show.  7 

    MR. BICKELL:  Pardon me?  8 

    MR. SCOTT:  It seems like it's just 9 

another dog and pony show.  10 

    MR. BICKELL:  Uh-huh (yes).  11 

    MR. SCOTT:  Like a decision's already 12 

been made because - 13 

    MR. BICKELL:  Well -.  14 

    MR. SCOTT:  - you opened up with 15 

transfers and all that, so -.  16 

    MR. BICKELL:  Uh-huh (yes).  17 

    MR. OPPMAN:  I can say this too.  18 

Whenever we - whenever we budget - we did our 19 

budget.  The amount of money we asked for was to 20 

maintain our current operations.  And that's what 21 

Secretary Wetzel wanted.  And then we were at our 22 

appropriation hearing what we proposed did not - 23 

didn't - we were asked that question at our 24 

appropriations hearing.  25 
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    Does this - does this budget request 1 

include closure.  What we proposed for our budget 2 

did not include a prison closure or anything else.  3 

We proposed enough money to maintain our current 4 

footprint across the state.  What the allocation we 5 

got started to create issues where we had to start 6 

making decisions without affecting our programs, our 7 

safety, our security, things that we have to do, you 8 

know, to make sure that we have a secure environment 9 

for you to work in, for all your staff to work in.  10 

That's - that's where the decision starts to be 11 

made.  12 

    MR. SCOTT:  I don't mean to interrupt 13 

you.  But how is closing prisons and shoving mental 14 

health inmates into all these other prison helping?  15 

    MR. OPPMAN:  We appreciate moving the 16 

mental inmates.  C and D roster - a few years ago we 17 

consolidated them.  The D rosters at certain 18 

facilities.  There was concerns about the movement 19 

of those individuals where they currently were.  And 20 

that will continue to be a concern.  I mean that is 21 

always something that we're going to have to look at 22 

when we're moving people around.  23 

    Because the other facilities - 24 

Pittsburgh was a D roster facility when we closed 25 
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it.  So it was very sensitive to make sure that we 1 

have a lot of good communication with those 2 

individuals.  You know, the contact visits with the 3 

psychology staff.  We increased some of those things 4 

to keep an eye on it, making sure they weren't 5 

having that kind of anxiety as well.  6 

    MR. SCOTT:  All right.  Thanks for 7 

answering my questions.  8 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you, Sarge.  9 

Appreciate that.  10 

    MS. ENDRESS:  Hi.  11 

    My name is Lisa Endress.  I just want 12 

to go on record as saying whether you believe in a 13 

higher being or not, we are trusting you to do right 14 

by your conscience, to do what is right for us.  If 15 

you are acting in bad faith you will pay for it 16 

somewhere down the line, either karma or whatever.  17 

So I am really hoping that you're going to work in 18 

our best interests.  Thank you.  19 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  20 

    UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE:  When will we 21 

know?  22 

    MR. BICKELL:  I'm sorry?  23 

    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  When will we know?  24 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  25 
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    What'll happen is, as you know the 1 

process was delayed a little bit.  But what'll 2 

happen now is after tonight's meeting we will then 3 

start compiling our reports, as I talked about 4 

earlier.  And we will - once that report is together 5 

then it'll be reviewed.  6 

    And once it is approved then the 7 

announcement will be made.  Now originally I think 8 

we were looking maybe the first week in December.  9 

It's not going to be the first week of December.  10 

Because what we want to do is we really want to give 11 

it the transparency and the hard look that it 12 

deserves.  And we will do that.  13 

    With that being said I know the first 14 

group, or maybe this group.  There's concerns of 15 

holding this over your head.  We do not want to do 16 

that.  I promise we will work hard to get this 17 

report done as soon as we can.  And get the decision 18 

made of whether we're going to have a prison closure 19 

as soon as we possibly can, with doing our due 20 

diligence.  21 

    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  But you don't have a 22 

time?  23 

    MR. BICKELL:  I cannot give you - I 24 

cannot give you a timeframe.  I'm hoping it'll be 25 
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not too long after the first week of December, if 1 

I'm going to go on record.  I'm hoping that we can 2 

get it compiled and done by then.  3 

    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Okay.  Okay.  4 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay?  5 

    AUDIENCE MEMBER:  Yeah.  6 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  7 

    MS. BOWER:  Hi.  My name is LaTonya 8 

Bower.  I've been here for - well December will be 9 

11 and a half years.  Before we got the announcement 10 

about this we had an officer commit suicide.  Okay? 11 

We got the announcement.  I had people come in to 12 

me, asking me how are we supposed to explain this to 13 

our wives?  14 

    My kids ain't gonna understand this.  15 

How are - how is my kids going to - how come you 16 

didn't come to my game?  Oh, well because I had to 17 

drive an extra 45 minutes to work or 65 minutes to 18 

work.  That's two hours away from their families, 19 

from all of our families.  20 

    Then I had another one come up to me 21 

saying let's see how many suicides come out of this. 22 

What are you going to say to them?  Just something 23 

to think about.  24 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  Okay.  25 
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    Anybody else?  1 

    MS. ARNOSKI:  Back up again.  Sorry.  2 

Debbie Arnoski.  To the comment of the PSCOA rep 3 

with Newport Township.  Newport Township considers 4 

the residents that live here at SCI Retreat in their 5 

population.  If you remove those residents, you are 6 

going to devastate that township.  They need that 7 

census to be able to get the federal and state funds 8 

that they need to support their township and their 9 

area.  10 

    Crime has increased.  We have an 11 

opiate crisis on our hands, here, the City of 12 

Nanticoke.  They have had to hire two more policemen 13 

because of that.  What are they going to do now when 14 

you take this population away?  You take their 15 

funding away and they have to let those parole - 16 

those officers go.  For us it's going to be an 17 

unsafe area to live in.  18 

    And what are we going to do?  We're 19 

going to push to add more state policemen.  State 20 

policemen try to corral all the area that they can. 21 

You're only pushing that right back onto the state's 22 

budget.  It's a vicious circle.  We've got 21 - 21 23 

percent of those people living in Nanticoke are 24 

senior citizens on fixed budgets.  They had about a 25 
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three and a half percent tax increase now in their 1 

property taxes.  Now we've got the rain tax here.  2 

    You remove the budget that this place 3 

provides for this area, and you're going to put it 4 

on all those small businesses that are sitting in 5 

this area.  There are no big businesses.  You need 6 

to drive around the area and look.  We are the 7 

biggest employer that there is.  Those small 8 

businesses can't support the taxes, the 9 

organizations, non-profit organizations that need 10 

the money from us, the school that need the money 11 

from us.  12 

    That literally is going to go down to 13 

all of those people that live there.  The senior 14 

citizens, the people.  And for us, employees are 15 

going to have to drive another hour, two hours away, 16 

leave our children who have to go to daycare.  How 17 

are we going to do that?  Or if we have sick family 18 

members that need care and we've got to drive an 19 

additional hour, two hours away.  20 

    We can't do that.  We're going to - 21 

we're going to relocate.  We're going to have to 22 

leave our homes.  There are going to be empty homes 23 

here for sale.  The market isn't that great now in 24 

the area.  We've had so many foreclosures.  I was 25 
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looking for a home before this came up.  I was going 1 

to start with my new life with my fiancé and start 2 

over.  You know what?  That's all just gone to hell.  3 

    I can't even look for that right now 4 

because I may have to sell my home and relocate.  5 

And there again, there's lost revenue.  There's more 6 

property tax owners that aren't going to be paying 7 

towards school taxes.  I mean, you're just going to 8 

devastate this area.  I mean, revenue-wise, 9 

financially-wise.  You need to consider the city, 10 

the townships, the people in this area, the school 11 

districts.  This is a big corporation for them.  12 

Don't take it away.  Thank you.  13 

    MR. BICKELL:  Thank you.  14 

    MS. PELUM:  I'm Officer Pelum.  I work 15 

here.  I've been here for about two years now.  And 16 

I - I noticed that you said that you spoke with 17 

inmates and staff from the institution.  Can you 18 

tell me approximately how many in this room that 19 

you've spoke to?  20 

    MR. BICKELL:  I don’t think I -.  21 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  No, I said that.  And 22 

it's hard for me to get around.  Like I speak to a 23 

lot of the line staff that I know.  But I make 24 

myself accessible and available when I'm here for 25 
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the quarterlies.  And I was involved with the 1 

previous time when Retreat was up for closure.  I 2 

was here several times for that.  Again, I'll be up 3 

again.  I tell folks if you see me walking around, 4 

by all means, I'm approachable.  You can ask me 5 

questions.  I'll do my best to answer what you have.  6 

    MS. PELUM:  I was just wondering, 7 

because I don't recognize any of you nor have seen 8 

any of you before the proposed closure.  Which is 9 

why I was wondering how many staff that you've 10 

actually spoke to in this room.  11 

    MR. WENEROWICZ:  And that's my 12 

apologies.  I'll make it a point to seek you out the 13 

next time I'm out here.  Okay?  14 

    MR. BICKELL:  Okay.  Anybody else?  15 

    MS. STABITA:  Hello.  I'm Hillary 16 

Stabita.  I'm an ABE teacher here at Retreat.  I've 17 

been here for a little over a year.  Prior to coming 18 

here I worked at a school district for 27 years.  I 19 

retired from that school district. And one of the 20 

considerations of my retirement was because I didn't 21 

want to drive an hour to Montrose every day and an 22 

hour home.  23 

    This place is closer to my home.  It's 24 

about 20 minutes.  So now looking at closure here I 25 
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may be back in that same situation once again.  Be 1 

that as it may, I keep hearing about the report.  2 

And over my many, many years of teaching I've had to 3 

do my fair share of reports.  And when I would 4 

collect information from parents, from - from the 5 

staff, from the community.  6 

    I would never wait until the end of 7 

until I got all the information to start the report. 8 

I would as I got the information I opened the 9 

document and I'd start putting information into the 10 

report.  And so I can review that information as it 11 

comes in.  And I'm just wondering if you are 12 

reviewing the information that you're getting as it 13 

comes in.  14 

    Like the sewer authority report or any 15 

of the economic impact reports.  Are you reviewing 16 

those as they're coming in and starting the document 17 

so that you don’t have to put this off longer and 18 

give us more stress, not knowing when the decisions 19 

will be made?  When I am given a deadline to make a 20 

decision or to get something done, I have to follow 21 

that deadline.  22 

    And so I believe Act 133, there has to 23 

be some - there has to be some deadline at some 24 

point to say this is the cutoff, this is the date we 25 
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have to know by.  Because every day that goes by 1 

that you don’t tell us one way or the other, it is 2 

what it is.  Right?  You know, if you're going to 3 

close we understand that.  We will deal with it.  If 4 

we're going to stay open, great.  5 

    We'll move on with our lives.  But at 6 

this point we are in limbo.  And we have been in 7 

limbo since August.  And that is very unfair.  So 8 

there has to be a deadline.  You have to give us a 9 

date that - that you're going to make this decision. 10 

You can't just say well I think I'm going to get it 11 

done, I'm going to compose a report and when I get 12 

to it.  Like it needs to take priority and review 13 

that report and - and move forward.  And that's what 14 

I'm asking that you do.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  It is a priority.  And 16 

yes, as we get the reports in, we have started 17 

compiling our DOC reports.  And as we get our 18 

reports in, we are reviewing them.  And we are 19 

putting our packages together.  Okay?  We are very, 20 

very cognizant - I am very, very cognizant of what's 21 

hanging over your head up here.  I do understand it. 22 

And we will do this thoroughly, fairly and 23 

transparently as we can.  And we will get this 24 

report out as soon as humanly possible so staff know 25 
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what decision has been made.  1 

    MS. STABITA:  Okay.  2 

    And I think that a word that has to go 3 

in that statement is speedy.  Like I know you want 4 

to take your time and get - 5 

    MR. BICKELL:  What word is that?  6 

    MS. STABITA:  - everyone and review 7 

everything.  Speedy.  Like there has to be some 8 

urgency to it to get it done.  Like you can't just 9 

say that we're going to - that we're still looking 10 

at it, we're still looking at it.  Decisions need to 11 

be made in a timely manner.  We deserve that.  12 

    MR. BICKELL:  You absolutely do.  13 

Thank you.  14 

    MS. STABITA:  Thank you.  15 

    MR. BICKELL:  Anybody else? 16 

    Well thank you for attending again.  17 

I'll remind everybody that there will be the town 18 

hall meeting tonight at the Nanticoke Municipal 19 

Building located at 15 East Ridge Street, Nanticoke. 20 

Thank you.  21 

* * * * * * * * 22 

HEARING CONCLUDED AT 12:51 P.M. 23 

* * * * * * * * 24 

 25 
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CERTIFICATE 1 

 I hereby certify that the foregoing proceeding 2 

was reported by me on 11/21/2019 and that I, Cory 3 

Ruda, read this transcript and that I attest that this 4 

transcript is a true and accurate record of the 5 

proceeding. 6 

Dated the 6th day of December, 2019 7 
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NORTHEAST REGIONAL OFFICE 

SCI RETREAT 

SUMMARY OF ENVIRONMENTAL PERMITS 

Air Quality Program 

DEP issued the Department of Corrections, State Correctional Institution (SCI) Retreat and Air 

Quality Operating Permit No. #40-00012 to operate four (4) heating boilers.  Boilers 031, 032, 

033 operate at a rated heat input of 32.0 Million Btu’s per hour (MMBtu/hr).  The boilers are 

fired on #2 fuel oil.  The boilers are regulated under 40 CFR 63 Subpart JJJJJJ, National 

Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants for Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional 

Boilers Area Sources.  The fourth boiler, Boiler 034, has a rated heat input of 33.475 MMBtu/hr 

and is fired on natural gas.  This boiler is regulated under 40 CFR 60 Subpart Dc, Standards of 

Performance for Small Industrial-Commercial-Institutional Steam Generating Units. 

The current Air Quality Operating Permit expires on November 27, 2023.  If SCI ceases 

operation, they have the option of complying with the terms and conditions of the current permit 

until a permit renewal is required.  SCI also has the option of submitting a maintenance plan 

within one (1) year of deactivation in accordance with Title 25 PA Code 127.11a, Reactivation 

of Sources.  They would be required to submit and implement a maintenance plan which 

includes the maintenance, upkeep, repair or rehabilitation procedures, which will enable the 

source to be reactivated in accordance with the terms of the permit issued to the source. 

Regarding the reactivation of the source, Section 127.215, Reactivation, states that a facility 

which has been out of operation for 1 year or more, during the term of its operating permit, may 

be reactivated within the term of its operating permit. 

Environmental Cleanup and Brownfields Program, Storage Tanks Section 

DEP has found no open remediation cases or storage tanks regulated by The Storage Tank and 

Spill Prevention Act (Act 32), at SCI Retreat.  There are 5 heating oil underground storage tanks 

(USTs) that may or may not still be on the premises:  2-25,000 gallon USTs, 1-1,500 gallon UST 

(supplies the STP emergency generator), 1-4,000 gallon UST (supplies the B Block emergency 

generator), and 1-2,500 gallon UST (supplies the Administration emergency generator).  

Although those tanks are exempt from the requirements of Act 32 and the associated technical 

regulations contained in Title 25 PA Code Chapter 245 relating to registration, leak detection, 

closure, etc., any contamination related to those USTs would have to be reported to DEP and 

remediated by the property owner per the PA Clean Streams Law. 

In order to limit the Commonwealth’s liability and prevent any pollution incidents, the USTs 

should be pumped out to contain <1” of residue once they are taken out of service.  Their vent 

lines should be open and the fill caps, lines, pumps, manways, and any ancillary equipment 

should be secured.  Although not required by statute, DEP recommends the removal of the out of 

service USTs by a DEP-certified contractor following the procedures described in DEP’s 

Technical Guidance Document “Closure Requirements for Underground Storage Tank Systems”  
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http://www.depgreenport.state.pa.us/elibrary/GetDocument?docId=7880&DocName=CLOSUR

E%20REQUIREMENTS%20FOR%20UNDERGROUND%20STORAGE%20TANK%20SYST

EMS.PDF .  

Safe Drinking Water Program 

SCI Retreat does not have regulatory involvement from the DEP Safe Drinking Water 

Program.  This facility has a service connection within the existing drinking water distribution 

service area of the Pennsylvania American Ceasetown Public Water System. 

Waterways and Wetlands Program 

SCI Retreat was not issued any permits or has any outstanding issues with the Waterways and 

Wetlands Program.  

Waste Management Program 

SCI Retreat was not issued any permits or has any outstanding issues with the Waste 

Management Program.  

Clean Water Program 

SCI Retreat (SCI) discharges its wastewater flows to a waste water treatment plant (Plant) in 

Conyngham Township, Luzerne County owned by the Sanitary Sewer Authority of the Borough 

of Shickshinny (Authority).  The Plant serves portions of Shickshinny Borough, Conyngham 

Township, Salem Township and SCI located in Newport Township.  

The Plant discharges its treated effluent to the Susquehanna River.  It is authorized by PA DEP 

NPDES Permit Number PA0060135 and Water Quality Management Permits – No. 4095405 

issued on November 27, 1995 and No. 4012402 issued on March 23, 2012.  The Plant is 

permitted to discharge 450,000 GPD (Gallons Per Day) on an annual average flow basis and 

capable to treat up to 900,000 GPD on a maximum monthly average flow basis.  The design 

organic capacity of the Plant is 1,126 pounds per day of BOD5 (Biochemical Oxygen Demands). 

The Plant operates with a Sequencing Batch Reactor (SBR) type physical and biological 

wastewater treatment system/process that was installed in 2017.  In 2018, the Plant generated 

1,345 Pounds (Lb) nitrogen credits 88 Pound (Lb) phosphorus credits in the Chesapeake Bay 

Drainage Basin.  
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The flow data to the Plant for 2018 and 2019 are: 

Month 

Monthly 

Average Flow 

in 2018 

(GPD) 

Monthly 

Average Flow 

in 2019 

(GPD) 

2018 Flow 

from SCI 

Retreat 

(GPD) 

2019 Flow 

from SCI 

Retreat 

(GPD) 

2019 SCI 

Retreat 

Flows as a 

% of Total 

WWTF 

Flows 

January 342,000 447,470 183,877 179,941 40.21% 

February 454,000 423,780 171,109 170,961 40.34% 

March 392,000 383,790 177,459 164,958 42.98% 

April 411,000 417,400 171,316 166,009 39.77% 

May 527,000 449,030 189,036 164,900 36.72% 

June 290,000 372,530 170,418 186,159 49.97% 

July 323,000 328,660 176,237 178,296 54.24% 

August 441,000 325,390 179,578 179,426 55.14% 

September 550,000 230,490 182,872 172,925 75.02% 

October 457,000 229,279 185,960 169,959 74.13% 

November 536,000 Not Available 192,949 Not Available 
Not 

Available 

December 461,000 Not Available 177,443 Not Available 
Not 

Available 

Annual 

Average 
432,000 360,782 179,855 173,353 

48.05% 

The annual average flow discharged from the Plant in 2018 was 432,000 GPD.  The annual 

average flow discharged from the Plant in 2019 (to date) was 360,782 GPD.  In 2018, the 

average monthly flow exceeded the permitted annual average flow for six of the twelve months. 

Those months were February, May, September, October, November and December.  In 2019, 

there were no exceedances. 

The sewage collection system in the Borough of Shickshinny has contributed excessive amounts 

of infiltration/inflow (I/I) to the Plant.  A Corrective Action Plan (CAP) was submitted to DEP in 

October 2014 to outline actions reduce the excessive infiltration present in the collection system. 

The CAP attributed the majority of the excessive infiltration/inflow (I/I) to its aging, relatively 

deep, gravity collection system that is directly influenced by the level of the Susquehanna River. 

Higher river levels translate into higher levels of I/I conveyed to the Plant.  The Authority 

continues to troubleshoot the I/I present in its collection and conveyance systems. 

The Authority receives raw wastewater from the Conyngham Township Sewer Authority’s 

(CTSA) sewage collection/conveyance systems.  In 2018, these flows ranged from 56,000 GPD 

to 677,000 GPD.  Based on these flows, there appears to be a significant amount of I/I present in 

the CTSA’s sewage collection/conveyance systems.  

Currently, the Plant receives wastewater generated at SCI via a 350 gallon per minute pumping 

station, located on SCI’s property, and force main consisting of 21,700 linear feet of primarily 8-

inch, SDR-26 polyvinyl chloride (PVC plastic) and DR-11 polyethylene pipe.  Ductile iron pipe 
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is used at the SCI bridge and the railroad crossings.  The force main has suffered multiple breaks 

since its installation in the mid-1990’s.  Its most recent break occurred on November 5, 2019.      

If the wastewater connection from SCI to the Plant is permanently eliminated the total 

wastewater flow conveyed to the Plant will decrease by an average of 173,000 GPD (or 48 %) 

based on the 2019 flow data.  This reduction may be less if no wastewater is generated at SCI but 

the physical connection to the SCI pump station is kept intact as I/I from SCI’s collection system 

may still reach the SCI pump station.   

Assuming no wastewater or I/I reach the pumping station at the SCI property, the total organic 

loading to the Plant will be reduced.  As the influent BOD5 concentration for SCI’s  wastewater 

is unknown, the exact amount of the reduction of organic loading is unknown; however, since 

the wastewater flow from SCI comprises approximately 48% of the total flow, the operational 

protocols (low-flow operation), and perhaps modifications to the treatment process (this may 

include basins, pumps, aeration systems, settlement/clarifier systems, decanters, disinfection and 

piping) may need to be modified.  Operational or engineering modifications at the Plant may 

require modification of the current DEP permits.  

In order to fully assess any operational or engineering modifications needed to operate the Plant 

at lower flows, DEP recommends a meeting to include DEP, SCI, and the Authority.  This can 

also include evaluations of the structural condition of the pumping station and force main.  

Any operational changes or permit modifications may result in additional expenses to the 

Authority.  Financial expenses or impact to rates are outside of DEP’s purview.  
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SCI Retreat Overview 

Luzerne County Overview (Source: EMSI 2019.4) 

Population 

Age Trends 

409 
Employees

$69,813

Average 
Annual Wage

$44.9 M 
Annual Direct 
Value Added 

to Local 
Economy

2015 Population 

317,978

Estimated 2019 
Population 

317,211
767

Median 
Household 

Income 

$49,290

Poverty Level

11.3%

Under 5
years

5 to 9
years

10 to 14
years

15 to 19
years

20 to 24
years

25 to 29
years

30 to 34
years

35 to 39
years

40 to 44
years

45 to 49
years

50 to 54
years

55 to 59
years

60 to 64
years

65 to 69
years

70 to 74
years

75 to 79
years

80 to 84
years

85 years
and
over

Change 2015-2019 720 31 (147) (204) (1,884) 585 1,181 1,192 (1,564) (1,620) (1,803) (822) 597 504 2,191 1,325 (332) (720)

2015 Population 16,002 16,921 17,960 19,682 20,969 20,402 18,462 17,639 19,217 21,846 23,454 23,473 21,268 18,785 13,681 10,094 8,093 10,031

 (5,000)

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

Age Trends

2015 Population Change 2015-2019
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Industry Employment Trends 

Description 2015 Jobs 2019 Jobs 
2015 - 2019 

Change 
2019 Location 

Quotient 

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting 83 122 39 0.07 

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction 476 313 (163) 0.48 

Utilities 2,030 1,674 (356) 3.16 

Construction 6,033 6,264 231 0.71 
Manufacturing 15,482 16,601 1,119 1.35 

Wholesale Trade 6,179 5,461 (718) 0.96 

Retail Trade 18,316 17,721 (595) 1.14 

Transportation and Warehousing 12,750 15,507 2,757 2.70 

Information 1,928 1,502 (426) 0.53 

Finance and Insurance 5,738 5,731 (7) 0.92 

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing 1,322 1,306 (16) 0.50 

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services 4,477 4,371 (106) 0.43 

Management of Companies and Enterprises 1,728 1,487 (241) 0.66 

Administrative and Support and Waste Management 
and Remediation Services 

10,918 10,311 (607) 1.06 

Educational Services 4,740 5,015 275 1.25 

Health Care and Social Assistance 23,446 24,749 1,303 1.25 

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation 1,704 1,747 43 0.65 

Accommodation and Food Services 11,995 11,908 (87) 0.89 

Other Services (except Public Administration) 5,120 5,545 425 0.75 

Government 18,421 18,304 (117) 0.79 

152,885 155,639 2,754 

Industries with highest growth and local specialization (location quotient) 

Age of Workers 

2%

4%
6%

20%
19%

22%

19%

7%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Age 14-18 Age 19-21 Age 22-24 Age 25-34 Age 35-44 Age 45-54 Age 55-64 Age 65+

Workers by Group  (2019)
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Labor Force Breakdown 

Total Working Age Population 265,724 

Not in Labor Force (15+) 107,100 

Labor Force 158,624 

Employed 149,645 

Unemployed 8,979 

Unemployed Workers by Industry 

2,721

1,054

993

877

779

646

553

221

200

176

169

160

109

68

59

55

52

34

30

20

3

0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 3,000

Transportation and Warehousing

Administrative and Support and Waste Management and…

Manufacturing

Health Care and Social Assistance

Accommodation and Food Services

Retail Trade

Construction

Wholesale Trade

No Previous Work Experience/Unspecified

Finance and Insurance

Educational Services

Professional, Scientific, and Technical Services

Other Services (except Public Administration)

Information

Government

Arts, Entertainment, and Recreation

Real Estate and Rental and Leasing

Utilities

Management of Companies and Enterprises

Mining, Quarrying, and Oil and Gas Extraction

Agriculture, Forestry, Fishing and Hunting

8,979 Unemployed Workers (July 2019)
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Impact of SCI Retreat on the Local Economy (Luzerne County) 
➢ 409 current employees at SCI Retreat 

➢ $60.88 million estimated annual spending (Source: PA Department of Corrections) 

o 83% personnel expenses and 17% operational expenses

➢ $44.9 million of annual spending is estimated to stay in the local economy (value added) 

➢ An estimated 890 jobs in the local economy are impacted by SCI Retreat’s operations  

o 0.6% of the total labor force

➢ An estimated 480 ripple effect jobs are supported in the local economy as a result of SCI 

Retreat’s operational spending and the household spending by the facility’s 409 employees 

➢ If the SCI Retreat facility is closed… 

o The loss to the local economy is estimated to be as much as $110,000 each year for

every SCI Retreat employee that moves away from the area to work (the total direct

value added in the table below divided by 409 employees). This would include an

estimated loss of $680 in local income tax for each employee that moves away.

o The loss to the local economy related to SCI Retreat’s payments to local vendors is

estimated to be as much as $13.486 million each year (the indirect value added amount

in the table below). This would include an estimated annual loss of $60,000 in total local

earned income taxes.

o The loss to the local economy related to the household spending of SCI Retreat

employees is estimated to be as much as $50,000 each year for every employee that

moves away from the area to work (the total induced value added in the table below

divided by 409 employees).

Estimated Economic Impact of SCI Retreat (Source: IMPLAN) 
Impact Type Employment Labor Income Value Added Output 

1 - Direct 409 $50,519,720 $44,940,007 $60,884,186 

2 - Indirect 191 $9,910,569 $13,486,107 $26,802,890 

3 - Induced 289 $12,106,921 $20,431,815 $36,001,028 

Total 890 $72,537,209 $78,857,929 $123,688,104 

Labor Income is the sum of employee compensation (wages and benefits) and proprietor income. 
Value Added is the sum of Employee Compensation, Proprietor Income, Other Property Income, and Taxes (less Subsidies). 
Value Added is analogous to GDP. 
Industry Output is the value of industry production. For manufacturing, this would be sales +/- inventory, for service sectors it 
would be production, and for retail and wholesale it would be gross margin. 
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How the Effects of the Closure of SCI Retreat 

Would Ripple Through the Local Economy 

Where SCI Retreat Employees Live 
The table on the previous page presents the economic impact of the loss of all 409 jobs at SCI Retreat; 

however, if this facility is closed, the employees will likely have the option to transfer to a nearby facility. 

While it would be difficult to assume the number of employees who would transfer to another facility 

and still live in Luzerne County, information on the following pages provides potential insights based on 

current commuting patterns. 

The Indirect Effect occurs 
when SCI Retreat’s local 
vendors consequently 

reduce spending for wages 
and the purchase of goods 

and services.

The Direct Effect occurs 
when SCI Retreat ceases its 
spending to pay wages and 
purchase local goods and 

services. 

The above impact scenario represents the 
total impact of SCI Retreat’s operations in 

Luzerne County. The actual economic impact 
of the facility’s closure would occur in 

proportion to (1) the value of lost income for 
local vendors, and (2) the number of 

employees and their households who would 
move away from the area to take a new job 

or experience a decrease in income by taking 
a lower paying job in the local area. 

(The Closure of SCI Retreat) 

The Induced Effect occurs 
when household spending in 
the local economy decreases 

as employees move away 
from area.
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SCI Retreat Employees by Municipality of Residence (Map) 

Areas within a 40-minute drive from a SCI facility 

SCI employees by municipality of residence 
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SCI Retreat Employees by Municipality of Residence (List) 

Municipality Employees 

Nanticoke City ............................. 26 

Newport Township ..................... 25 

Wilkes Barre City ......................... 18 

Hanover Township-Luzerne ........ 15 

Kingston Borough ....................... 13 

Larksville Borough ....................... 13 

Berwick Borough ......................... 12 

Plymouth Borough ...................... 11 

Kingston Township ...................... 10 

Union Township-Luzerne ............ 10 

Hunlock Township ........................ 9 

Dallas Township ............................ 8 

Huntington Township-Luzerne ..... 8 

Briar Creek Township .................... 7 

Fairview Township-Luzerne .......... 7 

Plymouth Township-Luzerne ........ 7 

Wright Township........................... 7 

Lehman Township-Luzerne ........... 6 

Old Forge Borough ........................ 6 

Salem Township-Luzerne .............. 6 

Scranton City ................................. 6 

Ashley Borough ............................. 5 

Dallas Borough .............................. 5 

Exeter Township-Luzerne ............. 5 

Forty Fort Borough ....................... 5 

Plains Township ............................ 5 

Ross Township-Luzerne ................ 5 

Wilkes Barre Township ................. 5 

Wyoming Borough ........................ 5 

Bangor Borough ............................ 4 

Bear Creek Township .................... 4 

Butler Township-Luzerne .............. 4 

Conyngham Township-Luzerne ..... 4 

Edwardsville Borough ................... 4 

Jenkins Township .......................... 4 

Swoyersville Borough.................... 4 

West Wyoming Borough ............... 4 

Municipality Employees 

Dunmore Borough......................... 3 

Hazle Township ............................. 3 

Hazleton City ................................. 3 

Hollenback Township .................... 3 

Jackson Township-Luzerne ............ 3 

Luzerne Borough ........................... 3 

Nescopeck Borough ...................... 3 

Slocum Township .......................... 3 

Sugar Notch Borough .................... 3 

Bloomsburg Borough .................... 2 

Conyngham Borough ..................... 2 

Courtdale Borough ........................ 2 

Danville Borough ........................... 2 

Dickson City Borough .................... 2 

Dorrance Township ....................... 2 

Dupont Borough ............................ 2 

Fairmount Township ..................... 2 

Fishing Creek Township ................. 2 

Freeland Borough .......................... 2 

Harveys Lake Borough ................... 2 

Laflin Borough ............................... 2 

New Columbus Borough ............... 2 

Pittston City ................................... 2 

Rice Township ............................... 2 

South Centre Township ................. 2 

Stillwater Borough ........................ 2 

Ararat Township ............................ 1 

Archbald Borough ......................... 1 

Auburn Township .......................... 1 

Benton Borough ............................ 1 

Blakely Borough ............................ 1 

Clarks Summit Borough ................. 1 

Coolbaugh Township ..................... 1 

Duryea Borough ............................ 1 

Exeter Borough ............................. 1 

Greenwood Township-Columbia... 1 

Hemlock Township ........................ 1 

Municipality Employees 

Hughestown Borough .................... 1 

Kidder Weatherly Township .......... 1 

Kline Township .............................. 1 

Lake Township-Luzerne ................. 1 

Lehman Township-Pike ................. 1 

Lemon Township ........................... 1 

Loyalsock Township ....................... 1 

Meshoppen Township ................... 1 

Mifflin Township-Columbia ........... 1 

Milton Borough ............................. 1 

Moosic Borough ............................ 1 

Mount Carmel Township ............... 1 

Mount Pleasant Twp-Columbia ..... 1 

North Manheim Township ............ 1 

North Union Township-Schuylkil ... 1 

Nuangola Borough ......................... 1 

Olyphant Borough ......................... 1 

Pittston Township .......................... 1 

Point Township .............................. 1 

Pottsville City ................................. 1 

Ralpho Township ........................... 1 

Rush Township-Northumberland .. 1 

Salisbury Township-Lehigh ............ 1 

Scott Township-Lackawanna ......... 1 

SCOTT ............................................ 1 

Shamokin City ................................ 1 

South Abington Township ............. 1 

Stroud Township ........................... 1 

Sugarloaf Township-Columbia ....... 1 

Sunbury City .................................. 1 

Tunkhannock Township-Monroe .. 1 

Warrior Run Borough .................... 1 

Waymart Borough ......................... 1 

Weatherly Borough ....................... 1 

West Pittston Borough .................. 1 

Source: PA Department of Corrections (2019) 
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SCI Retreat Staff Commuting Patterns 

Source: PA Department of Corrections (2019) 
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Process for Changing Township Classification 
Below is the process for the citizens of Newport to vote to become a Second-Class Township if the 

municipality’s population density drops below 300 inhabitants per square mile after the 2020 census. It 

should be noted that there are many municipalities, of all classes, where the population doesn’t fit the 

classification. Further, if the residents would elect to become a Second-Class Township, there would be 

no change in service delivery or funding opportunities. 

1. Following the 2020 census, the County Commissioners are to determine and certify that a First-

Class township no longer has a population of three hundred inhabitants per square mile.

2. At the next general or municipal election, the question of whether the First-Class township

should be reestablished as a Second-Class township will be on the ballot.

3. If the majority of votes cast are in favor of remaining a First-Class township, no further

proceedings occur.

4. If the majority of votes case are in favor of becoming a reestablished Second-Class township, the

township will be organized on the first Monday of January after the election.

Economic Investment in Luzerne County  
DCED is working to identify potential economic and community development projects in Luzerne 

County. DCED executive staff have held multiple-on-site meetings in the region to discuss opportunities 

for investment in both the local communities and the regional economy to spur growth, strengthen the 

infrastructure and create jobs. DCED has access to a number of programs that include both grants and 

loans to meet the needs of the community including Business in Our Sites (BIOS), Keystone 

Communities, Industrial Sites Reuse Program (ISRP), the Redevelopment Assistance Capital Program 

(RACP) and the Pennsylvania Industrial Development Authority (PIDA). In addition, DCED has and will 

continue to engage other state agencies to identify programs that would best address the region’s 

needs.  

DCED will be meeting with local officials and touring the area Friday, December 6. 
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Relevant Statistics for Municipalities within 15 Miles of SCI Retreat 

Muni Name 

Pension 
Liabilities (from 

2018 Act 205 
Distress Scores) 

Pension 
Fund 
Ratio 
(from 

2018 Act 
205 

Distress 
Scores) 

Pension 
Distress 

Level (from 
2018 Act 

205 
Distress 
Scores) 

Current 
Municipal 

Nonresident 
EIT (%) 

Current 
Total 

Resident 
Income 
Tax (%) 

Current 
Total 

LST ($) 

Population 
(2010 

Census) 

Current 
General 
Purpose 

Real 
Estate 
(mills) 

Current 

General 
Purpose 

Real 
Estate 
Rate 
Caps 

(mills) 

Total 
Revenues 

(2017 
audit 
data) 

Total 
Expenditures 
(2017 audit 

data) 

Earned 
Income 

Tax 
Revenues 

(2017 
audit 
data) 

LST 
Revenue 

(2017 
audit 
data) 

Debt Service 
Expenditures 
(2017 audit 

data) 

Revenues 
Per 

Capita 
(2017 
audit 
data) 

Expenditures 
Per Capita 
(2017 audit 

data) 

Total Debt 
(2017 
audit 
data) 

Debt 
Per 

Capita 
(2017 
audit 
data) 

NANTICOKE CITY 11,399,021.00 76 
Minimally 
Distressed 

1 2 52 10,465 4.9994 25 9,595,338 10,111,454 2,504,457 91,242 734,238 916.9 966.22 3,488,961 333.39 

WILKES BARRE CITY 136,276,461.00 59 
Moderately 
Distressed 

1 3 52 41,498 141.33 25 99,011,103 93,121,669 13,213,380 1,016,833 44,646,333 2385.92 2244 75,160,024 1,811.17 

ASHLEY BORO 733,760.00 180 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 2,790 3.68 30 2,132,740 2,221,300 217,704 8,744 68,164 764.42 796.16 113,730 40.76 

COURTDALE BORO 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 52 732 2 30 1,988,945 1,935,687 73,580 6,641 8,754 2717.14 2644.38 231,060 315.66 

DALLAS BORO 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 52 2,804 1.31 30 1,274,631 1,281,934 468,829 64,083 0 454.58 457.18 0 0.00 

EDWARDSVILLE BORO 3,159,174.00 100 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 4,816 3.609 30 2,609,952 2,539,041 348,709 78,309 227,159 541.93 527.21 208,578 43.31 

KINGSTON BORO 22,678,462.00 100 
Not 

Distressed 
1 2.175 52 13,182 1.55 30 9,226,477 9,378,463 4,189,562 264,815 907,342 699.93 711.46 10,727,473 813.80 

LARKSVILLE BORO 2,228,445.00 121 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 4,480 3 30 2,074,390 2,076,798 434,280 23,278 39,560 463.03 463.57 81,979 18.30 

LUZERNE BORO 175,641.00 77 
Minimally 
Distressed 

1 1 52 2,845 2.6224 30 1,143,160 1,148,286 240,647 31,832 25,269 401.81 403.62 162,165 57.00 

NEW COLUMBUS BORO 0.00 0 NO DATA 0 1 0 227 0.3768 30 59,248 30,792 23,100 0 0 261 135.65 0 0.00 

NUANGOLA BORO 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 52 679 0.444 30 283,614 209,222 82,988 1,023 0 417.69 308.13 0 0.00 

PLYMOUTH BORO 1,555,137.00 66 
Moderately 
Distressed 

1 1 52 5,951 6.01 30 2,343,413 2,273,269 406,030 34,183 163,564 393.78 382 0 0.00 

PRINGLE BORO 14,566.00 66 
Moderately 
Distressed 

1 1 52 979 0.75 30 580,766 581,889 98,580 12,619 0 593.22 594.37 0 0.00 

SHICKSHINNY BORO 43,523.00 1102 
Not 

Distressed 
0 1 35 838 0.9175 30 1,472,267 1,506,781 47,919 4,283 25,715 1756.88 1798.07 52,928 63.16 

SUGAR NOTCH BORO 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 52 989 4.5 30 479,759 407,425 105,537 2,452 0 485.1 411.96 0 0.00 

WARRIOR RUN BORO 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 10 584 1.9 30 290,505 272,299 58,976 120 42,512 497.44 466.27 1,146,668 1,963.47 

HANOVER TWP 16,150,804.00 58 
Moderately 
Distressed 

1 1 52 11,076 5.5 30 11,283,978 10,418,322 1,104,639 395,028 346,259 1018.78 940.62 2,657,952 239.97 

NEWPORT TWP 1,004,452.00 122 
Not 

Distressed 
0.5 1 52 5,374 3.25 30 1,856,295 1,727,143 383,425 27,951 14,858 345.42 321.39 14,911 2.77 

BUTLER TWP 2,745,325.00 96 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1.5 52 9,221 0.813 14 5,491,219 6,034,737 1,279,914 95,314 840,788 595.51 654.46 15,799,256 1,713.40 

CONYNGHAM TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 10 1,453 1.567 14 520,095 651,808 131,302 862 62,163 357.95 448.59 72,681 50.02 

DALLAS TWP 5,327,900.00 112 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 8,994 1.25 14 3,453,370 3,107,158 1,213,806 171,346 0 383.96 345.47 0 0.00 

DORRANCE TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 0.5 1 52 2,188 0.75 14 843,776 863,933 302,733 17,258 26,467 385.64 394.85 96,122 43.93 

FAIRMOUNT TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 0.5 1 0 1,276 1.2178 14 869,228 827,721 121,264 0 9,778 681.21 648.68 36,495 28.60 

FAIRVIEW TWP 2,201,092.00 71 
Minimally 
Distressed 

1 1 52 4,520 0.85 14 1,814,442 1,878,241 797,914 43,011 21,428 401.43 415.54 38,513 8.52 

HOLLENBACK TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 1 10 1,196 0.46 14 374,673 282,399 138,504 430 0 313.27 236.12 0 0.00 

HUNLOCK TWP 544,745.00 96 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 2,443 0.75 14 980,170 985,033 236,578 8,831 0 401.22 403.21 55,039 22.53 

HUNTINGTON TWP 768,053.00 105 
Not 

Distressed 
0 1 10 2,244 0.48 14 602,115 577,277 217,346 3,207 37,103 268.32 257.25 111,462 49.67 

JACKSON TWP 1,366,461.00 86 
Minimally 
Distressed 

1 1 52 4,646 2.22 14 2,092,402 1,944,505 484,624 33,186 227,742 450.37 418.53 1,100,030 236.77 
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Muni Name 

Pension 
Liabilities (from 

2018 Act 205 
Distress Scores) 

Pension 
Fund 
Ratio 
(from 

2018 Act 
205 

Distress 
Scores) 

Pension 
Distress 

Level (from 
2018 Act 

205 
Distress 
Scores) 

Current 
Municipal 

Nonresident 
EIT (%) 

Current 
Total 

Resident 
Income 
Tax (%) 

Current 
Total 

LST ($) 

Population 
(2010 

Census) 

Current 
General 
Purpose 

Real 
Estate 
(mills) 

Current 

General 
Purpose 

Real 
Estate 
Rate 
Caps 

(mills) 

Total 
Revenues 

(2017 
audit 
data) 

Total 
Expenditures 
(2017 audit 

data) 

Earned 
Income 

Tax 
Revenues 

(2017 
audit 
data) 

LST 
Revenue 

(2017 
audit 
data) 

Debt Service 
Expenditures 
(2017 audit 

data) 

Revenues 
Per 

Capita 
(2017 
audit 
data) 

Expenditures 
Per Capita 
(2017 audit 

data) 

Total Debt 
(2017 
audit 
data) 

Debt 
Per 

Capita 
(2017 
audit 
data) 

KINGSTON TWP 4,443,953.00 118 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1.55 52 6,999 1 14 4,495,185 3,978,600 2,416,428 51,162 76,461 642.26 568.45 240,397 34.35 

LAKE TWP 387,874.00 82 
Minimally 
Distressed 

1 1 10 2,049 0.5 14 519,040 418,360 229,222 0 0 253.31 204.18 0 0.00 

LEHMAN TWP 731,792.00 109 
Not 

Distressed 
0.5 1 52 3,508 2.1 14 2,426,884 2,524,991 419,498 37,672 86,506 691.81 719.78 789,742 225.13 

NESCOPECK TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 0.5 1 52 1,155 1.04 14 471,703 487,695 133,475 7,439 22,621 408.4 422.25 261,207 226.15 

PLYMOUTH TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 1 2 52 1,812 1.259 14 1,120,508 913,737 505,363 8,334 0 618.38 504.27 76,500 42.22 

RICE TWP 1,358,897.00 105 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 10 3,335 0.26 14 1,536,901 1,473,844 755,523 2,569 102,963 460.84 441.93 0 0.00 

ROSS TWP 534,315.00 103 
Not 

Distressed 
0.5 1 10 2,937 0.23 14 948,412 871,386 303,976 5,279 0 322.92 296.69 0 0.00 

SALEM TWP 820,246.00 87 
Minimally 
Distressed 

1 1 52 4,254 1 14 2,475,632 1,855,032 688,038 123,157 0 581.95 436.07 0 0.00 

SLOCUM TWP 0.00 0 NO DATA 0 1 10 1,115 0 14 264,363 210,349 126,976 312 0 237.1 188.65 0 0.00 

SUGARLOAF TWP 1,236,622.00 104 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1.5 52 4,211 1.0675 14 2,230,236 2,303,920 551,371 64,179 0 529.62 547.12 0 0.00 

UNION TWP 242,695.00 96 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 2,042 0.4 14 550,244 542,047 218,993 10,465 0 269.46 265.45 0 0.00 

WRIGHT TWP 4,612,283.00 101 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 5,651 0.7516 14 2,756,248 2,841,374 857,655 209,459 8,573 487.75 502.81 0 0.00 

FISHING CREEK TWP NO DATA 
NO 

DATA 
NO DATA 1 1.6 0 1,416 2.45 14 587,357 552,341 154,756 0 0 414.8 390.07 0 0.00 

BERWICK BORO 7,262,863.00 97 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 52 10,477 17.1 30 5,047,495 4,869,348 874,925 196,739 55,988 481.77 464.77 620,844 59.26 

BRIAR CREEK TWP 1,343,874.00 101 
Not 

Distressed 
1 1 35 3,016 6 14 1,374,871 1,348,621 358,051 16,965 0 455.86 447.16 28,385 9.41 
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Part 1: Reemployment Assessment Report for the  
Retreat State Correctional Institution (SCI) 

The commonwealth has announced the closing of the Retreat State Correctional Institution (SCI) in 
Luzerne County. The geographical areas affected by this closure are the Luzerne-Schuylkill counties 
Workforce Development Area (WDA), which includes Luzerne and Schuylkill counties, and the 
Scranton--Wilkes-Barre--Hazleton Metropolitan Statistical Area (MSA), which includes Luzerne, 
Lackawanna and Wyoming counties. Based on 2019 data provided to the Center for Workforce 
Information & Analysis (CWIA), there were 419 employees at SCI Retreat, including six Probation and 
Parole workers. These employees fall into 82 different job classifications, which have been converted to a 
list of 50 unique Standard Occupational Classification (SOC) codes in a “crosswalk” table (Attachment 
A).  Average wage data for the Luzerne-Schuylkill WDA and Scranton--Wilkes-Barre--Hazleton MSA, 
and the commonwealth are provided in Attachment B for the impacted SOC occupations. 

The Pennsylvania Department of Corrections has indicated that it will offer all of the affected SCI 
Retreat employees positions at six other state prisons within 65 miles, which currently have a combined 
189 vacant positions available. Such actions would greatly improve reemployment prospects for 
individuals who are willing to accept those offers. Analysis in this report will focus on the 
reemployment assessment should these offers not occur, or be accepted, by the impacted 
individuals. Attachment C classifies the prospects for reemployment in the 50 SOC occupations into four 
categories and shows projected six-month demand in the Luzerne-Schuylkill WDA, Scranton--Wilkes-
Barre--Hazleton MSA and the entire commonwealth. 

 Thirty-nine occupations representing 108 employees, or 26 percent, are classified as having
“Good” or “Fair” Reemployment Prospects. Workers in these categories should find sufficient job
openings within the WDA or MSA.

 “Fair to Difficult” prospects exist for 10 occupations. The 285 employees in these occupations
may have difficulty finding work in their current occupation within their immediate geographical
area. However, prospects for reemployment improve if the dislocated employees are willing to
relocate elsewhere in the state.

 The remaining occupation, “Supervisors - Correctional Officers,” covers 26 employees.
Reemployment prospects for these workers are classified as “Difficult.” These dislocated
employees can expect substantial difficulty finding reemployment in their current occupation
within their current region and throughout the commonwealth.

 Seventy-four percent of SCI Retreat employees work in occupations that fall into the “Fair to
Difficult” or “Difficult” categories. For these occupations, lists of jobs that require similar skills
have been provided in Attachment D, along with additional information on these related
occupations.

 Attachment E is the 2019 High Priority Occupations listing for the Luzerne-Schuylkill WDA.
Workforce development funding in the commonwealth may be available for training programs
required to enter these occupations.

 Attachment F shows typical educational requirements, work experience and top-employing
industries for Correctional Officers & Jailers, the occupation with the largest employment volume.

 A real-time look at current job prospects for Correctional Officers & Jailers can be found in
Attachment G. Help Wanted Online Ads (HWOL) shows counts of online job listings in this field
throughout PA and neighboring states within the past month, along with locations and sources.
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Some additional characteristics of Luzerne County were gathered from the September 2019 edition of the 
Pennsylvania Civilian Labor Force Packet, available at www.workstats.dli.pa.gov. 
 

 Luzerne County had a seasonally adjusted unemployment rate of 5.4 percent in September 2019, 
down from 5.5 in August 2019. Luzerne’s current rate is higher than the state (4.0 percent) and the 
nation (3.5 percent). 

 In September 2019, the labor force in Luzerne County totaled 157,900. This accounts for about 70 
percent of the Luzerne-Schuylkill WDA labor force that same month (225,300). 

 
 

 
 
 

Part 2: Economic Impact of the  
Retreat State Correctional Institution (SCI) 

 
Attachments H & I show the potential effects of the SCI Retreat closure in Luzerne County.  Attachment 
H illustrates the estimated impact on sales, employment, income and tax revenue. The data are 
categorized by the types of industries that will be adversely affected. The first is the specific industry in 
which SCI Retreat is found (direct impact). The second are related industries or suppliers to the direct 
industry (indirect impact). The third are industries such as retail trade and health care that are impacted 
due to decreased spending because of lost jobs and less available household income (induced impact). 
 
The employment multiplier for these layoffs in Pennsylvania is 2.2, which is above the Pennsylvania 
multiplier average for all industries, or 1.9.  An estimated 2.2 jobs will be lost for each job lost at the SCI 
Retreat (this includes the jobs lost at SCI Retreat). Thus, a loss of 419 jobs may result in an estimated 
total of 907 jobs lost (419 multiplied by 2.2 – specifically in this case 2.16).   
 
Attachment I depicts the industries that may suffer employment losses due to the 419 layoffs at SCI 
Retreat. Data in this table are also categorized by direct, indirect and induced jobs. 
 
Economic Impact Analysis is most useful as an indicator of severity and of inter-industry linkages.  
Impact analysis is generally a worst-case scenario in which the effects of substitution in the supply chain 
of the closing facility are not considered.  
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Retreat SCI
Job Title

SOC 
Code

SOC Title Empl.

Adlt Bas Ed Tchr Corr Ed 25-3011 Adult Literacy, Remedial Education & GED Teachers 4

Admv Ofr 1 43-1011 Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support Workers 1

Amrot Auto Mchnc Insp Tchlgy 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Bldg Trd Cott Cr Ed Bldg Trds Cstdl Mntn 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Bus Occups Tchr Corr Ed 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Clk 2 43-9061 Office Clerks, General 2

Clk Steno 3 43-9022 Word Processors & Typists 1

Clk Typst 2 43-9022 Word Processors & Typists 3

Clk Typst 3 43-9022 Word Processors & Typists 1

Corr Actvs Mgr 1 39-9032 Recreation Workers 1

Corr Actvs Spcst 39-9032 Recreation Workers 3

Corr Autmtv Mchnc Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Corr Brbr Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Corr Clsftn Prgm Mgr 11-9151 Social & Community Service Managers 1

Corr Cnslr 1 21-1019 Counselors, Other 1

Corr Cnslr 2 21-1019 Counselors, Other 9

Corr Commissary Clk 41-2011 Cashiers 1

Corr Crpntry Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Corr Eltrncs Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 2

Corr Empmt Vctnl Coor 21-1012 Educational, Vocational & School Counselors 1

Corr Equip Opr 53-3032 Truck Drivers, Heavy & Tractor-Trailer 3

Corr Fac Mntnc Mgr 1 49-1011 Supervisors - Mechanics, Installers & Repairers 1

Corr Fac Mntnc Mgr 2 49-1011 Supervisors - Mechanics, Installers & Repairers 1

Corr Food Serv Instr 35-1012 Supervisors - Food Preparation & Serving Workers 13

Corr Food Serv Mgr 1 11-9051 Food Service Managers 1

Corr Food Serv Supv 35-1012 Supervisors - Food Preparation & Serving Workers 4

Corr Gen Indry Fctry Frmn 1 51-9199 Production Workers, Other 2

Corr Hlth Cre Adm 11-9111 Medical & Health Services Managers 1

Corr Instl Sf Mgr 29-9011 Occupational Health & Safety Specialists 1

Corr Lbrn 25-4021 Librarians 1

Corr Lndry Plnt Frmn 1 51-1011 Supervisors - Production & Operating Workers 2

Corr Lndry Plnt Supv 51-1011 Supervisors - Production & Operating Workers 1

Corr Mail Insp 43-9051 Mail Clerks & Mail Machine Operators 2

Corr Mail Insp Supv 43-1011 Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support Workers 1

Corr Mntnc Frmn 49-9071 Maintenance & Repair Workers, General 9

Corr Ofr 1 33-3012 Correctional Officers & Jailers 186

Corr Ofr 2 33-3012 Correctional Officers & Jailers 26

Corr Ofr 3 33-1011 Supervisors - Correctional Officers 16

Corr Ofr 4 33-1011 Supervisors - Correctional Officers 7

Attachment A
Listing of Job Classifications at SCI Retreat
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Retreat SCI
Job Title

SOC 
Code

SOC Title Empl.

Attachment A
Listing of Job Classifications at SCI Retreat

Corr Ofr 5 33-1011 Supervisors - Correctional Officers 1

Corr Ofr Trn 33-3012 Correctional Officers & Jailers 19

Corr Plmbg Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 2

Corr Plnt Mchnc 47-2011 Boilermakers 1

Corr Pntg Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Corr Rfgtn Mchnc Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

Corr Sch Prncpl 11-9039 Education Administrators, Other 1

Corr Stk Clk 43-5081 Stock Clerks & Order Fillers 2

Corr Supt 2 11-1021 General & Operations Managers 1

Corr Supt Asst 2 13-1199 Business Operations Specialists, Other 1

Corr Unt Mgr 21-1099 Community & Social Service Specialists, Other 4

Corr Util Plnt Opr 51-8021 Stationary Engineers & Boiler Operators 5

Corr Wldg Trd Instr 25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 1

D&A Trmt Spcst 1 21-1011 Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors 1

D&A Trmt Spcst 2 21-1011 Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors 2

D&A Trmt Spcst Supv 21-1011 Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors 1

Dent 29-1021 Dentists, General 2

Dep Corr Supt 2 33-1011 Supervisors - Correctional Officers 2

Dntl Asst 31-9091 Dental Assistants 1

Dntl Hygst 29-2021 Dental Hygienists 1

Ednl Gdnc Cnslr Corr Ed 21-1012 Educational, Vocational & School Counselors 1

Fac Chplncy Prgm Dir 21-2011 Clergy 1

Fscl Mgmt Spcst 2 13-2031 Budget Analysts 1

Hr Anl 1 (Gen) 13-1071 Employment, Recruitment & Placement Specialists 1

Hr Anl 3 (Gen) 13-1071 Employment, Recruitment & Placement Specialists 1

Hr Asst 2 43-4161 Human Resources Assistants 1

Instl Prl Asst 23-2099 Legal Support Workers, Other 1

It Genst 1 43-9011 Computer Operators 1

Lbry Asst 2 43-4121 Library Assistants, Clerical 1

Lcnsd Prctcl Nrs 29-2061 Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses 5

Lcnsd Psycgst Mgr Corr 19-3031 Clinical, Counseling & School Psychologists 1

Med Rcrds Asst 29-2071 Medical Records & Health Information Technicians 1

Med Rcrds Tchn 29-2071 Medical Records & Health Information Technicians 1

Prl Agt 2 21-1092 Probation Officers & Correctional Treatment Specialists 4

Prl Supv 21-1092 Probation Officers & Correctional Treatment Specialists 1

Psycl Srvs Spcst Corr 19-3031 Clinical, Counseling & School Psychologists 10

Rcrds Spcst 2 43-4071 File Clerks 2

Rcrds Supv 43-1011 Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support Workers 1

Regsted Nrs 29-1141 Registered Nurses 13
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Retreat SCI
Job Title

SOC 
Code

SOC Title Empl.

Attachment A
Listing of Job Classifications at SCI Retreat

Regsted Nrs Supv 29-1141 Registered Nurses 2

Soc Wkr 2 21-1029 Social Workers, Other 2

Spc Ed Tchr Corr Ed 25-2059 Special Education Teachers, Other 1

Thrptc Actvs Srvs Wkr 29-1125 Recreational Therapists 1

419
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SOC 
Code

SOC Title Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual

11-1021 General & Operations Managers 56.55 117,620 56.35 117,210 64.18 133,480

11-9039 Education Administrators, Other N/A N/A 40.32 83,880 38.73 80,560

11-9051 Food Service Managers 33.18 69,020 28.55 59,390 32.06 66,680

11-9111 Medical & Health Services Managers 45.67 95,000 40.52 84,270 46.78 97,310

11-9151 Social & Community Service Managers 30.45 63,350 29.37 61,090 31.55 65,620

13-1071 Employment, Recruitment & Placement Specialists 32.81 68,250 30.87 64,200 32.39 67,370

13-1199 Business Operations Specialists, Other 34.42 71,590 35.60 74,050 38.90 80,910

13-2031 Budget Analysts 35.71 74,280 32.41 67,420 35.20 73,220

19-3031 Clinical, Counseling & School Psychologists 40.90 85,080 41.45 86,210 40.20 83,610

21-1011 Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors 21.61 44,950 21.15 44,000 21.99 45,740

21-1012 Educational, Vocational & School Counselors 30.19 62,800 30.06 62,530 29.45 61,260

21-1019 Counselors, Other N/A N/A 28.25 58,750 27.46 57,120

21-1029 Social Workers, Other 32.83 68,280 26.78 55,690 30.89 64,260

21-1092 Probation Officers & Correctional Treatment Specialists N/A N/A 27.22 56,630 26.58 55,280

21-1099 Community & Social Service Specialists, Other N/A N/A 18.82 39,150 24.43 50,810

21-2011 Clergy 21.12 43,940 21.28 44,260 24.00 49,920

23-2099 Legal Support Workers, Other 25.56 53,160 N/A N/A 37.57 78,140

25-1194 Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 26.26 54,620 25.15 52,300 27.62 57,460

25-2059 Special Education Teachers, Other N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 66,780

25-3011 Adult Literacy, Remedial Education & GED Teachers 25.24 52,490 24.40 50,750 26.06 54,190

25-4021 Librarians 22.98 47,810 24.22 50,370 27.66 57,530

29-1021 Dentists, General N/A N/A 97.38 202,540 74.02 153,950

29-1125 Recreational Therapists 26.14 54,360 25.73 53,520 22.07 45,900

29-1141 Registered Nurses 32.16 66,890 31.50 65,520 33.84 70,390

29-2021 Dental Hygienists 23.95 49,810 24.87 51,740 32.22 67,010

Attachment B

PennsylvaniaWDA

2018 Annual Average Wages ($)
MSA

Average Wages for SOC Occupations within SCI Retreat
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SOC 
Code

SOC Title Hourly Annual Hourly Annual Hourly Annual

Attachment B

PennsylvaniaWDA

2018 Annual Average Wages ($)
MSA

Average Wages for SOC Occupations within SCI Retreat

29-2061 Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses 21.26 44,220 21.21 44,130 23.14 48,120

29-2071 Medical Records & Health Information Technicians 18.54 38,560 20.12 41,840 19.87 41,320

29-9011 Occupational Health & Safety Specialists 29.32 60,980 30.29 63,010 33.81 70,330

31-9091 Dental Assistants 18.43 38,330 18.86 39,230 18.85 39,200

33-1011 Supervisors - Correctional Officers 40.40 84,030 40.40 84,030 N/A N/A

33-3012 Correctional Officers & Jailers N/A N/A 28.19 58,620 26.03 54,140

35-1012 Supervisors - Food Preparation & Serving Workers 16.79 34,930 16.93 35,220 18.54 38,570

39-9032 Recreation Workers 12.24 25,460 11.97 24,900 12.87 26,770

41-2011 Cashiers 9.29 19,330 9.39 19,540 10.17 21,160

43-1011 Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support Workers 27.23 56,650 26.80 55,740 29.23 60,800

43-4071 File Clerks 12.27 25,530 12.84 26,710 15.63 32,520

43-4121 Library Assistants, Clerical 13.64 28,370 13.21 27,480 12.10 25,160

43-4161 Human Resources Assistants 19.44 40,440 19.13 39,790 19.49 40,550

43-5081 Stock Clerks & Order Fillers 12.31 25,610 12.44 25,870 12.57 26,150

43-9011 Computer Operators 20.02 41,650 20.07 41,740 21.71 45,150

43-9022 Word Processors & Typists 18.84 39,190 18.92 39,340 17.60 36,600

43-9051 Mail Clerks & Mail Machine Operators 18.12 37,690 16.74 34,810 15.14 31,500

43-9061 Office Clerks, General 16.30 33,900 15.88 33,040 17.05 35,460

47-2011 Boilermakers N/A N/A N/A N/A 37.69 78,380

49-1011 Supervisors - Mechanics, Installers & Repairers 30.94 64,360 31.10 64,680 34.23 71,190

49-9071 Maintenance & Repair Workers, General 17.99 37,420 17.38 36,150 19.29 40,130

51-1011 Supervisors - Production & Operating Workers 30.93 64,340 29.12 60,570 30.03 62,470

51-8021 Stationary Engineers & Boiler Operators 25.05 52,100 25.10 52,210 26.73 55,590

51-9199 Production Workers, Other 13.20 27,450 14.14 29,400 19.06 39,650

53-3032 Truck Drivers, Heavy & Tractor-Trailer 22.22 46,220 22.34 46,460 22.43 46,650

Source: Center for Workforce Information & Analysis, Occupational Wages (2018) 
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Good Reemployment Prospects
Company 

Empl.
WDA MSA PA

Budget Analysts 1 2 2 71

Business Operations Specialists, Other 1 23 32 818

Cashiers 1 512 658 13,248

Clergy 1 17 22 862

Computer Operators 1 2 2 74

Dental Assistants 1 32 46 713

Dentists, General 2 4 6 92

Educational, Vocational & School Counselors 2 20 24 514

Employment, Recruitment & Placement Specialists 2 30 38 1,222

File Clerks 2 10 10 233

Food Service Managers 1 10 14 464

General & Operations Managers 1 93 122 3,280

Human Resources Assistants 1 10 12 294

Legal Support Workers, Other 1 2 2 43

Librarians 1 5 9 244

Library Assistants, Clerical 1 7 14 381

Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses 5 73 102 1,598

Mail Clerks & Mail Machine Operators 2 5 8 235

Maintenance & Repair Workers, General 9 114 142 3,257

Medical & Health Services Managers 1 24 33 750

Medical Records & Health Information Technicians 2 8 10 284

Occupational Health & Safety Specialists 1 2 2 94

Office Clerks, General 2 246 346 8,212

Production Workers, Other 2 12 16 240

Recreation Workers 4 35 45 1,294

Recreational Therapists 1 2 2 41

Registered Nurses 15 152 210 4,747

Social & Community Service Managers 1 10 14 375

Social Workers, Other 2 3 3 70

Stock Clerks & Order Fillers 2 234 314 5,850

Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors 4 16 22 479

Supervisors - Food Preparation & Serving Workers 17 81 114 2,472

Supervisors - Mechanics, Installers & Repairers 2 26 32 849

Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support Workers 3 100 138 3,163

Supervisors - Production & Operating Workers 3 62 57 1,374

Truck Drivers, Heavy & Tractor-Trailer 3 242 314 5,008

Word Processors & Typists 5 8 10 227

106

Attachment C

6-Month Demand

Reemployment Assessment for SCI Retreat
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Attachment C
Reemployment Assessment for SCI Retreat

Fair Reemployment Prospects
Company 

Empl.
WDA MSA PA

Dental Hygienists 1 N/A 14 336

Education Administrators, Other 1 N/A 1 48

2

Fair to Difficult Reemployment Prospects
Company 

Empl.
WDA MSA PA

Adult Literacy, Remedial Education & GED Teachers 4 N/A N/A 96

Boilermakers 1 N/A N/A 34

Clinical, Counseling & School Psychologists 11 8 7 248

Community & Social Service Specialists, Other 4 N/A 2 97

Correctional Officers & Jailers 231 N/A 26 607

Counselors, Other 10 2 2 72

Probation Officers & Correctional Treatment Specialists 5 N/A 4 200

Special Education Teachers, Other 1 0 N/A 8

Stationary Engineers & Boiler Operators 5 N/A 4 175

Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary 13 6 5 186

285

Difficult Reemployment Prospects
Company 

Empl.
WDA MSA PA

Supervisors - Correctional Officers 26 N/A 2 18

26

Source: Center for Workforce Information & Analysis, Occupational Employment Projections, 2016-2026 

6-Month Demand

6-Month Demand

6-Month Demand
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Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

Adult Literacy, Remedial Education & GED 
Teachers

Career/Technical Education Teachers, Middle School N/A 1 24 N/A 67,470 86,170 Elementary & Secondary Schools

Elementary School Teachers 76 100 1,943 64,000 58,600 66,860
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Religious Organizations
Employment Services

Kindergarten Teachers 13 14 254 66,410 65,500 62,510
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Child Day Care Services
Religious Organizations

Librarians 5 9 244 47,810 50,370 57,530
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Colleges & Universities
Other Information Services

Middle School Teachers 35 26 912 57,190 55,840 67,950
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Employment Services
Religious Organizations

Secondary School Teachers 67 62 1,619 69,370 66,330 64,830
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Local Government
Employment Services

Social Science Research Assistants N/A N/A 53 44,150 43,030 43,710
Colleges & Universities
Local Government
Scientific Research & Development Services

Training & Development Specialists 18 21 572 53,160 53,480 65,430
Management of Companies & Enterprises
Management & Technical Consulting Services
Computer Systems Design & Rel Services

Boilermakers

Carpenters 40 58 2,194 43,360 45,940 53,450
Self-Employed
Residential Building Construction
Nonresidential Building Construction

Gas Compressor & Gas Pumping Station Operators N/A N/A 36 N/A N/A 62,790
Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas
Local Government
Support Activities for Mining

Maintenance & Repair Workers, General 114 142 3,257 37,420 36,150 40,130
Lessors of Real Estate
Local Government
Activities Related to Real Estate

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations
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Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations

Boilermakers, cont.

Plumbers, Pipefitters & Steamfitters 18 34 964 52,000 48,540 60,380
Building Equipment Contractors
Self-Employed
Local Government

Recreational Vehicle Service Technicians N/A N/A 28 N/A N/A 39,700
Other Motor Vehicle Dealers
Automotive Equipment Rental & Leasing
Automotive Repair & Maintenance

Sheet Metal Workers 16 15 251 56,270 58,560 57,540
Building Equipment Contractors
Architectural & Structural Metals
Building Foundation/Exterior Contractors

Structural Iron & Steel Workers N/A N/A 108 N/A N/A 60,100
Building Foundation/Exterior Contractors
Nonresidential Building Construction
Architectural & Structural Metals

Telecommunications Line Installers & Repairers 10 16 304 61,630 60,200 69,530
Wired Telecommunications Carriers
Building Equipment Contractors
Utility System Construction

Clinical, Counseling & School Psychologists

Child, Family & School Social Workers 21 33 1,118 38,720 38,980 43,680
Individual & Family Services
Local Government
Outpatient Care Centers

Clergy 17 22 862 43,940 44,260 49,920
Religious Organizations
Home Health Care Services
General Medical & Surgical Hospitals

Education Administrators, Postsecondary 3 8 191 133,940 119,130 112,890
Colleges & Universities
Junior Colleges
Self-Employed

Education Teachers, Postsecondary N/A 8 146 N/A 64,650 70,990
Colleges & Universities
Junior Colleges
Self-Employed

Educational, Guidance, School & Vocational 
Counselors

20 24 514 62,800 62,530 61,260
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Colleges & Universities
Vocational Rehabilitation Services

Healthcare Social Workers 19 21 470 66,390 61,830 53,770
General Medical & Surgical Hospitals
Individual & Family Services
Home Health Care Services
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Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations

Instructional Coordinators 2 6 264 69,440 71,040 67,890
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Colleges & Universities
Educational Support Services

Marriage & Family Therapists 2 N/A 98 50,510 49,660 58,400
Individual & Family Services
Outpatient Care Centers
Offices of Other Health Practitioners

Mental Health & Substance Abuse Social Workers 22 28 658 34,570 37,890 38,440
Outpatient Care Centers
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Individual & Family Services

Mental Health Counselors 41 61 910 N/A N/A N/A
Individual & Family Services
Outpatient Care Centers
Residential Mental Health Facilities

Psychologists, All Other N/A N/A 20 N/A N/A 87,940
Federal Government
Self-Employed
Other Hospitals

Psychology Teachers, Postsecondary N/A 7 115 N/A 80,030 89,300
Colleges & Universities
Junior Colleges
Self-Employed

Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors 16 22 479 N/A N/A N/A
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Individual & Family Services
Outpatient Care Centers

Community & Social Service Specialists, Other

Correctional Officers & Jailers

Detectives & Criminal Investigators 5 4 119 82,140 81,230 85,730
Local Government
Federal Government
State Government

Police & Sheriff's Patrol Officers 40 48 955 56,080 54,370 66,600
Local Government
State Government
Colleges & Universities

Psychiatric Technicians N/A N/A 76 N/A N/A 31,340
Psychiatric & Substance Abuse Hospitals
General Medical & Surgical Hospitals
Residential Mental Health Facilities

There is no data on related occupations for this SOC Title.

Clinical, Counseling & School Psychologists, cont.
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Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations

Correctional Officers & Jailers, cont. 

Residential Advisors 38 48 776 25,770 27,580 28,050
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Emergency & Other Relief Services
Other Residential Care Facilities

Social & Human Service Assistants 62 61 1,392 33,920 32,740 34,320
Individual & Family Services
Residential Mental Health Facilities
State Government

Counselors, Other

Probation Officers & Correctional Treatment 
Specialists

Arbitrators, Mediators & Conciliators N/A 0 10 N/A N/A 69,280
Legal Services
Local Government
Management & Technical Consulting Services

Child, Family & School Social Workers 21 33 1,118 38,720 38,980 43,680
Individual & Family Services
Local Government
Outpatient Care Centers

Educational, Guidance, School & Vocational 
Counselors

20 24 514 62,800 62,530 61,260
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Colleges & Universities
Vocational Rehabilitation Services

Psychiatric Technicians N/A N/A 76 N/A N/A 31,340
Psychiatric & Substance Abuse Hospitals
General Medical & Surgical Hospitals
Residential Mental Health Facilities

Rehabilitation Counselors 16 16 522 49,090 44,740 39,980
Individual & Family Services
Vocational Rehabilitation Services
Residential Mental Health Facilities

Social & Human Service Assistants 62 61 1,392 33,920 32,740 34,320
Individual & Family Services
Residential Mental Health Facilities
State Government

Special Education Teachers, Other

There is no data on related occupations for this SOC Title.

There is no data on related occupations for this SOC Title.
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11/25/2019

Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations

Stationary Engineers & Boiler Operators

Control & Valve Installers & Repairers 2 2 46 66,090 66,200 59,940
Local Government
Natural Gas Distribution
Commercial Machinery Repair/Maintenance

Elec. Repairers - Powerhouse, Substation & Relay N/A N/A 46 N/A N/A 74,790
Power Generation & Supply
Commercial Machinery Repair/Maintenance
Utility System Construction

Gas Compressor & Gas Pumping Station Operators N/A N/A 36 N/A N/A 62,790
Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas
Local Government
Support Activities for Mining

Gas Plant Operators N/A N/A 56 N/A N/A 67,210
Pipeline Transportation of Natural Gas
Natural Gas Distribution
Local Government

Industrial Machinery Mechanics 38 40 746 53,110 53,010 52,830
Commercial Machinery Repair/Maintenance
Machinery & Supply Merchant Wholesalers
Plastics Product Manufacturing

Maintenance & Repair Workers, General 114 142 3,257 37,420 36,150 40,130
Lessors of Real Estate
Local Government
Activities Related to Real Estate

Motorboat Mechanics & Service Technicians N/A N/A 15 N/A N/A 39,000
Other Motor Vehicle Dealers
Other Amusement & Recreation Industries
Self-Employed

Power Plant Operators N/A N/A 76 N/A N/A 72,550
Power Generation & Supply
Local Government
Federal Government

Ship Engineers N/A N/A 6 N/A N/A 81,900
Federal Government
Support Activities for Water Transport
Sea, Coastal & Great Lakes Transport

Transportation Inspectors N/A N/A 32 N/A N/A 65,710
Federal Government
Architectural & Engineering Services
State Government

Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary

Career/Technical Education Teachers, Middle School N/A 1 24 N/A 67,470 86,170 Elementary & Secondary Schools
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Center for Workforce Information & Analysis
11/25/2019

Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations

Vocational Education Teachers, Postsecondary, 
cont.
Career/Technical Education Teachers, Secondary 
School

4 4 160 N/A 74,310 65,540
Elementary & Secondary Schools
Performing Arts Companies

Food Service Managers 10 14 464 69,020 59,390 66,680
Restaurants & Other Eating Places
Self-Employed
Special Food Services

Preschool Teachers 28 34 937 28,320 25,510 29,250
Child Day Care Services
Religious Organizations
Elementary & Secondary Schools

Recreation Workers 35 45 1,294 25,460 24,900 26,770
Local Government
Civic & Social Organizations
Nursing Care Facilities

Residential Advisors 38 48 776 25,770 27,580 28,050
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Emergency & Other Relief Services
Other Residential Care Facilities

Self-Enrichment Education Teachers 24 29 800 32,270 30,580 39,640
Other Schools & Instruction
Self-Employed
Religious Organizations

Social & Human Service Assistants 62 61 1,392 33,920 32,740 34,320
Individual & Family Services
Residential Mental Health Facilities
State Government

Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support 
Workers

100 138 3,163 56,650 55,740 60,800
Depository Credit Intermediation
Management of Companies & Enterprises
State Government

Supervisors - Personal Service Workers 16 26 684 39,830 39,050 40,060
Self-Employed
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Individual & Family Services

Supervisors - Correctional Officers

Detectives & Criminal Investigators 5 4 119 82,140 81,230 85,730
Local Government
Federal Government
State Government
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Center for Workforce Information & Analysis
11/25/2019

Related Occupations WDA MSA PA WDA MSA PA Examples of Dominant Employers

6-Month Demand 2018 Average Wages ($)

Attachment D
Job Demand, Annual Wages & Employing Industry Data for the Related Occupations

Supervisors - Correctional Officer, cont.

Police & Sheriff's Patrol Officers 40 48 955 56,080 54,370 66,600
Local Government
State Government
Colleges & Universities

Residential Advisors 38 48 776 25,770 27,580 28,050
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Emergency & Other Relief Services
Other Residential Care Facilities

Supervisors - Helpers, Laborers & Material Movers 36 38 532 N/A N/A N/A
Warehousing & Storage
Couriers
General Freight Trucking

Supervisors - Personal Service Workers 16 26 684 39,830 39,050 40,060
Self-Employed
Residential Mental Health Facilities
Individual & Family Services

Supervisors - Police & Detectives 5 4 110 80,960 81,800 92,170
Local Government
State Government
Federal Government

Supervisors - Transportation & Vehicle Operators 29 N/A 476 N/A N/A N/A
General Freight Trucking
Warehousing & Storage
Specialized Freight Trucking

Sources: Center for Workforce Information & Analysis, Occupational Employment Projections (2016-2026) and Occupational Wages (2018)
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SOC 
Code

SOC Title
Educational 
Attainment

Entry 
Level

Annual 
Average

Exper. 
Level

Estimated 
2016

Projected 
2026

Percent 
Change

Annual 
Demand

13-1023 Purchasing Agents BD $42,110 $61,040 $70,500 360 330 -8.3% 27
13-1041 Compliance Officers BD $33,540 $57,110 $68,900 340 360 5.9% 30
13-1071 Human Resources Specialists BD $44,550 $68,250 $80,100 570 610 7.0% 59
13-2011 Accountants & Auditors BD $46,270 $69,400 $80,960 1,580 1,720 8.9% 158
15-1151 Computer User Support Specialists PS $28,370 $43,360 $50,860 740 830 12.2% 66
17-3025 Environmental Engineering Technicians AD N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
17-3031 Surveying & Mapping Technicians MT OJT $31,430 $41,320 $46,270 30 40 33.3% 3
21-1011 Substance Abuse & Behavioral Disorder Counselors BD $31,100 $44,950 $51,880 260 300 15.4% 32
21-1093 Social & Human Service Assistants ST OJT $26,310 $33,920 $37,730 960 1,040 8.3% 125
29-1141 Registered Nurses BD $52,500 $66,890 $74,090 4,460 5,090 14.1% 303
29-2012 Medical & Clinical Laboratory Technicians AD $32,180 $49,750 $58,540 370 430 16.2% 29
29-2034 Radiologic Technologists AD $41,870 $54,500 $60,820 370 410 10.8% 25
29-2052 Pharmacy Technicians MT OJT $23,380 $30,390 $33,890 880 970 10.2% 80
29-2061 Licensed Practical & Licensed Vocational Nurses PS $35,850 $44,220 $48,400 1,840 1,960 6.5% 146
31-1014 Nursing Assistants PS $25,010 $30,470 $33,200 3,860 4,160 7.8% 476
31-2021 Physical Therapist Assistants AD $27,390 $47,460 $57,500 180 230 27.8% 29
31-9011 Massage Therapists PS $41,790 $55,300 $62,060 160 200 25.0% 22
31-9091 Dental Assistants PS $28,450 $38,330 $43,280 500 560 12.0% 63
31-9092 Medical Assistants PS $27,050 $33,820 $37,200 520 640 23.1% 74
31-9097 Phlebotomists PS $27,840 $33,250 $35,950 190 230 21.1% 25
33-3051 Police & Sheriff's Patrol Officers MT OJT $30,420 $56,080 $68,920 1,190 1,230 3.4% 80
33-9032 Security Guards ST OJT $22,830 $40,870 $49,890 1,270 1,320 3.9% 172
35-1012 Supervisors - Food Preparation & Serving Workers WK EXP $19,870 $34,930 $42,460 1,060 1,140 7.5% 162
37-1011 Supervisors - Housekeeping & Janitorial Workers WK EXP $25,910 $40,140 $47,250 280 290 3.6% 33
41-1011 Supervisors - Retail Sales Workers WK EXP $25,560 $42,130 $50,410 1,590 1,610 1.3% 169
43-1011 Supervisors - Office & Administrative Support Workers WK EXP $38,110 $56,650 $65,920 2,040 2,060 1.0% 199
43-3011 Bill & Account Collectors MT OJT $21,980 $29,740 $33,610 580 510 -12.1% 50
43-3031 Bookkeeping, Accounting & Auditing Clerks PS+ $24,750 $36,820 $42,850 1,970 1,900 -3.6% 207
43-4051 Customer Service Representatives ST OJT $23,500 $31,990 $36,240 3,990 4,170 4.5% 534
43-4061 Eligibility Interviewers, Government Programs MT OJT $41,870 $49,320 $53,050 260 270 3.8% 24
43-5061 Production, Planning & Expediting Clerks MT OJT $31,020 $41,290 $46,430 610 680 11.5% 72
43-6011 Executive Secretaries & Executive Administrative Assistants WK EXP $36,310 $51,230 $58,690 N/A N/A N/A N/A
43-6014 Secretaries ST OJT $23,560 $33,890 $39,050 3,260 2,960 -9.2% 301
43-9041 Insurance Claims & Policy Processing Clerks MT OJT $32,100 $42,180 $47,220 210 210 0.0% 22

Attachment E
2019 High Priority Occupations for Luzerne-Schuylkill Counties Workforce Development Area

Wages (2018) Employment
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SOC 
Code

SOC Title
Educational 
Attainment

Entry 
Level

Annual 
Average

Exper. 
Level

Estimated 
2016

Projected 
2026

Percent 
Change

Annual 
Demand

2019 High Priority Occupations for Luzerne-Schuylkill Counties Workforce Development Area

Wages (2018) Employment

47-1011 Supervisors - Construction Trades & Extraction Workers WK EXP $44,390 $63,210 $72,620 540 590 9.3% 59
47-2061 Construction Laborers ST OJT $30,050 $41,880 $47,800 1,500 1,630 8.7% 172
47-2073 Operating Engineers & Other Construction Equipment Operators MT OJT $34,540 $53,010 $62,250 660 700 6.1% 78
47-2111 Electricians LT OJT $37,990 $58,820 $69,230 590 620 5.1% 70
47-2152 Plumbers, Pipefitters & Steamfitters LT OJT $35,840 $52,000 $60,080 300 330 10.0% 37
47-2211 Sheet Metal Workers LT OJT $42,980 $56,270 $62,920 280 310 10.7% 32
47-4011 Construction & Building Inspectors WK EXP $29,920 $45,130 $52,740 240 260 8.3% 28
47-4051 Highway Maintenance Workers MT OJT $30,500 $42,030 $47,800 510 520 2.0% 53
49-3021 Automotive Body & Related Repairers LT OJT $22,020 $36,450 $43,660 220 240 9.1% 24
49-3023 Automotive Service Technicians & Mechanics PS $21,700 $32,880 $38,480 1,490 1,560 4.7% 148
49-3031 Bus & Truck Mechanics & Diesel Engine Specialists LT OJT $35,270 $48,200 $54,660 600 630 5.0% 58
49-3042 Mobile Heavy Equipment Mechanics LT OJT $35,310 $48,510 $55,100 320 330 3.1% 32
49-9021 Heating, A/C & Refrigeration Mechanics & Installers PS+ $32,780 $49,540 $57,920 440 490 11.4% 48
49-9041 Industrial Machinery Mechanics LT OJT $42,580 $53,110 $58,370 750 820 9.3% 75
49-9043 Maintenance Workers, Machinery LT OJT $35,320 $46,680 $52,360 370 400 8.1% 41
49-9071 Maintenance & Repair Workers, General MT OJT $25,050 $37,420 $43,600 2,110 2,280 8.1% 228
51-1011 Supervisors - Production & Operating Workers WK EXP $41,170 $64,340 $75,920 1,240 1,280 3.2% 124
51-2092 Team Assemblers MT OJT $25,830 $33,100 $36,730 2,660 2,430 -8.6% 270
51-4011 Computer-Controlled Machine Tool Operators, Metal & Plastic MT OJT $29,390 $38,550 $43,120 N/A N/A N/A N/A
51-4021 Extruding & Drawing Machine Setters, Oprs & Tenders, Metal & Plastic MT OJT $34,350 $40,600 $43,730 720 680 -5.6% 67
51-4031 Cutting, Punching & Press Machine Setters, Oprs & Tenders, Metal & Plastic MT OJT $31,400 $41,570 $46,650 740 740 0.0% 83
51-4041 Machinists LT OJT $31,200 $40,950 $45,830 730 780 6.8% 80
51-4081 Multiple Machine Tool Setters, Operators & Tenders, Metal & Plastic MT OJT $30,740 $40,580 $45,490 280 290 3.6% 31
51-4121 Welders, Cutters, Solderers & Brazers MT OJT $32,410 $45,960 $52,740 510 550 7.8% 59
51-5112 Printing Press Operators MT OJT $30,280 $43,890 $50,690 440 410 -6.8% 41
51-9011 Chemical Equipment Operators & Tenders MT OJT $22,440 $32,410 $37,390 390 450 15.4% 51
51-9012 Separating, Filtering, Clarifying, Precipitating & Still Machine Oprs & Tenders MT OJT $40,910 $59,940 $69,460 200 200 0.0% 20
51-9061 Inspectors, Testers, Sorters, Samplers & Weighers MT OJT $24,240 $36,120 $42,060 920 910 -1.1% 107
51-9111 Packaging & Filling Machine Operators & Tenders MT OJT $23,320 $38,940 $46,760 1,480 1,560 5.4% 182
53-1021 Supervisors - Helpers, Laborers & Material Movers WK EXP $40,080 $57,070 $65,560 590 680 15.3% 73
53-1031 Supervisors - Transportation & Vehicle Operators WK EXP $40,080 $57,070 $65,560 530 560 5.7% 58
53-3032 Heavy & Tractor-Trailer Truck Drivers PS $32,240 $46,220 $53,210 4,230 4,490 6.1% 485
53-3033 Light Truck or Delivery Services Drivers ST OJT $21,980 $40,190 $49,300 1,230 1,260 2.4% 134
53-7032 Excavating & Loading Machine & Dragline Operators WK EXP $34,470 $43,500 $48,020 240 240 0.0% 26
53-7051 Industrial Truck & Tractor Operators ST OJT $27,910 $33,620 $36,470 2,370 2,580 8.9% 293
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Required Education Level

Required Work Experience

Attachment F

The following graph shows the percent of Correctional Officers & Jailers that are at each education level in the U.S. 

The following percentage graph shows each work experience level required to get an entry level Correctional Officers & Jailers job 
in the U.S. 

Job Zone Two: These occupations usually require a high school diploma. Some previous work-related skill, 
knowledge, or experience is usually needed.

Educational Requirements, Work Experience & Top Industries for 
Correctional Officers & Jailers
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Top Industries

Sources: O*NET OnLine, National Center for O*NET Development and Center for Workforce Information & Analysis, 
Occupational Employment Projections (2016-2026)

The following graph shows top industries Correctional Officers & Jailers are located within PA.
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Pennsylvania 119 New York 112 New Jersey 11

Schuylkill County, PA 8 New York County, NY 16 Cumberland County, NJ 5

Centre County, PA 7 Nassau County, NY 11 Passaic County, NJ 2

Philadelphia County, PA 7 Suffolk County, NY 8 Burlington County, NJ 1

Allegheny County, PA 7 Erie County, NY 6 Sussex County, NJ 1

Luzerne County, PA 6 Albany County, NY 6 Mercer County, NJ 1

McKean County, PA 6 Queens County, NY 5 Atlantic County, NJ 1

Warren County, PA 5 Westchester County, NY 4

York County, PA 5 Jefferson County, NY 3

Wayne County, PA 5 Kings County, NY 3

Northampton County, PA 4 Seneca County, NY 3

& Others 59 & Others 47

Note: Data as of September, 2019

Potential Employer Names:

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania US Jobs

Justice, Bureau of Prisons/Federal Prison System GovernmentJobs.com

Department of Justice Corporate Site

Federal Bureau of Prisons LocalJobNetwork

Trinity Services Group Job Monkey

Pike County Correctional Facility USAJobs

Others

Source:  TalentNeuron (HWOL)

Sources that TalentNeuron pulls from:

Attachment G
Help Wanted Online Ads (HWOL)

Correctional Officer & Jailer Jobs within PA and NY, NJ

The Hiring Demand Dashboard's Help Wanted OnLine data set provides real-time insight into the employment marketplace through the world’s largest 
database of online job ads.

Location of Correctional Officer & Jailer Jobs listed in the Last 30 days:
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Direct1/ Indirect2/ Induced3/ Total
Output (Sales) $65,940,774 $37,564,692 $30,965,957 $134,471,423
Employment 419 273 215 907
Labor Income $17,315,627 $16,695,289 $11,088,699 $45,099,614
State and Local Tax --- --- --- $4,523,957
Source: IMPLAN 

1/Direct impact is the output or number of employees lost within the specific industry (where the closure will occur).   

Attachment H

Overall Economic Impact from 419 Jobs Lost at
SCI Retreat

Impact Totals (Lost)

3/Induced impact is the output or number of employees lost by other industries due to extraneous spending decreases by those having lost jobs 
(direct and indirect) and decreased available household income, such as less retail spending, health care, etc.

2/Indirect impact is the output or number of employees lost in related industries (suppliers to the direct industry) caused by the decrease in spending 
by the direct industry.  
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Industry Direct1/ Indirect2/ Induced3/ Total

Facilities support services 419.0 1.1 0.1 420.2
Employment services 0.0 29.9 3.1 33.1
Services to buildings 0.0 28.2 2.7 31.0
Personal and household goods repair and maintenance 0.0 24.2 0.7 24.9
Full-service restaurants 0.0 11.3 9.8 21.1
Real estate 0.0 12.2 8.9 21.1
Architectural, engineering, and related services 0.0 17.5 0.7 18.2
Landscape and horticultural services 0.0 11.7 1.4 13.2
Hospitals 0.0 0.0 12.3 12.3
Limited-service restaurants 0.0 3.9 8.2 12.2
Wholesale trade 0.0 5.5 5.0 10.4
Investigation and security services 0.0 9.2 1.0 10.2
Management consulting services 0.0 7.5 1.3 8.8
Other support services 0.0 7.6 0.4 8.0
Computer systems design services 0.0 7.6 0.4 8.0
Maintenance and repair construction of nonresidential structures 0.0 6.6 1.0 7.6
All other food and drinking places 0.0 2.3 5.2 7.5
Individual and family services 0.0 0.0 6.7 6.7
Offices of physicians 0.0 0.0 6.6 6.6
Retail - Food and beverage stores 0.0 0.0 6.4 6.4
Monetary authorities and depository credit intermediation 0.0 3.4 2.9 6.3
Other personal services 0.0 2.9 3.2 6.1
Accounting, tax preparation, bookkeeping, and payroll services 0.0 4.6 1.4 6.0
Retail - General merchandise stores 0.0 0.2 5.7 5.8
Management of companies and enterprises 0.0 4.3 1.6 5.8
Junior colleges, colleges, universities, and professional schools 0.0 0.0 5.6 5.6
Transit and ground passenger transportation 0.0 3.3 2.1 5.4
Marketing research and all other miscellaneous professional, scientific, and technical s 0.0 4.6 0.8 5.4
Business support services 0.0 4.4 0.9 5.3
Other financial investment activities 0.0 1.3 4.0 5.2
Automotive repair and maintenance, except car washes 0.0 1.7 3.4 5.1
Insurance agencies, brokerages, and related activities 0.0 2.4 2.3 4.7
Insurance carriers 0.0 2.3 2.2 4.5
Religious organizations 0.0 0.0 4.4 4.4
Retail - Nonstore retailers 0.0 0.1 4.3 4.4
Nursing and community care facilities 0.0 0.0 4.3 4.3
Waste management and remediation services 0.0 3.6 0.5 4.1
Personal care services 0.0 0.0 4.1 4.1
Home health care services 0.0 0.0 4.1 4.1
All other industries 0 48 75 123

Totals 419.0 273.2 214.7 906.9

1/Direct impact is the output or number of employees lost within the specific industry (where the closure will occur).  

Source: IMPLAN 

Attachment I
Overall Economic Impact from 419 Jobs Lost at 

SCI Retreat
Estimated Jobs Lost

2/Indirect impact is the output or number of employees lost in related industries (suppliers to the direct industry) caused by the decrease in spending by the direct 
industry.  
3/Induced impact is the output or number of employees lost by other industries due to extraneous spending decreases by those having lost jobs (direct and indirect) and 
decreased available household income, such as less retail spending, health care, etc.
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RE: SCI-Retreat  

 

Amy Schwenk  

Chief of Staff 

Department of Corrections, Secretary Wetzel’s Office 

 

Ms. Schwenk:  

 

 Thank you for including the Department of General Services (DGS) in the initial 

discussion relative to the potential closure of the SCI-Retreat facility and the SCI-Retreat 

Superintendent’s House.  As is always the case, DGS stands at the ready to assist the Department 

of Corrections (DOC) if and when it decides to officially surplus the property to us. If and when 

that occurs, DGS in its statutory authority can dispose of this property in accordance with one of 

the following approaches: 

 Direct Conveyance to a specific, named entity via special legislation contemplated in 

coordination with the local elected officials. 

 Direct Conveyance to a Redevelopment Authority (as designated by the Redevelopment 

Act of 1959), which would not require legislation, but is most effective when 

contemplated in coordination with the local elected officials. 

 Solicitation for Sealed Bid, a process which would sell the property to the highest 

responsible bidder.  It should be noted that in leveraging this approach, there is little 

influence over both the potential reuse of the property and the party to whom the property 

is sold.  Once the sealed bid process is completed, special legislation would still be 

required. 

 Request for Proposals (RFP), a process which would transfer the property to the most 

responsive proposer based on criteria that may include factors other than price.  It should 

be noted that leveraging this approach is a newer concept for the Bureau of Real Estate, 

with our most recent RFP anticipated for the sale of Allentown State Hospital.  Once the 

RFP process is completed, special legislation would still be required.   

 

Unlike other properties in which DGS is engaged for disposal purposes, state correctional 

facilities are built for a very specific purpose.  Adaptation for reuse of these facilities is often 

challenging (and expensive), and identifying buyers with interest in adaptive reuse is often 

difficult.  The last two prisons surplussed by DOC for DGS disposal were as follows: 

 SCI Cresson, sold in 2017 for $600,000.  This was disposed via a Solicitation for Sealed 

Bid process, which resulted in $600,000 bid.  Ultimately, that bid represented the value of 

timber on the property.  To our knowledge, no adaptive reuse has occurred on the 

property beyond removal of timber. 

 SCI Greensburg, sold in 2015 for $950,000.  This was disposed via a Solicitation for 

Sealed Bid process, which resulted in a $950,000 bid to a utility provider that already had 

a presence on the campus for the purpose of provision of steam to the campus.  To our 

knowledge, they procured the property to protect their assets, and no significant adaptive 

reuse has occurred on the property to date. There has been press indicating the 
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contemplation of a private, veterans’ center, but the specific status of any plan is 

unknown. 

  

Currently, the department is working through the surplus process for SCI 

Pittsburgh.  Surplussed in March 21, 2017, the department engaged with local legislators around 

a plan to direct convey to Manchester Bidwell, a Pittsburgh-based company that provides diverse 

educational programming for adults in transition and urban at-risk youth.  In doing so, we 

executed a Proposed Agreement of Sale contingent upon Manchester Bidwell’s completion of a 

due diligence period set to expire October 11, 2019.  Unfortunately, Manchester Bidwell 

executed their right to cancel the Proposed Agreement of Sale based upon the results of their 

formal due diligence, which included multiple factors including environmental conditions of the 

property and costs to rehabilitate.  At this time, the department is working with the local 

legislators to determine which property disposal approach would best suit the needs of the local 

community.  We have been advised that the legislators would like to hold a public meeting, but 

no meeting has been scheduled to our knowledge. 

 

Again, thank you for including the Department of General Services in the initial discussion 

regarding the potential closure of SCI-Retreat. Please do not hesitate to reach out if you need any 

further assistance.  

 

Regards,  

 

Sarah Hammaker  

Legislative Liaison  

Department of General Services  
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LUZERNE COUNTY
COUNTY MANAGER
C. DAVID PEDIU, DSQUIRtr

CouNtu "TLuznnxnP Ii N N S Y L VA N I A
n s T n [rnD I 7R6

October 21, 2019

John Wetzel
Pennsylvania Secretary of Corrections
Pennsylvania Department of Corrections
1920 Technology Parkway
Mechanicsburg, PA 1 7050

Dear Secretary Wetzel,

Please accept this letter as a pledge of my personal support as well as the full and official support of
the County of Luzerne for the ongoing operations of the SCI Retreat Facility.

Most importantly, the closure of this facility will greatly affect the hundreds of staff members who work
here. While l'm pleased to see the Department of Corrections has agreed to transfer these
employees to other facilities, the loss of these staff members will have a detrimental effect on our
community. Not only will this decision disrupt these employees' lives but this decision will take
productive and valuable members out of our community.

Retreat's economic benefit to Newport Township is essential to the livelihood of that community and
any interruption in the operation would have very serious effects on the economy and quality of life in
Newport Township and in Luzerne County.

I am respectfully requesting that the State Department of Corrections reconsider the closure of the
Retreat Facility.

ln addition, I ask that you include this correspondence into the record from the hearing held on
October 17,2019.

Very truly youfs,

D P
County Manager

Luzetne County Coufthouse . 200 N, River Street . Wilkes-Bame, PA, 18711

Plrone: (570)825-1635 Fax: (570)820-6362 Ernail: david.pedri@luzernecounty.org
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COUNCIL 
TIM MCGINLEY, CHAIR 

JANE WALS H WAITKUS, VICE CHAIR 

PATRICK M. BILBOW 
C. DAVID PEDRJ, ESQ. 

County At/a,,ager 
HARRY HAAS 

LINDA MCCLOSKY HOUCK 

RJCK MORELLI 

SHARON LAWRENCE 
Clerk of County Council 

CHRJS PERRY 

SHEILA SAIDMAN, ESQ. 

ROBERT SCHNEE 

MATTHEW VOUGH 

STEPHEN A. URBAN 

CoUNTY ~ LuzERNE 
PENNS Y LVANIA 

E S T A B L I S H ED 1 7 8 6 

November 18, 2019 

Governor Tom Wolf 
508 Main Capital Building 
Harrisburg, PA 17120 

Dear Governor Wolf: 

We, the undersigned members of Luzerne County Council, strongly urge you to 
reconsider the closing of the State Correctional Institution at Retreat ("SCI-Retreat") in Luzerne 
County. 

SCI-Retreat currently houses approximately 1,057 inmates and employs approximately 
384 full-time employees. The closure of SCI-Retreat would have a devastating economic impact 
on Luzerne County and the families of the individuals employed at SCI-Retreat. Our Council 
Members have listened to the concerns of our constituents who voiced their opposition to the 
closure and respect and supp01t their opinion. 

Since the closure of SCI-Retreat was proposed again in August of this year, State 
Senators Lisa Baker, John Yudichak and John Gordner vowed to utilize all options available to 
them to oppose and fight the closure of SCI-Retreat. We support their effo1ts in opposing the 
closure of SCI-Retreat. 

On behalf of the employees of SCI-Retreat, their families who depend on their incomes, 
the citizens of Luzerne County, and all those affected by the closure of SCI-Retreat, we thank 
you for your consideration of our input. 

Sincerely, 

The Luzerne County Council 
(Signature Page Attached) 

Luzerne County Cou1ihouse • 200 North River Street• Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 18711 
voice 570.825.1500 fax 570.825.9343 tdd 570.825.1860 
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COUNCIL 
TIM MCGINLEY, CHAIR 

JANE WALSH W AJTKUS, VICE CHAIR 

PATRICK M. B!LBOW 

HARRY HAAS 

LINDA MCCLOSKY HOUCK 

RICK MORELLI 

CHRIS PERRY 

SHEILA SAIDMAN, ESQ. 

ROBERT SCHNEE 

MATTHEW VOUGH 

STEPHEN A. URBAN 

cc: 

CoUNTY <z/ LuzERNE 
PENNSYLVANIA 

E S T A B L I S H ED 1 7 8 6 

Teresa D. Miller, Secretary of the Pennsylvania Department of Human Services 
Senator John T. Yudichak 
Senator John P. Blake 
Senator John R. Gordner 
Senator Lisa Baker 
Representative Tarah Toohil 
Representative Aaron D. Kaufer 
Representative Karen Boback 
Representative Gerald J. Mullery 
Representative Mike Carroll 
Representative Eddie Day Pashinski 

C. DA YID PEDRJ, ESQ. 
County Manager 

SHARON LAWRENCE 
Clerk of County Council 

Luzerne County Courthouse • 200 North River Street• Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 18711 
voice 570.825.1500 fax 570.825.9343 tdd 570.825.1860 
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Signed this 18th day of November 2019 by the Luzerne County Council: 

Tim McGinley, Chair 

4..... 

G~~~ 
Patrick M. Bilbow 

Chris Perry 

Steph~n A. lJrban 

tftf~o/~ 
Matthew Vough 

Luzerne County Courthouse• 200 North River Street• Wilkes-Barre, Pennsylvania 18711 
voice 570.825.1500 fax 570.825 .9343 tdd 570.825.1860 

C. DA YID PEDRI, ESQ. 
County Manager 

SHARON LAWRENCE 
Clerk of County Council 
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RESOLUTION R-2019-118 
LUZERNE COUNTY COUNCIL 

A Resolution of the Luzerne County Council Urging Governor Wolf and the Pennsylvania 
Department of Corrections to Keep the State Correctional Institute at Retreat Open 

WHEREAS, Governor Thomas Wolf and the Pennsylvania Department of Conections 
proposed the closure of the State Conectional Institute at Retreat ("SCI-Retreat") in late August 
2019;and 

WHEREAS, State Senators Lisa Baker, John Gordner and John Yudichak indicated they 
would voice their opposition to the closure of SCI-Retreat and would fight to keep SCI-Retreat 
open;and 

WHEREAS, SCI-Retreat currently houses approximately 1,057 inmates and employs 
approximately 384 full-time employees; and 

WHEREAS, the closure of SCI-Retreat would have a devastating economic impact on 
Luzerne County and the families of the individuals employed at SCI-Retreat. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Luzerne County Council does hereby 
oppose the closure of SCI-Retreat and voices its strong support of State Senators Lisa Baker, 
John Gordner and John Yudichak in utilizing all options available to them to oppose and fight 
the closure of SCI-Retreat. 

This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 

ADOPTED at a meeting of Luzerne County Council held on November 18, 2019. 

ROLL CALL VOTE (9-0) 
YES: Bilbow, Houck, McGinley, Morelli, Perry, Saidman, SA Urban, Vough and Waitkus 

LUZERNE COUNTY MANAGER 
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TARAH TOOItrIL, Member
1l6th Legislative District

47 East Wing
P.O. Box 202116

Harrisburg, PA 17 120-2116
Phone: (717) 260-6136

Fax: (717) 782-2921
Toll-Free: (855) 282-06 1 1

I West Broad Street
Suite 100

Hazleton, PA 18201
Phone: (570) 453-1344
Fax: (570) 459-3946

ttoohil@pahousegop.com
www.RepToohil.com

TARAH TOOHIL
I l6th Legislative District

pnaw nf peyrwerrtuhfuw

Judiciary Committee
Govemment Oversight Committee

Rules Comnrittee
Human Services Committee

Children and Youth Comrnittee, Vice Chair
Professional Licensure Cornmittee

Welfare Reform Policy Development Team
Property Tax Policy Developrnent Teaur

PA Children's Trust Fund Board
Interstate Compact for Juveniles

Pennsylvania State Council
Northeast Delegation Caucus

Coal Caucus
Manufacturing Caucns

National Foundation for Women Legislators,
PA State Direclor

Statewide Near Death and Fatality Review Board

Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
Harrisburg

November 21,2019

Governor Tom Wolf
OflLce of the Governor
508 Main Capitol lluilding
I{arrisburg,PA 17120

I)ear Governor Wolf:

I am writing this letter to request that you reconsider the closure of SCI Retreat in Newport
Township. This prison employs about 400 men and women, including many who reside in the
l l6th Legislative District, which I represent.

These are good-paying jobs at SCI Retreat and their potential loss would affect hundreds of
families that depend on them and dramatically impact the regional economy. SCI Retreat is a
well-run facility and closing it would have a devastating effect on our community. This very
disappointing news is a second punch to the gut for our area, which was already reeling from the
announcement of the pending closure of White Haven Center.

Just like two years ago when SCI Retreat was threatened, I again join with my legislative
colleagues to let you know that olosing the facility would be a serious mistake with severe
sconomic consequences. I stand beside the employees and their families with the hope that you
will reverse your decision to close SCI Retreat.

Thank you for your consideration. I remarn.

Very truly yours,

/*^t'a*nO
TTldar
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